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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s p o i n t we w i l l 

2 c a l l the Wednesday, May 27th regularly-scheduled meeting 

3 of the New Mexico O i l Conservation Commission t o order. 

4 The record should r e f l e c t t h a t Commissioners Bailey, 

5 Olson and Fesmire are a l l present. We, th e r e f o r e , have a 

6 quorum. The f i r s t order of business before the 

7 Commission t h i s morning i s the adoption of the minutes of 

8 the A p r i l 15th, 2009, specia l Commission meeting. Have 

9 the Commissioners had a chance to review those minutes? 

10 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, I have, and I 

11 move t h a t we adopt them. 

12 COMMISSIONER OLSON: Second. 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n favor 

14 s i g n i f y by saying aye. 

15 Let the record r e f l e c t t h a t the minutes of the 

16 A p r i l 15th meeting were unanimously adopted by the 

17 Commission, signed by the Chairman and conveyed t o the 

18 secretary. 

19 At t h i s p o int we probably need to t a l k about 

20 scheduling. The next item on the agenda i s Case Number 

21 14255, the Galisteo Basin matter. The Commission has 

22 decided, i n order to f a c i l i t a t e scheduling t h i s morning, 

23 th a t we w i l l address the Galisteo Basin f i r s t , then we 

24 w i l l address the Energen case, and then w e ' l l go i n t o 

25 d e l i b e r a t i o n s on the " P i t Rule". So i f you are brave 
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1 enough t o want t o v e n t u r e how l o n g i t w i l l take t o 

2 address those t h r e e i s s u e s , you can p l a n your day 

3 a c c o r d i n g l y . 

4 The f i r s t i t e m b e f o r e t he Commission t h i s 

5 morning i s Case Number 14255, t h e reopened A p p l i c a t i o n o f 

6 the New Mexico O i l C o n s e r v a t i o n D i v i s i o n , t h r o u g h i t s 

7 Environmental Bureau C h i e f , f o r a d o p t i o n o f an amendment 

8 t o 19.15.39 NMAC adding new s e c t i o n s t o be c o d i f i e d a t 

9 19.15.39.9 and 19.15.39.10 NMAC ad d r e s s i n g s p e c i a l 

10 p r o v i s i o n s f o r Santa Fe County and t h e G a l i s t e o Basin, 

11 Santa Fe, Sandoval and San Migu e l Counties. May we have 

12 the e n t r y o f appearance f o r t h e a t t o r n e y s i n t h a t case, 

13 please? 

14 MS. MACQUESTEN: Mr. Commissioner, my name 

15 i s G a i l MacQuesten. I'm here r e p r e s e n t i n g t he O i l 

16 C o n s e r v a t i o n D i v i s i o n . 

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten, are you 

18 the o n l y a t t o r n e y i n t h i s case? 

19 MS. MACQUESTEN: Now I am. 

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Are you prepared t o 

21 begin? 

22 MS. MACQUESTEN: Yes, I am. Mr. 

23 Commissioner, I have two w i t n e s s e s , Theresa Duran-Saenz 

24 and D a n i e l Sanchez. Ms. Duran-Saenz i s here t o p r o v i d e 

25 i n f o r m a t i o n on n o t i c e . You sh o u l d have i n f r o n t o f you 
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1 E x h i b i t 48, which i s our A f f i d a v i t of N o t i c e . I t was n o t 

2 p r o v i d e d w i t h t h e p r e h e a r i n g statement but i t was 

3 p r o v i d e d t h i s morning. I would move f o r admission o f t h e 

4 a f f i d a v i t . However, i f you have q u e s t i o n s about n o t i c e , 

5 Ms. Duran-Saenz i s here t o t e s t i f y t o answer your 

6 q u e s t i o n s . 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Have t h e Commissioners 

8 had a chance t o re v i e w t h e --

9 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, I have, and I 

10 have no q u e s t i o n s . 

11 COMMISSIONER OLSON: I have no q u e s t i o n s . 

12 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: N e i t h e r do I . We w i l l 

13 go ahead and admit OCD E x h i b i t 48 i n Case Number 14255. 

14 ( E x h i b i t 48 was ad m i t t e d . ) 

15 MS. MACQUESTEN: I n t h a t case, I would 

16 c a l l D a n i e l Sanchez. 

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Sanchez, would you 

18 proceed t o t h e stand, please? Would you r a i s e y our r i g h t 

19 hand? 

20 (The w i t n e s s was sworn.) 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten b e f o r e 

22 we s t a r t , can you b r i n g t h e Commission up t o speed o f 

23 where we are and why we're d o i n g t h i s i n t h i s case? 

24 MS. MACQUESTEN: C e r t a i n l y . The D i v i s i o n 

25 had proposed s p e c i a l r u l e s f o r t h e G a l i s t e o Basin and t h e 
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1 remainder of Santa Fe County. A f t e r the case was 

2 concluded and the Commission entered i n t o i t s 

3 d e l i b e r a t i o n s , i t made the determination t h a t the r u l e s 

4 should apply only t o the Galisteo Basin and not the 

5 remainder of Santa Fe County. 

6 At t h a t time the Commission asked the OCD t o 

7 provide a l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n of the Galisteo Basin so t h a t 

8 the r u l e could be l i m i t e d t o j u s t t h a t area. The OCD 

9 provided a l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n and also copies of the maps 

10 t h a t we used t o create t h a t l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n . The 

11 information was put out f o r comment. We d i d not receive 

12 any comments or proposed m o d i f i c a t i o n s f o r the l e g a l 

13 d e s c r i p t i o n . However, the Commission order i n d i c a t e d 

14 t h a t the Commission would l i k e t o have t h i s brought t o a 

15 hearing so t h a t testimony could be taken on the l e g a l 

16 d e s c r i p t i o n and any comments or questions could be r a i s e d 

17 at tha t time. 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s point -- and 

19 we're not scheduling r i g h t now -- i s there anyone here 

20 who has any comments on the proposed l e g a l description? 

21 Ms. MacQuesten, why don't you proceed? 

2 2 DANIEL SANCHEZ 

23 Having been f i r s t duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

2 4 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

25 
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1 BY MS. MACQUESTEN: 

2 Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the 

3 record? 

4 A. Daniel Sanchez. 

5 Q. And what i s your t i t l e ? 

6 A. I am the Compliance and Enforcement Manager 

7 f o r the OCD. 

8 Q. Are you here t o introduce and ex p l a i n the 

9 e x h i b i t s p e r t a i n i n g to the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n f o r the 

10 Galisteo Basin? 

11 A. Yes, I am. 

12 Q. Could you t u r n t o what's been marked as 

13 E x h i b i t 45? 

14 A. Okay. 

15 Q. What i s t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

16 A. This i s an e x h i b i t of the Galisteo Basin and 

17 watershed as defined by the State Engineer's o f f i c e . 

18 Q. Where d i d you obtain t h i s map? 

19 A. From the State Engineer's o f f i c e . Darrio 

20 Rodriguez, who i s now r e t i r e d from the State Engineer's 

21 o f f i c e , put together the database t h a t came up w i t h these 

22 coordinates, and Manuel Pasquel from the State Engineer's 

23 o f f i c e put together the maps and provided those maps t o 

24 us . 

25 Q. Is t h i s map p u l l e d from the database of the 
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State Engineer's o f f i c e ? 

2 A. Yes, i t i s . 

3 Q. The map has a dotted l i n e boundary. What does 

4 t h a t indicate? 

5 A. That i s the boundary of the Galisteo Basin 

6 watershed 

7 Q- Is the State Engineer the e n t i t y t h a t d e f i n e s 

8 the Galisteo Basin watershed? 

9 A. Yes, they are. 

10 Q. What are the small squares on the map? 

11 A. Those are the sections w i t h i n t h a t area. 

12 Q. And what are the numbers w i t h i n each section? 

13 A. They i n d i c a t e the range w i t h i n each section. 

14 Q- What are the blank areas t h a t are marked, 

15 " MS " ? 

16 A. Those are areas t h a t have not been surveyed 

17 and i n t h i s case, they're land grants. 

18 Q. Could you t u r n t o what's been marked as 

19 E x h i b i t 46, please? 

20 A. Okay. 

21 Q. What i s t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

22 A. This, as w e l l , i s a blown-up version of t h a t 

23 map, and t h i s shows the sections. The sections are 

24 penciled i n f o r the e n t i r e area. 

25 Q- Could you t u r n t o what's been marked as 
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1 E x h i b i t 47, please? 

2 A. Okay. E x h i b i t 47 i s the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n o f 

3 the e n t i r e basin, both sides. 

4 Q. And t h i s i s by sec t i o n , township and range? 

5 A. Yes, i t i s . 

6 Q. How were the unsurveyed areas described? 

7 A. They were described by the surveyed sections 

8 around those areas t h a t were not surveyed. 

9 Q. Why not j u s t name the land grants involved? 

10 A. Some of the land grants were only p a r t l y ' 

11 w i t h i n the Galisteo Basin. 

12 Q. Now, i n paragraph A ( l ) and A(2), some of the 

13 sec t i o n numbers are h i g h l i g h t e d . Why i s that? 

14 A. Those h i g h l i g h t e d numbers are a d d i t i o n a l areas 

15 or d e s c r i p t i o n s of a d d i t i o n a l areas w i t h i n Sandoval and 

16 San Miguel Counties t h a t we o r i g i n a l l y d i d n ' t see i n our 

17 version of the o r i g i n a l map. When the State Engineer 

18 gave us the coordinates f o r the new map, those l i t t l e ' 

19 sections, those areas, a c t u a l l y came out, so we decided 

20 t o put those i n , every s i n g l e piece t h a t we could, w i t h i n 

21 t h a t map -- w i t h i n the boundaries of the watershed. 

22 Q. To be clear, those h i g h l i g h t e d sections were 

23 not included i n the o r i g i n a l d e s c r i p t i o n t h a t was 

24 provided w i t h the application? 

2 5 A. No, they were not. 
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1 Q. Did the OCD receive any comments on the 

2 proposed l e g a l d escription? 

3 A. No, we d i d not. 

4 Q. Did the OCD receive any proposed 

5 modifications? 

6 A. No. 

7 MS. MACQUESTEN: I would move f o r 

8 admission of E x h i b i t s 45 through 47. 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s there any o b j e c t i o n 

10 t o the admission of E x h i b i t s 45 through 47? They'll be 

11 so admitted. 

12 ( E x h i b i t s 45 through 47 were admitted.) 

13 MS. MACQUESTEN: That concludes the OCD1s 

14 pres e n t a t i o n . 

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you. Do you have 

16 anything t o add? 

17 MS. MACQUESTEN: Just t h a t the reason we 

18 provided t h i s l e v e l of d e t a i l on the map f o r you and i n 

19 the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n was so t h a t we could give you the 

20 raw data t o fashion the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n however you see 

21 f i t t o fashion i t . 

22 And, also, I wanted to p o i n t out tha t you can 

23 put the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n of the Galisteo Basin i n 

24 several d i f f e r e n t l o c a t i o n s w i t h i n the proposed r u l e . 

25 Again, we're leaving i t t o the Commission t o decide how 
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1 t o do i t . But the NMAC s t r u c t u r e would allow you t o take 

2 t h i s d e s c r i p t i o n and put i t i n subsection 7, which i s t h e 

3 area of Part 39 tha t ' s reserved f o r d e f i n i t i o n s , because 

4 i t i s a very lengthy l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n . So i t would be 

5 possible t h a t you can e i t h e r b u i l d i t i n t o the r u l e or 

6 you could put i t i n the d e f i n i t i o n s e c t i o n of th a t p a r t . 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten, thank 

8 you very much. At t h i s time the Commission w i l l take 

9 Case Number 14255 under consideration w i t h the i n t e n t i o n 

10 of d e l i b e r a t i n g at the end of the -- towards the end of 

11 the meeting today. I s th a t acceptable? Thank you very 

12 much. Thank you, Mr. Sanchez. 

13 The next case before the Commission i s Case 

14 Number 13 957, the amended a p p l i c a t i o n of Energen 

15 Resources Corporation t o amend the cost recovery 

16 p r o v i s i o n of Compulsory Pooling Order No. R-1960, t o 

17 determine reasonable costs, and f o r the a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o 

18 recover costs from production of pooled mineral i n t e r e s t s 

19 i n Rio A r r i b a County, New Mexico. Are the attorneys 

20 present f o r t h a t case? 

21 MR. HALL: Yes, s i r . 

22 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: May we have an ent r y of 

24 appearance? 

25 MR. HALL: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, 
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1 Scott H a l l , Montgomery & Andrews law f i r m , Santa Fe, 

2 appearing on behalf of Energen Resources Corporation, and 

3 I have one witness t h i s morning. 

4 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, Jim Bruce of 

5 Santa Fe appearing i n association w i t h Candice Lee of the 

6 Sommer, Udall law f i r m , and we are representing the 

7 Estate of Joseph A. Sommer, the Joseph A. Sommer 

8 Revocable Trust and JAS O i l and Gas Company, LLC. We'll 

9 r e f e r t o these during the hearing. And I have one 

10 witness. 

11 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: W i l l the witnesses 

12 please stand? Would you raise your r i g h t hands? 

13 (The witnesses were sworn.) 

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , do you have 

15 an opening statement? 

16 MR. HALL: Very b r i e f l y , Mr. Chairman. 

17 This case involves a w e l l that was acquired by Energen 

18 Resources i n 1997. The w e l l was o r i g i n a l l y d r i l l e d i n 

19 1961 and was the subject of a compulsory pooling order 

20 issued by the Commission then. 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And signed by Governor 

22 Mechem, I saw. 

23 MR. HALL: Yes. I t was t h e f u l l 

24 Commission, so v e r y a u t h o r i t a t i v e . As you w i l l see i n 

25 ou r e x h i b i t s , we have a copy o f t he o r d e r . I t i s 
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1 something of a bare-bones order and does not contain t h e 

2 modern-day pro v i s i o n s t h a t the D i v i s i o n uses now i n i t s 

3 compulsory pooling orders. 

4 When the pooli n g order was issued i n 1960 --

5 1961, rather, among the i n t e r e s t owners was Joseph 

6 Sommer, who's a l o c a l attorney i n town. The w e l l was 

7 produced f o r a number of years by Energen's predecessors. 

8 I t was d r i l l e d by Southern Union Production Company, 

9 taken over by Union Texas, Unicon, acquired by Meridian, 

10 e v e n t u a l l y went t o B u r l i n g t o n , and Energen Taurus at t h e 

11 time acquired t h i s w e l l as part of a package of wells 

12 from B u r l i n g t o n i n 1997. 

13 Production of the w e l l , as w e ' l l demonstrate 

14 t o you, we f i n d the w e l l i s long p a i d out. With the 

15 decline i n the gas market i n the 1990s, i n t e r e s t owners 

16 i n the w e l l were advised t h a t the operator at the time, 

17 Meridian, would discontinue sales on behalf of those 

18 other i n t e r e s t owners and revise t o make arrangements f o r 

19 the d i s p o s i t i o n of t h e i r own shares of gas. Some d i d , 

20 some d i d not. That l e d t o the w e l l g e t t i n g out of 

21 balance. Some i n t e r e s t owners were over-produced, others 

2 2 were under-produced. 

23 That l e d t o the s i t u a t i o n we have today. I t 

24 l e d t o a dispute w i t h Mr. Sommer over how gas was to be 

25 accounted f o r and disposed of and at what p r i c e . The 
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1 dispute went on f o r a number of years, and I t h i n k 

2 Energen d i d the r i g h t t h i n g i n a s i t u a t i o n l i k e t h a t . I 

3 t h i n k any operator i s obliged t o t r y t o take reasonable 

4 e f f o r t s t o work out t h e i r d i f f e r e n c e s w i t h t h e i r 

5 nonoperator w e l l partners. Energen d i d t h a t . I t simply 

6 d i d n ' t succeed. So Energen has a v a i l e d i t s e l f of the 

7 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e processes of the D i v i s i o n and now the 

8 Commission. 

9 What Energen i s asking t h i s Commission t o do 

10 i s , as I said, one, provide us w i t h a modern-day 

11 compulsory p o o l i n g order which allows f o r the recovery of 

12 costs, i n c l u d i n g overhead and supervision costs, and we 

13 are also asking f o r a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o market the gas on 

14 behalf of the nonmarketing owner so t h a t those costs can 

15 be recovered out of t h a t owner's share. I f you do not do 

16 t h a t , Mr. Commissioners and Ms. Bailey, i t i s our view 

17 t h a t the operation of the Compulsory Pooling Order i s 

18 thwarted. The operator i s bearing the expenses f o r a l l 

19 of the other i n t e r e s t owners and does not have the 

20 o p p o r t u n i t y t o recover those costs. 

21 That's our s i t u a t i o n today. We'll provide you 

22 w i t h proof of the dispute, and I t h i n k we can show you a 

23 way out of t h i s dispute, as w e l l , as the testimony 

24 progresses. Thank you. 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, would you 
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1 l i k e t o make an opening statement or would you l i k e t o 

2 reserve i t ? 

3 MR. BRUCE: Just very b r i e f l y , Mr. 

4 Chairman. As Mr. H a l l noted, t h i s w e l l was d r i l l e d 

5 almost 50 years ago, and f o r decades, about three and a 

6 h a l f decades, the operator or successor operator sold t h e 

7 gas and accounted t o the i n t e r e s t owners and paid the 

8 i n t e r e s t owners, the force pooled i n t e r e s t owners. 

9 Energen ceased paying Sommer and has kept a gas balancing 

10 account since then. 

11 Energen d i d advise the owners t o market t h e i r 

12 own gas. However, w e ' l l have testimony t h a t , i n the 

13 past, when Sommer has asked t o take the gas, Energen 

14 refused, and so we're at a dilemma. We c e r t a i n l y t h i n k 

15 t h a t since -- under the orders Energen i s s e l l i n g 100 

16 percent of the gas, and out of t h a t , i t has t o pay 

17 Sommer's one-eighth r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t as an unleased 

18 mineral i n t e r e s t owner, and i t also has t o take out of 

19 those proceeds the operating costs. What i s the issue 

20 w i t h simply accounting to Sommer and paying that same 

21 i n t e r e s t , t h e i r working i n t e r e s t ? 

22 C e r t a i n l y the D i v i s i o n under the pooling 

23 s t a t u t e has the a u t h o r i t y t o make an order that w i l l 

24 a f f o r d t o the owner or owners of each i n t e r e s t i n the 

25 u n i t the o p p o r t u n i t y t o recover or t o receive, without 
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1 unnecessary expense, h i s j u s t and f a i r share of the o i l 

2 and gas. And we t h i n k t h a t merely making Energen under 

3 the order since i t i s already s e l l i n g 100 percent o f 

4 the gas and accounting and paying a l l i n t e r e s t owners i s 

5 f a i r and reasonable. 

6 And as I pointed out i n my prehearing 

7 statement, c e r t a i n l y i f the Sommer i n t e r e s t was 

8 unlocateable, Energen would have t o do t h a t under the 

9 current form of pooli n g orders. They are required t o put 

10 the unlocateable owners' share of revenues i n a bank 

11 account. And I don't t h i n k t h a t gas balancing accounts 

12 or gas balancing c r e d i t s s u f f i c e as p u t t i n g money i n a 

13 bank account. 

14 And nowadays, when there's many changes i t 

15 used t o be one t h i n g 4 0 years ago when you had a few b i g 

16 operators i n the San Juan Basin who were there f o r 

17 decades, you could always f i n d those operators. And 

18 Energen i s a b i g company, but there's always changes of 

19 operators. What i f the w e l l goes dry? Who i s l i a b l e f o r 

20 a l l t h a t s t u f f ? 

21 Some of the under-production t h a t Sommer i s 

22 accounted f o r might have been under the l a s t operator. I 

23 don't know. But under a force pooling order, I t h i n k the 

24 D i v i s i o n should make the operator s e l l t h a t gas and 

2 5 account t o the force pooled i n t e r e s t owners. Thank you. 
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. Bruce. 

2 Mr. H a l l , would you l i k e t o c a l l your f i r s t witness? 

3 MR. HALL: Yes, s i r . At t h i s time, Mr. 

4 Chairman, we would c a l l Paul Rote t o the stand. 

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Rote, please s p e l l 

6 your l a s t name f o r us. 

7 THE WITNESS: R-o-t-e. 

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And you've been 

9 p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case? 

10 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

11 PAUL ROTE 

12 Having been f i r s t duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

13 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

14 BY MR. HALL: 

15 Q. For the record, please s t a t e your name. 

16 A. Paul Rote. 

17 Q. Mr. Rote, where do you l i v e and by whom are 

18 you employed? 

19 A. I l i v e i n Birmingham, Alabama, and I'm 

2 0 employed by Energen Resources Corporation. 

21 Q- What do you do f o r Energen? 

2 2 A. I'm the general manager of land. 

23 Q. Have you pr e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

24 Commission and had your c r e d e n t i a l s accepted as a matter 

25 of record? 
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1 A. Yes, I have. 

2 Q. Would you b r i e f l y g i v e these Commissioners a 

3 summary of your e d u c a t i o n a l background? 

4 A. I have a BS i n psychology, MBA i n f i n a n c e , and 

5 I've worked as an o i l and gas landman f o r t h e pa s t 2 6 o r 

6 seven y e a r s . 

7 Q. Does your area o f r e s p o n s i b i l i t y i n c l u d e t h e 

8 San Juan Basin? 

9 A. Yes, i t does. 

10 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h e lands and t h e w e l l 

11 t h a t are t h e s u b j e c t o f t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 MR. HALL: At t h i s p o i n t , Mr. Chairman, we 

14 would o f f e r Mr. Rote as a q u a l i f i e d e x p e r t p e t r o l e u m 

15 landman. 

16 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s t h e r e any o b j e c t i o n ? 

17 MR. BRUCE: No. 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Rote i s so 

19 accepted. 

2 0 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Rote, would you p r o v i d e a 

21 b r i e f e x p l a n a t i o n o f what i t i s Energen i s seeking by i t s 

22 a p p l i c a t i o n today? 

23 A. We're a s k i n g t h e Commission t o c l a r i f y t h e 

24 c o s t r e c o v e r y p r o v i s i o n s under the o l d 1961 p o o l i n g o r d e r 

25 t o a l l o w us t o deduct b o t h t he co s t s and expenses 
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associated w i t h the production and sale of tha t 

2 production a t t r i b u t a b l e t o a nonmarketing working 

3 i n t e r e s t owner. B a s i c a l l y , we're asking f o r an update of 

4 the 1961 pooling order. 

5 Q. Why don't you give the Commissioners the 

6 background on the d r i l l i n g and the operation of the 

7 Martinez #1 Well? 

8 A. This w e l l was d r i l l e d , as Mr. H a l l mentioned, 

9 i n 1961 by Supron. I t was completed as a producer. 

10 Supron operated t h i s w e l l f o r some period of time from 

11 1961 t o 1982, and they sold the property t o Union Texas. 

12 Union Texas t h e r e a f t e r operated i t . I n 1990, the w e l l 

13 was acquired by Meridian. Meridian was acquired by 

14 B u r l i n g t o n . We acquired, as Taurus, our previous 

15 operator name, i n 1997, t h i s w e l l amongst many others i n 

16 a large property a c q u i s i t i o n from B u r l i n g t o n . I n 1998, 

17 we changed our name from Taurus Exploration t o Energen 

18 Resources Corporation. 

19 Q. We should e s t a b l i s h f o r the record, t h i s w e l l 

20 was d r i l l e d --

21 A. Pictured C l i f f s . 

22 Q. -- the Pictured C l i f f s Formation, i n the 

23 southwest quarter of Section 2, Township 25 North, Range 

24 3 West as dedicated t o the well? 

25 A. Yes, s i r . 
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1 Q. Let's look at Ex h i b i t Number 1. Can you 

2 i d e n t i f y that f o r us, please? 

3 A. E x h i b i t Number 1 i s a copy of the o r i g i n a l 

4 1960 pooling order covering t h i s w e l l . 

5 Q. Is E x h i b i t Number 2 a copy of Order Number 

6 R-1960-A which was issued by the D i v i s i o n i n t h i s matter 

7 l a s t year? 

8 A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

9 Q. Let's look at Ex h i b i t 3. What does that show 

10 us? 

11 A. , E x h i b i t 3 i s from our accounting systems. I t 

12 shows the ownership of the w e l l and i t shows two types of 

13 w e l l s c a l l e d decks. F i r s t , on the top of the page, i s a 

14 hundred percent revenue deck which shows the t o t a l 100 

15 percent i n t e r e s t of a l l the p a r t i e s i nvolved, what type 

16 of i n t e r e s t they have, what t h e i r decimal f r a c t i o n i n the 

17 w e l l i s . The deck t h a t i s below i s c a l l e d a revenue 

18 deck. What tha t i s , i t ' s an i n f l a t e d deck which allows 

19 us -- i t ' s a mechanism t h a t accounting uses, o i l and gas 

20 accountants use, t o i n f l a t e the decimals i n those cases 

21 where the operator i s not s e l l i n g -- does not own 100 

22 percent of the gas th a t ' s being marketed. 

23 I t ' s a mechanism t o make sure t h a t the 

24 proceeds t h a t are received by the purchasers are applied 

25 p r o p e r l y t o make sure t h a t a l l the owners are paid 
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a p p r o p r i a t e l y . So there w i l l be some d i f f e r e n c e between 

2 100 percent revenue deck and an i n f l a t e d decimal deck, 

3 and t h a t ' s what t h i s e x h i b i t shows. 

4 Q. For the b e n e f i t of the Commissioners, when we 

5 r e f e r t o the Sommer i n t e r e s t , i s t h a t i n t e r e s t now owned 

6 under the name of JAS O i l & Gas Company? 

7 A. Yes, i t i s . 

8 Q. That i s r e f l e c t e d on the revenue deck? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. On E x h i b i t Number 3, except f o r the JAS 

11 i n t e r e s t , are a l l of the other i n t e r e s t owners under 

12 lease or an operating agreement? 

13 A. A l l owners are e i t h e r leased or have signed a 

14 J o i n t Operating Agreement, w i t h the exception of JAS. 

15 Q. When the 160 acres was o r i g i n a l l y pooled, 

16 which unleased mineral i n t e r e s t owners were the subject 

17 of t h a t p o o l i n g order? 

18 A. I t was Josie Gallegos and Amadito Valdez and 

19 the Estate of Luis Martinez and Joseph Sommer. 

20 Q. Was the Thomas F. McKenna i n t e r e s t pooled, as 

21 well? 

22 A. Yes, i t was. 

23 Q. Since t h a t time have the Josie Gallegos, 

24 Amadito Valdez and Luis Martinez i n t e r e s t s been made » 

25 subject t o an operating agreement? 

| 
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1 A. Yes. Josie Gallegos, Amadito Valdez and L u i s 

2 Martinez a l l signed a J o i n t Operating Agreement. 

3 Q. When Taurus acquired t h i s property i n 1997, 

4 d i d i t acquire the f i l e m a t e rials f o r the w e l l from the 

5 predecessor operators? 

6 A. Yes, i t d i d . 

7 Q. Are some of those f i l e m a t e r i a l s included as 

8 e x h i b i t s today? 

9 A. Yes, they are. 

10 Q. When Taurus and Energen assumed operations of 

11 the w e l l i n 1997, were the takes and en t i t l e m e n t s of a l l 

12 the i n t e r e s t owners i n the w e l l i n balance at t h a t time? 

13 A. No, they were not. 

14 Q. With respect t o the Sommer's JAS i n t e r e s t , was 

15 i t over-produced or under-produced? 

16 A. Their i n t e r e s t was over-produced according t o 

17 the information we received by the amount of 1,031 MCF, 

18 over-produced. 

19 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: May I ask a question? 

2 0 How d i d i t get over-produced? 

21 THE WITNESS: I don't know. And I can 

22 speculate, but I r e a l l y can't answer t h a t question w i t h 

23 c e r t a i n t y . I t may have been -- I'm j u s t speculating 

24 here -- tha t the operator, B u r l i n g t o n , was i t s e l f 

25 over-produced and accounted f o r the Sommer i n t e r e s t i n 
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1 the same manner t h a t they accounted f o r t h e i r own 

2 over-production and a t t r i b u t e d h i s working i n t e r e s t 

3 percentage t o the over-produced volumes, but I'm j u s t 

4 speculating here. 

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Could you say t h a t 

6 again? The Commissioner d i d n ' t hear everything. 

7 THE WITNESS: I ' l l t r y . As I said, I 

8 don't know f o r sure. We j u s t have t h a t o l d gas balance 

9 and statement th a t a r r i v e d w i t h the r e s t of the f i l e s . 

10 The f a c t t h a t Mr. Sommer was over-produced at t h a t time, 

11 I can only speculate without c e r t a i n t y , and tha t 

12 speculation would include the p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t B u r l i n g t o n 

13 i t s e l f was over-produced as the operator and a t t r i b u t e d 

14 Mr. Sommer's i n t e r e s t i n t h a t same over-produced account 

15 and gave him some share of t h e i r over-production. 

16 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , proceed. I'm 

17 sorry. 

18 Q. (By Mr. Hall) Mr. Rote, are you f a m i l i a r 

19 w i t h the customs and p r a c t i c e s of the indu s t r y i n 

20 producing and operating w e l l s generally? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. I s i t the custom and p r a c t i c e of the i n d u s t r y 

2 3 t o implement gas balancing where takes and 

24 en t i t l e m e n t s -- I'm sorry -- where less than a l l the 

25 i n t e r e s t owners i n a w e l l have not sold t h e i r gas? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Can you give the Commissioners a b r i e f 

3 explanation of how balancing works? How i s t h a t 

4 implemented? 

5 A. I f a pa r t y i s not s e l l i n g t h e i r gas, i t has t o 

6 be accounted f o r . A hundred percent of the production 

7 out of the wellbore has t o be accounted f o r . The only 

8 way to do th a t i s t o c r e d i t those proceeds or debit those 

9 proceeds against the gas imbalance account. So tha t i f I 

10 had not sold my gas, I would be subject t o a gas 

11 balancing account which would c r e d i t me f o r the gas t h a t 

12 I had not sold, and t h a t w i l l b u i l d up over time f o r the 

13 period of time t h a t I am not s e l l i n g . 

14 At some p o i n t down the road you would s e t t l e 

15 out that account, t y p i c a l l y under a gas balancing 

16 agreement, which would account f o r t h a t imbalance, and 

17 t y p i c a l l y the under-produced p a r t y would be paid proceeds 

18 based on h i s t o r i c a l p r i c e s at completion of the w e l l or 

19 some time previous t o t h a t i f they would negotiate t h a t 

20 issue. 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So the balancing occurs 

22 on the h i s t o r i c a l p r i c e they would have sold i f they had 

2 3 an agreement? 

24 THE WITNESS: T y p i c a l l y you'd see that i n 

25 gas balancing statements. I t ' s q u i t e common. 
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t doesn't j u s t 

2 occur -- "We owe you X MCF at t h i s price"? 

3 THE WITNESS: Well, you have t o assume 

4 t h a t t h a t owner has never sold t h e i r share of the gas o r 

5 t h a t share of the gas was never sold. So the only o p t i o n 

6 you have i s at de p l e t i o n of the w e l l , then t o cash s e t t l e 

7 the account. And t h a t cash settlement w i l l t y p i c a l l y be 

8 based on the actual p r i c e s received by the s e l l i n g p a r t y , 

9 h i s t o r i c a l p r i c e s , and you pay the under-balanced owner 

10 t h a t amount at t h a t time. 

11 Q. We w i l l hear the terms today "takes" and 

12 " e n t i t l e m e n t s " and "makeup." Does en t i t l e m e n t r e f l e c t an 

13 i n t e r e s t owner's ownership i n a share of gas? 

14 A. Yes. That's the share he's e n t i t l e d t o . 

15 That's h i s ownership share, yes. 

16 Q. "Takes" r e f l e c t s actual movement of gas 

17 a t t r i b u t a b l e t o an account; i s that r i g h t ? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Now, when an under-produced p a r t y , someone who 

20 hasn't been s e l l i n g i t s gas, comes t o s e l l i t s gas i n 

21 order t o make up i t s under-produced p o s i t i o n , i s i t 

22 common f o r t h a t i n t e r e s t owner's account t o be -- his 

23 e n t i t l e m e n t t o be i n f l a t e d ? 

24 A. By i n f l a t e d --

25 Q. Increased. 
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1 A. Yes, i t i s . T y p i c a l l y , what you would see i n 

2 our gas balancing agreement would be t o give the 

3 under-produced p a r t y the a b i l i t y t o s e l l h i s share plus 

4 the a d d i t i o n a l percentage, i n f l a t e d number. T y p i c a l l y 

5 t h a t would be on the order of say 2 5 to another 50 

6 percent. So, f o r instance, i f I had a 10 percent 

7 i n t e r e s t i n a w e l l and I was under-balanced and under a 

8 gas balancing agreement, I t o l d the operator I wanted t o 

9 s e l l my share, I could invoke the gas balance agreement 

10 and say I want an a d d i t i o n a l 50 percent over my 10 

11 percent. Therefore, I would now be e n t i t l e d t o 12 and a 

12 h a l f percent my math i s not very good -- of -- 15 

13 percent -- I'm sorry -- I'd be e n t i t l e d t o 15 percent --

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I thought lawyers were 

15 bad mathematicians. 

16 A. So I'm e n t i t l e d t o take an a d d i t i o n a l amount 

17 a t t r i b u t a b l e to my i n t e r e s t u n t i l t h a t gas imbalance i s 

18 b u i l t back down t o zero. 

19 Q. As we work our way through the e x h i b i t s today 

20 t h a t came from the predecessor operator's f i l e s , can we 

21 get an idea of how those previous operators began t o 

22 implement gas balancing as the l i f e of the w e l l 

23 progressed? 

24 A. I'm sorry. Run t h a t by me again. 

25 Q. When we go through some of the documents t h a t 
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came from the predecessor operator's f i l e s , can we g a i n 

2 an understanding of how balancing was implemented f o r 

3 t h i s well? 

4 A. Yes, I t h i n k so. 

5 

6 

Q. From your review of some of those documents, 

does i t appear t h a t the operators up through the time 

7 Meridian operated the w e l l were s e l l i n g gas on behalf o f 

8 the other j o i n t working i n t e r e s t owners who had not made 

9 arrangements t o dispose of t h e i r share? 

10 A. Yes, i t appears so. 

11 Q. Look at E x h i b i t 4. Can you i d e n t i f y t h i s f o r 

12 us? 

13 A. E x h i b i t 4 i s a l e t t e r from Meridian t o the 

14 j o i n t working i n t e r e s t owners dated 1992, where they are 

15 l e t t i n g the nonoperators know th a t Meridian would no 

16 longer be s e l l i n g t h e i r gas on t h e i r behalf and i t ' s 

17 asking them t o take r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r s e l l i n g t h e i r own 

18 gas. 

19 Q. So Meridian was t e l l i n g i t s nonoperators to 

20 make arrangements t o s e l l t h e i r own gas a f t e r t h a t point? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 5. Could you i d e n t i f y 

23 t h a t , please? 

24 A. Another l e t t e r from Meridian dated September 

25 28, 1995, where they are again t e l l i n g the nonoperators 
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1 t h a t Meridian w i l l cease t a k i n g t h e i r gas as of December 

2 1st of that year, and t h a t a f t e r t h a t date, Meridian w i l l 

3 no longer a l l o c a t e any gas t o t h e i r working i n t e r e s t 

4 shares. 

5 Q. And by t h a t same l e t t e r , d i d Meridian ask t o 

6 be advised by i t s nonoperators of t h e i r plans f o r 

7 disposing of t h e i r gas by November 1st, 1995? 

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , before he 

9 answers t h a t , Mr. Rote, i s there any way t o know how Mr. 

10 Bruce's c l i e n t elected under the March 1992 l e t t e r ? 

11 THE WITNESS: No, s i r , nothing comes t o 

12 mind. 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: From the accounting, we 

14 can assume t h a t they e l e c t e d not t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the 

15 Meridian sales? 

16 THE WITNESS: I'd have t o say yes, t h a t 

17 they -- I don't believe Meridian continued t o s e l l i t s 

18 gas. 

19 MR. HALL: Mr. Chairman, w e ' l l be able t o 

20 connect up i n subsequent e x h i b i t s t o address t h a t . 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I apologize. 

22 Q. (By Mr. Hall) Again, d i d Meridian ask to be 

23 n o t i f i e d by November 1st, 1995, of the nonoperators' 

24 plans f o r disposing of t h e i r share of production? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. Did the l e t t e r also i n d i c a t e t h a t i f the 

2 nonoperators had not made arrangements t o s e l l t h e i r gas, 

3 they would be made subject t o gas balancing? 

4 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

5 Q. Did the f i l e s t h a t Energen acquired f o r the 

6 Martinez Well also include copies of D i v i s i o n orders? 

7 A. Yes, i t d i d . 

8 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 6. I s E x h i b i t 6 a copy 

9 of the D i v i s i o n order f o r the Pictured C l i f f s Formation 

10 i n Martinez #1 Well? 

11 A. Yes, i t i s . 

12 Q. T h i s . p a r t i c u l a r one i s signed at the bottom by 

13 Joseph A. Sommer; i s tha t correct? 

14 A. Yes, s i r . 

15 Q. Page 2 of tha t r e f l e c t s percentage i n t e r e s t 

16 f o r h i s ownership; i s that r i g h t ? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 MR. HALL: May I approach, Mr. Chairman? 

19 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

20 Q. (By Mr. Hall) I've handed out what i s a 

21 h i g h l i g h t e d version of E x h i b i t 6, but, Mr. Rote, i f we 

22 could d i r e c t our a t t e n t i o n t o page 1, the second f u l l 

23 paragraph on t h a t page, i f we bear i n mind the March 17, 

24 1992 and September 28, 1995 market e l e c t i o n notices from 

25 Meridian f o r E x h i b i t s 4 and 5, does -- look at the 
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1 language on the D i v i s i o n order. Does i t provide f o r the 

2 operator t o make payment u n t i l w r i t t e n n o t i c e of 

3 t e r m i n a t i o n i s received? 

4 A. Yes, i t does. 

5 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 7. Can you i d e n t i f y 

6 that? 

7 A. E x h i b i t 7 i s a t r a n s f e r order under which Mr. 

8 Sommer t r a n s f e r r e d h i s i n t e r e s t t o the Joseph A. Sommer 

9 Revocable Trust. 

10 Q. I f we t u r n t o page 2 of tha t t r a n s f e r order 

11 we've provided the Commissioners w i t h h i g h l i g h t e d copies 

12 of t h a t -- l i k e the o r i g i n a l D i v i s i o n order, i f we look 

13 at the top paragraph on page 2, does t h a t t r a n s f e r order 

14 also authorize payment f o r production proceeds u n t i l one 

15 p a r t y provides w r i t t e n notice t o the other? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. That language i s i n there. Let me ask you, 

18 Mr. Rote, i s the Sommer r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t on pay status 

19 now? 

20 A. Yes, i t i s . 

21 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t Number 8. Would you 

22 i d e n t i f y t h a t , please? 

23 A. This i s a l e t t e r sent from Taurus dated 

24 February 13, 1998, from our Manager-Joint I n t e r e s t 

25 Accounting t o a l l working i n t e r e s t owners, t e l l i n g them 
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1 t h a t , i f they p r e f e r , we would JIB net them, b a s i c a l l y 

2 account f o r t h e i r share by sending them a net check a f t e r 

3 expenses were deducted on a monthly basis, r a t h e r than 

4 sending them an invoice f o r those expenses and a separate 

5 revenue check. 

6 Q. Let's e x p l a i n to the Commissioners what JIB 

7 net means. 

8 A. JIB stands f o r J o i n t I n t e r e s t B i l l i n g , and JIB 

9 net means t h a t I would send one check, which would be 

10 proceeds minus t h e i r share of operating expenses. I'm 

11 n e t t i n g out t h e i r j o i n t i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g s . 

12 Q. So i s i t accurate t o say by t h i s l e t t e r Taurus 

13 Energen was n o t i f y i n g i t s nonoperators t h a t they had an 

14 op t i o n t o be netted out f o r t h e i r expenses; i s t h a t 

15 r i g h t ? 

16 A. Yes. I t was sent t o many small owners. 

17 Q. And the a l t e r n a t i v e i s what, i f they are not 

18 t o be netted out? 

19 A. The a l t e r n a t i v e i s t h a t we would send them a 

20 b i l l each month and we'd also send them a revenue check. 

21 The b i l l would be f o r t h e i r share of the j o i n t i n t e r e s t 

22 b i l l i n g s , the lease operating expenses. We'd send t h a t 

23 out. and wait f o r them t o send us back t h e i r check f o r 

24 t h e i r share of those operating costs. 

2 5 Q. Now, do monthly lease operating expenses 
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1 continue t o accrue f o r a l l of the working i n t e r e s t owners j 

2 of a w e l l even i n those instances where a working | 
j 

3 i n t e r e s t owner i s not marketing i t s gas? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. Those costs don't go away, do they? 

6 A. No, they do not. 

7 Q. I s i t Energen's p r a c t i c e to continue t o 

8 i n v o i c e working i n t e r e s t owners f o r t h e i r p r o p o r t i o n a t e 

9 share of lease operating expenses whether they market o r 

10 not? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. And has the Martinez #1 Well paid out? 

13 A. Yes. I be l i e v e i t paid out i n November 1968. 

14 Q. Can you t e l l the Commissioners g e n e r a l l y what 

15 comprise monthly lease operating expenses, j u s t 

16 generally? 

17 A. Generally, i t would be e l e c t r i c i t y , v e h i c l e 

18 expense, supervision, labor, chemicals, overhead, et 

19 cetera. 

20 Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 9. Would you i d e n t i f y 

21 that? What does t h a t t e l l us? 

22 A. This was a l e t t e r sent October 26, 1998, from 

23 one of our j o i n t i n t e r e s t accountants to Mr. Sommer 

24 d i r e c t l y , l e t t i n g him know t h a t we had not been r e c e i v i n g 

25 h i s JIB payments. We also o f f e r , i f he doesn't want --
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1 we wanted t o purchase h i s ownership i n the w e l l i f he 

2 cared t o have us do an ev a l u a t i o n of the value of th a t 

3 w e l l . 

4 Q. Did i t appear t h a t t h i s accounts receivable 

5 l e t t e r i n October of 1998 t r i g g e r e d a series of 

6 correspondence between Mr. Sommer and Energen? 

7 A. Yes, i t d i d . 

8 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 10. Can you i d e n t i f y 

9 t h i s , please? 

10 A. I t ' s a l e t t e r from Mr. Sommer, January 5th, 

11 1998, and he's b a s i c a l l y asking why he's being charged 

12 expenses f o r a w e l l he thought was shut i n , apparently. 

13 We have evidence t o show t h a t i t was not being shut i n . 

14 Q. Among other t h i n g s , was Mr. Sommer o b j e c t i n g 

15 t o supervision and overhead charges? 

16 A. Yes, he was, such items as company labor, 

17 supervision and vehi c l e expenses. 

18 Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 11. Could you i d e n t i f y 

19 t h i s , please? 

2 0 A. Another l e t t e r from Mr. Sommer dated June 15th 

21 of '01. He had received a gas balancing statement from 

22 us and was responding t o the r e c e i p t of th a t statement 

23 and responding t o JIB b i l l s . He continues t o object 

24 being charged f o r overhead and j o i n t i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g 

2 5 expenses. 
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1 Q. I f we t u r n t o page 2 of t h a t l e t t e r , does t h e 

2 h i g h l i g h t e d language r e f l e c t h i s o b j e c t i o n t o b e i n g 

3 charged f o r overhead? 

4 A. Yes, i t does. 

5 Q. Look a t E x h i b i t 12. I d e n t i f y t h a t , p l e a s e . 

6 A. A subsequent l e t t e r from Mr. Sommer da t e d 

7 February 13, 2002. B a s i c a l l y , i t ' s another l e t t e r 

8 f u r t h e r o b j e c t i n g t o j o i n t i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g statements 

9 and, i n p a r t i c u l a r , COPAS overhead charges. He asked f o r 

10 i n f o r m a t i o n o f gas and balances i n t h a t l e t t e r . 

11 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Could you e l a b o r a t e on 

12 COPAS? 

13 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . COPAS i s a 

14 s t a n d a r d i n d u s t r y p e t r o l e u m a c c o u n t i n g s o c i e t y 

15 o r g a n i z a t i o n t h a t i s r e s p o n s i b l e f o r f o r m u l a t i n g 

16 a c c o u n t i n g p o l i c i e s and procedures f o r t h e i n d u s t r y . 

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So t h a t w i l l be on t h e 

18 r e c o r d . That d e s c r i p t i o n w i l l be on the r e c o r d . 

19 THE WITNESS: Okay. 

20 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) I n view o f the ongoing e f f o r t s 

21 o f Mr. Sommer t o o b t a i n an e x p l a n a t i o n f o r b a l a n c i n g 

22 statements and the j o i n t i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g s , d i d Energen 

23 make any e f f o r t t o t r y t o communicate w i t h him? 

24 A. Yes, we d i d . 

25 Q. L e t ' s l o o k a t E x h i b i t 13. Would you i d e n t i f y 
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1 t h a t and ex p l a i n that? 

2 A. Thirteen i s a l e t t e r dated March 11, 2002, 

3 from Energen authored by Mr. K i r k Flowers, who's the 

4 D i r e c t o r of J o i n t I n t e r e s t Accounting Department. He's 

5 responding t o Mr. Sommer's previous February 13th l e t t e r 

6 and t r i e s t o - - attempts to e x p l a i n gas balancing, how i t 

7 works and what happens i f an owner does not market t h e i r 

8 share of the gas. 

9 Q. And d i d he also t r y t o ex p l a i n Energen's j o i n t 

10 i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g s f o r monthly lease operating expenses 

11 and producing w e l l overhead charges? 

12 A. Yes, he d i d . 

13 Q. B a s i c a l l y , what d i d he say i n t h a t regard? 

14 A. That a nonmarketing i n t e r e s t owner -- t h a t the 

15 j o i n t i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g s continue t o accrue even though 

16 t h a t owner i s not s e l l i n g t h e i r gas. 

17 Q. Did Mr. Flowers t r y t o ex p l a i n t h a t the 

18 imbalance p o s i t i o n f o r the Sommer i n t e r e s t was a 

19 s i t u a t i o n t h a t was i n h e r i t e d from B u r l i n g t o n when you 

20 acquired the well? 

21 A. I believe so. 

22 Q. Did Energen also o f f e r t o c o r r e c t any e r r o r s 

23 i n the gas balancing statement? 

24 A. Yes, we d i d . 

25 Q. Let's t u r n to E x h i b i t 14. Can you i d e n t i f y 
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1 t h i s , please? 

2 A. Another l e t t e r from Mr. Sommer dated August 

3 16, 2002. 

4 Q. Was he responding t o Mr. Flowers' e a r l i e r 

5 l e t t e r ? 

6 A. Yes, he was. 

7 Q. I f you look at the f i r s t paragraph on page 5 

8 of the August 16, 2002 l e t t e r , was i t Energen's 

9 understanding t h a t Mr. Sommer was as s e r t i n g t h a t as of 

10 December 1, 1995, when Meridian gave i t s n o t i c e t o 

11 nonoperators, t h a t the operator was without any f u r t h e r 

12 a u t h o r i t y t o s e l l h i s gas? 

13 A. That's apparently what i t says, t h a t we 

14 would -- our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n was th a t Mr. Sommer claimed 

15 t h a t we d i d not have the a u t h o r i t y t o assume t i t l e of 

16 t h a t gas and s e l l i t . 

17 Q. And would t e r m i n a t i o n of that a u t h o r i t y be 

18 consistent w i t h the provisions of the D i v i s i o n order and 

19 the t r a n s f e r order t h a t we showed the Commission e a r l i e r ? 

20 A. Yes, i t was. 

21 Q. I n the second and t h i r d paragraphs also on 

22 page 5 of th a t same l e t t e r , d i d i t appear t h a t Mr. Sommer 

23 was a s s e r t i n g t h a t pursuant t o the pooling order, Energen 

24 had the a u t h o r i t y t o s e l l only those volumes a t t r i b u t a b l e 

25 t o the Sommer i n t e r e s t t h a t were s u f f i c i e n t t o cover the 
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1 r e a l costs of production? 

2 A. Yes, th a t ' s what he said. 

3 Q. Did i t also appear t h a t Mr. Sommer was not 

4 only o b j e c t i n g t o lease operating expenses, but he was 

5 also o b j e c t i n g t o bearing h i s share of f i x e d production 

6 overhead, as he says i t ? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. I f we t u r n t o page 6 of th a t l e t t e r , I 

9 h i g h l i g h t e d some language there. What i s i t t h a t you 

10 understand t h a t Mr. Sommer was contending? Was he simply 

11 r e a s s e r t i n g t h a t the operator was without a u t h o r i t y t o 

12 s e l l gas on behalf of the other i n t e r e s t owners? 

13 A. Yes, th a t ' s r i g h t . 

14 Q. Did you understand him t o say th a t Energen 

15 could not s e l l i t s own gas, and h i s own gas was being 

16 marketed? 

17 A. Yes. Throughout t h i s Mr. Sommer asserted t h a t 

18 we do not have the r i g h t t o s e l l h i s gas. We -- I'm 

19 stuck here. 

20 Q. Was he also d i s p u t i n g the operator's a u t h o r i t y 

21 t o t r y t o recover operating costs i n a balancing 

22 s i t u a t i o n from a nonmarketing i n t e r e s t owner whose 

23 i n t e r e s t was being balanced? 

24 A. Yes, i t appeared so. 

25 Q. He was having a problem w i t h thatconcept? 
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1 A. (Witness nods head.) 

2 Q. Overall, Energen's communications w i t h Mr. 

3 Sommer, was i t Energen's understanding t h a t Mr. Sommer 

4 was a s s e r t i n g t h a t Energen had no a u t h o r i t y t o s e l l the 

5 Sommer Trust working i n t e r e s t share of the gas t o balance 

6 i t s production? 

7 A. That was our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , yes. 

8 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 15. Could you i d e n t i f y 

9 t h a t , please? 

10 A. Another l e t t e r from Mr. Sommer dated September 

11 3rd, 2002, which i s where he's apparently t h r e a t e n i n g 

12 l e g a l a c t i o n on a class a c t i o n basis over these issues. 

13 Q. I f we look at page 4 of E x h i b i t 15, we've 

14 h i g h l i g h t e d some language there, the t h i r d f u l l 

15 paragraph. Does t h i s passage summarize the p o s i t i o n 

16 which Energen understood Mr. Sommer was taking? 

17 A. Yes, i t does. 

18 Q. And he was i n t e r p r e t i n g the operation of the 

19 Compulsory Pooling Order; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

20 A. Yes, i t appeared so. 

21 Q. And, again, he was as s e r t i n g t h a t the order 

22 d i d not allow f o r the production and sale of gas over and 

23 above what was necessary to reimburse the operator f o r 

24 the expense of producing the gas? 

25 A. Yes. The understanding here was th a t he was 
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1 saying t h a t we would only be allowed t o s e l l that small 

2 p o r t i o n of the gas t h a t would only cover h i s share of 

3 j o i n t operating expenses and nothing more. 

4 Q. Let's address t h a t concept f o r a minute. I s 

5 i t p r a c t i c a b l e or even possible f o r Energen or any 

6 operator t o market only a large enough share to recoup 

7 lease operating expensess on a month-to-month basis? 

8 A. I don't t h i n k i t would be p r a c t i c a b l e to do 

9 nor possible t o do. I cannot estimate what the upcoming 

10 expenses are going t o be and s e l l j u s t t h a t s p e c i f i c 

11 p o r t i o n of gas from the wellbore t o account f o r th a t 

12 share of those expenses. 

13 Q. This concept would r e q u i r e an operator to know 

14 i n advance what the next month's expenses would be and 

15 then schedule t h a t much gas accordingly? 

16 A. I would t h i n k so, yes. 

17 Q. I s i t o f t e n the case t h a t an operator w i l l 

18 experience u n a n t i c i p a t e d expenses, v a r i a b l e costs? 

19 A. C e r t a i n l y , workovers, et cetera. 

20 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 16. Would you i d e n t i f y 

21 t h a t , please? 

22 A. I t ' s a l e t t e r dated September 25th, 2002. I 

23 was the author t o i t . This was an attempt t o respond t o 

24 Mr. Sommer's concerns and t r y t o reach some sort of 

25 accomodation t h a t would be acceptable to he and Energen. 
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1 Q. So you continued t o t r y t o work w i t h Mr. 

2 Sommer; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

3 A. Yes . 

4 Q. Can you summarize f o r the Commission what you 

5 were proposing t o do i n t h i s case? 

6 A. We o f f e r e d t o s e l l h i s share of the gas, 

7 market h i s share of the gas. We would allow him t o 

8 increase h i s percentage under a gas balancing type 

9 arrangement whereby h i s i n t e r e s t would increase by 

10 another 40 percent over h i s 8.33 percent. I o f f e r e d t o 

11 s e t t l e out h i s gas imbalance f o r a negotiated p r i c e . I 

12 o f f e r e d t o withhold or deduct h i s COPAS overhead charges 

13 f o r previous gas -- account f o r h i s previous outstanding 

14 JIB invoices. We also o f f e r e d t o buy him out under an 

15 industry-accepted economic evaluation of the value of the 

16 w e l l . 

17 Q. I n your view d i d you make clear t h a t Energen 

18 expected t h a t Mr. Sommer would be required t o pay hi s 

19 share of monthly lease operating expenses and overhead 

2 0 charges going forward? 

21 A. For f u t u r e flows, yes, and he would s t i l l be 

22 responsible f o r his share of the j o i n t i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g s , 

2 3 i n c l u d i n g COPAS overhead rates. 

24 Q. I s E x h i b i t 17 the response you received t o 

25 your l e t t e r ? 
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1 A. Yes, i t i s . 

2 Q. And i s t h a t a l e t t e r from Mr. Sommer dated 

3 October 15, 2002? 

4 A. Yes, i t i s . 

5 Q. And I b e l i e v e we c o u l d address t h i s q u i c k l y by 

6 l o o k i n g a t page 5. Was i t c l e a r -- was i t made c l e a r b y 

7 Mr. Sommer t h a t he was r e j e c t i n g y our o f f e r ? 

8 A. Very c l e a r . 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , under E x h i b i t 

10 16, t h e r e are two l e t t e r s on c o n s e c u t i v e days. 

11 MR. HALL: I t sh o u l d be E x h i b i t 17. 

12 THE WITNESS: That second l e t t e r i s a gas 

13 m a r k e t i n g agreement t h a t we o f f e r e d f o r him t o s i g n i f he 

14 e l e c t e d t o a l l o w us t o s e l l h i s gas. I t was an 

15 attachment t o t h e f i r s t l e t t e r . 

16 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

17 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) L e t ' s address t h a t s i n c e t h e 

18 Chairman r a i s e d t h a t . Mr. Sommer d i d not execute your 

19 gas m a r k e t i n g l e t t e r agreement? 

20 A. No-, he d i d n o t . 

21 Q. Again, back t o t h e response t o your l e t t e r 

22 from Mr. Sommer, he made c l e a r t h a t he was r e j e c t i n g y o u r 

23 p r o p o s a l ; c o r r e c t ? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. Was he d i s p u t i n g any a u t h o r i t y f o r Energen t o 
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1 undertake gas balancing at a l l ? 

2 A. Yes, he d i d . 

3 Q. Based on your experience and understanding o f 

4 i n d u s t r y custom and p r a c t i c e s , what i s the p r a c t i c a l 

5 e f f e c t of t h a t p o s i t i o n where someone asserts an absence 

6 of a u t h o r i t y t o implement gas balancing when one or more 

7 i n t e r e s t owners i n a w e l l have f a i l e d or refused t o 

8 market t h e i r share of production? 

9 A. Well, i t would -- I would have t o shut the 

10 wel l i n , because I would not be allowed -- i f I'm not 

11 able t o s e l l a small working i n t e r e s t owner's share of 

12 gas, I cannot flow that w e l l . I t would r e s u l t i n having 

13 to shut i t i n , because I wouldn't be able t o segregate 

14 his share of the gas out of t h a t w e l l flow. 

15 Q. And would s h u t t i n g i n the w e l l be consistent 

16 wit h the custon and p r a c t i c e of the industry? 

17 A. No. 

18 Q. Balancing i s ; i s t h a t correct? 

19 A. Yes, i t i s . 

20 Q. I n your opinion, would the c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s 

21 of the other i n t e r e s t owners i n the w e l l be v i o l a t e d i f 

22 the w e l l were forced to be shut i n i n such a s i t u a t i o n ? 

23 A. Yes, i t would. 

24 Q. L e t ' s t u r n to E x h i b i t 26. Skip forward t o 

25 t h a t . Would you i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r us, please? 
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T h i s i s a g e o l o g i c a l map t h a t shows the 

2 P i c t u r e d C l i f f s p r o d u c i n g w e l l s w i t h t h e Martinez w e l l 

3 c e n t e r e d w i t h a one-mile r a d i u s around i t . 

4 Q. Does t h e Martinez #1 W e l l compete w i t h o t h e r 

5 o f f s e t t i n g P i c t u r e d C l i f f s w e l l s ? 

6 A. Yes, i t does. 

7 

8 

Q. Turn back t o E x h i b i t 18. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Back t o 18? 

9 MR. HALL: Back t o 18. I'm s o r r y t o s k i p 

10 around. 

11 Q • (By Mr. H a l l ) Would you i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 18 

12 f o r us? 

13 A. Yes. E x h i b i t 18 i s a f r o n t page of a J o i n t 

14 O p e r a t i n g Agreement between Energen's o p e r a t o r and c o v e r s 

15 th e McCroden W e l l , t h e McCroden C #1 W e l l , which has a l s o 

16 been executed by -- I don't have t h e e x e c u t i o n . 

17 Q • For t h e r e c o r d , i s E x h i b i t 18 s i m p l y the c o v e r 

18 page from t h a t o p e r a t i n g agreement f o r t h e McCroden C #1 

19 Well? 

20 A. Yes, i t i s . 

21 Q. And c o i n c i d e n t a l l y , does i t cover t he west 

22 h a l f o f the same s e c t i o n we're t a l k i n g about here? 

23 A. Yes, i t does. 

24 Q. What f o r m a t i o n i s t h e McCroden C 1? 

25 A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s Mesaverde. 
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1 Q. Now, attached to that cover page i s E x h i b i t E. 

2 What i s E x h i b i t E? 

3 A. E x h i b i t E i s a form of gas balancing agreement 

4 t h a t i s more or less standardized, used i n the i n d u s t r y . 

5 This i s a p a r t i c u l a r agreement t h a t our company p r e f e r s 

6 t o use. 

7 Q. So p a r t i e s p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n we l l s under J o i n t 

8 Operating Agreements, i s the custom and p r a c t i c e of the 

9 i n d u s t r y t o implement gas balancing embodied i n E x h i b i t 

10 E? 

11 A. Yes, i t i s . 

12 Q. I t ' s l a r g e l y r e f l e c t e d by the terms of E x h i b i t 

13 E? 

14 A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . I ' l l add t h a t most every 

15 J o i n t Operating Agreement w i l l have a gas balancing 

16 agreement attached as part of the contract by and between 

17 the operator and the nonoperating p a r t i e s . 

18 Q. Now, by the way, are the Sommer i n t e r e s t s 

19 committed t o the McCroden C #1 Well? 

2 0 A. Yes, they are. 

21 Q. I s t h a t by v i r t u e of t h i s operating agreement? 

22 A. Yes, i t i s . 

23 Q. L e t ' s t u r n t o E x h i b i t 24. Skip fo rward to 

24 E x h i b i t 24. Can you i d e n t i f y t h i s f o r the record? 
25 A. Yes, s i r . This i s a copy of our January 2009 
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gas balance statement t h a t Energen sends t o the balancing 

2 p a r t i e s on a regul a r basis. I t shows t h a t the Sommer gas 

3 imbalance as of January 2009 was minus 8,378 MCFs. 

4 Q. Now, t h a t 8,378 MCF under-produced p o s i t i o n , 

5 i s t h a t net of any r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t s t h a t would have been 

6 paid t o the Sommer i n t e r e s t ? 

7 A. That i s a gross f i g u r e t h a t would -- needs t o 

8 be deducted by the one-eighth r o y a l t y share. So i t i s 

9 not a net f i g u r e . I t i s a gross f i g u r e . 

10 Q. I f we app l i e d a one-eighth f a c t o r t o tha t 

11 8,378 MCF, would t h a t y i e l d approximately 7,331 MCF? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. That's the current imbalance a t t r i b u t a b l e 

14 t o --

15 A. Current net imbalance. 

16 Q. -- a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the Sommer --

17 A. A t t r i b u t a b l e to the Sommer i n t e r e s t , yes. 

18 Q. Could you explain t o the Commissioners what i s 

19 the most a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y - e f f i c i e n t means f o r Energen as 

20 operator of t h i s w e l l t o administer the under-produced 

21 volumes a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the Sommer i n t e r e s t ? 

22 A. Through gas balancing. 

23 Q. How w i l l you s p e c i f i c a l l y implement gas 

24 balancing f o r the Sommer i n t e r e s t ? 

25 A. Each month tha t -- they have an enti t l e m e n t 
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1 amount and a sales amount. And, f o r instance, t h e i r 

2 January statement shows t h a t t h e i r e n t i t l e d share of t h e 

3 flow f o r t h a t month was 57 MCFs. There were no sales 

4 because we are not marketing t h e i r gas and, th e r e f o r e , 

5 t h e i r imbalance grew by an a d d i t i o n a l 57 MCF. 

6 Q. Does Energen ask the Commission t o enter an 

7 order a u t h o r i z i n g Energen t o s e l l a l l of the working 

8 i n t e r e s t share of production a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the 

9 under-produced i n t e r e s t and t o seek appropriate 

10 reimbursement f o r lease operating expenses and 

11 supervision charges? 

12 A. Yes, we do. 

13 Q. You're not asking f o r a u t h o r i z a t i o n to s e l l 

14 only a p o r t i o n of the Sommer working i n t e r e s t necessary 

15 to cover expenses? 

16 A. No. No, we are not. 

17 Q. I s i t more a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y e f f i c i e n t f o r 

18 Energen t o s e l l a l l of i t ? 

19 A. Yes. I t ' s more a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y e f f i c i e n t f o r 

20 us to s e l l the e n t i r e flow of gas from the wellbore. 

21 Q. So i f authorized t o do so, the Sommer i n t e r e s t 

22 w i l l be placed i n what's c a l l e d makeup sta t u s ; i s t h a t 

23 correct? 

24 A. Yes, th a t ' s c o r r e c t . I f --

2 5 Q. And w i l l the --go ahead. 
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1 A. I f we s e l l the Sommer i n t e r e s t , we would s e l l 

2 h i s share, h i s working i n t e r e s t share, and th a t share 

3 would then be increased by some percentage and tha t would 

4 work o f f the gas imbalance u n t i l i t got down t o zero. 

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Without an operating 

6 agreement or gas balancing agreement, what should t h a t 

7 increased percentage be? 

8 Q. E a r l i e r you had proposed 40 percent i n your 

9 E x h i b i t 16. Are you proposing t o i n f l a t e the Sommer 

10 en t i t l e m e n t by 40 percent? 

11 A. We are more than w i l l i n g t o increase i t by 40 

12 percent, yes. 

13 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 23. Can you i d e n t i f y 

14 t h i s and then t e l l us what t h i s shows the Commission? 

15 A. This i s a d e t a i l of account a c t i v i t y 

16 p e r t a i n i n g t o the Joseph Sommer/JAS i n t e r e s t which 

17 represents what t h e i r share of monthly j o i n t i n t e r e s t 

18 b i l l i n g s were from the date of our a c q u i s i t i o n t o 

19 current. So t h i s i s what t h e i r share of LOE expenses, 

20 JIB expenses, on a monthly basis would be a t t r i b u t a b l e t o 

21 t h e i r working i n t e r e s t share. 

22 Q. For what period of time does t h i s cover? 

23 A. I t covers August of 1997 through A p r i l of 
24 2009. 

25 Q. So t h a t ' s the pe r iod Energen acquired the 
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1 w e l l ? 

2 A. Yes, i t i s . 

3 Q. I f we t u r n t o t h e l a s t page o f t h a t e x h i b i t , 

4 does i t show us a grand t o t a l o f o u t s t a n d i n g lease 

5 o p e r a t i n g expenses and charges due from t h e Sommer 

6 i n t e r e s t ? 

7 A. Yes. I t ' s i n t h e amount o f $8,975.35. 

8 Q. L e t ' s t u r n back now t o E x h i b i t 22. Could you 

9 i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the Commissioners, please? 

10 A. T h i s i s a copy o f t h e monthly j o i n t i n t e r e s t 

11 b i l l i n g s t h a t are sent t o t h e JAS O i l and Gas Company f o r 

12 the M a r t i n e z W e l l . For i n s t a n c e , t h i s f i r s t one of A p r i l 

13 2009 shows t h a t t h e gross LOE expenses f o r t h a t month 

14 were $1,057.78. The JAS share of t h a t was $88.14. 

15 Behind t h a t i s a d e t a i l page which l a y s out -- l i s t s i n 

16 more d e t a i l what those s p e c i f i c l e a s e o p e r a t i n g expenses 

17 e n t a i l . 

18 Q. Now, f o r a l l o f t h e d e t a i l t h a t comprises 

19- E x h i b i t 22, what p e r i o d o f t i m e i s covered? 

20 A. I t runs from A p r i l 2009 back t o September 

21 2008. 

22 Q. Now, among o t h e r t h i n g s , i s Energen a s k i n g t h e 

23 Commission t o amend the Compulsory P o o l i n g Order t o a l l o w 

24 i t t o charge t h e c u r r e n t p r e v a i l i n g p r o d u c i n g w e l l 

25 s u p e r v i s i o n overhead r a t e ? 
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1 A. Yes, we are. 

2 Q. Let's t u r n t o the second page of E x h i b i t 22. 

3 I s the overhead r a t e , the current overhead r a t e , 

4 r e f l e c t e d on there? 

5 A. Yes, i t i s . 

6 Q. What i s t h a t rate? 

7 A. I t ' s $866.16. 

8 Q. What p o r t i o n of that i s a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the 

9 Sommer i n t e r e s t ? 

10 A. $72.18. 

11 Q. And i s t h i s r a t e i n l i n e w i t h the permissible 

12 COPAS b u l l e t i n r a t es and adjustments? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Does Energen also ask the Commission t o have 

15 the order r e f l e c t t h a t the supervision r a t e may be 

16 adjusted p e r i o d i c a l l y i n accordance w i t h the COPAS 

17 b u l l e t i n ? 

18 A. Yes, we do. 

19 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t 21. Could you i d e n t i f y 

20 t h i s , please? 

21 A. Yes. This i s a matrix t h a t i s published by 

22 COPAS on a y e a r l y basis which shows how t o escalate the 

23 COPAS overhead charges. What i t does i s -- f o r instance, 

24 i n t h i s case, the J o i n t Operating Agreement i n question 

25 was dated i n 1984. I f you look t o the right-hand side of 

.:!SS :.*:-.;*::i,:ii:.\i-..,.-i,. . .* *SSffiS»:«>™tw*:».•»: « • « I ^ i l i S M S S W ^ ^ 
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1 t h a t page under 1984 and carry i t a l l the way down t o t h e 

2 year 2 009, you would see the number 247.36. What t h a t 

3 i s , i s th a t allows you t o escalate the o r i g i n a l 1984 

4 COPAS overhead r a t e i n the J o i n t Operating Agreement o f 

5 $350 by a f a c t o r of 247.36 percent, which would take you 

6 t o the current COPAS overhaed charge of $866 and some-odd 

7 cents. 

8 Q. What i s the s i g n i f i c a n c e of the 1984 date? 

9 A. That i s the date of the J o i n t Operating 

10 Agreement covering the Martinez Well i n which the 

11 accounting procedure allowed f o r a $350 per month COPAS 

12 overhead r a t e i n 1984. 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Was Sommer a pa r t y t o 

14 that? 

15 THE WITNESS: No. 

16 Q. (By Mr. Hall) Let's look at E x h i b i t 20 very 

17 b r i e f l y . F i r s t of a l l , can you i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 20? 

18 A. E x h i b i t 2 0 i s a report t h a t was run out of 

19 Energen's accounting system. What i t represents was t o 

2 0 see i n those cases where Energen i s not the operator, 

21 where Energen i s the nonoperating p a r t y , what other 

2 2 operators are charging us f o r monthly COPAS overhead 

23 rates. So the column t o the f a r r i g h t would be COPAS 

24 overhead rates t h a t we are being charged by other 

25 operators. What i t attempted t o do was e s t a b l i s h t h a t 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
3256bb0c-40f2-4fff-b828-128df298d48b 



Page 52 5 
1 the current COPAS rates t h a t we are charging under the 

2 Martinez Well are w i t h i n the upper and lower l i m i t s of 

3 these common charges. 

4 Q. So the Commissioners can go through t h i s 

5 e x h i b i t and get an idea of what other operators are 

6 charging f o r , f o r instance, Pictured C l i f f s w e l l s i n the 

7 area? 

8 A. 'That's r i g h t . 

9 Q. I t would help them understand whether the 

10 overhead rate t h a t Energen i s requesting i s i n l i n e w i t h 

11 p r e v a i l i n g rates i n the area? 

12 A. That's the i n t e n t . Yes. 

13 Q. And a couple of examples, i f you look at the 

14 very f i r s t e n t ry on page 1, i t seems t o show a PC Well 

15 operated by Black H i l l s , and what's the overhead r a t e f o r 

16 t h a t well? 

17 A. $514.27. 

18 Q. I f you t u r n t o the t h i r d page -- I'm sorry. 

19 Let's t u r n t o what's marked as page 12. At the very 

2 0 bottom there i s a Sta r r #1 PC Well operated by Dugan. 

21 Does t h a t show an overhead r a t e of $852 per month? 

22 A. Yes, i t does. 

23 Q. I f we t u r n , as an example, t o page 19, one 

24 more example, a t t h e b o t t o m o f t h a t page t h e r e ' s a 

25 r e f e r e n c e t o t h e C o n o c o P h i l l i p s S t a t e Com C 5 PC W e l l , 
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1 and i t shows an $1,800 overhead r a t e ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

2 A. Yes, t h a t ' s what i t shows. Yes. 

3 Q. Let's t u r n b r i e f l y t o E x h i b i t 19. Can you 

4 i d e n t i f y t h i s f o r us? 

5 A. This i s a more d e t a i l e d l e v e l breakdown of 

6 various lease operating expenses associated w i t h t h i s 

7 p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . For instance, page 1 would show t h a t 

8 that was a charge t o the Sommer i n t e r e s t f o r company 

9 labor. I n August of 1997, h i s share of tha t was $33. So 

10 page 1 represents a l l charges from the period running 

11 from August of '97 through -- w e l l , i t runs through page 

12 3 -- through A p r i l of '09. Those would be the monthly 

13 charges f o r t h a t p a r t i c u l a r breakout f o r company labor, 

14 lease operating expenses. On page 3 you would see the 

15 same accounting f o r Sommer's share of company supervision 

16 charges running through t h a t same p e r i o d of time. 

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Are these actual 

18 chsirged amounts or are they COPAS? 

19 THE WITNESS: No, these are charged 

20 amounts. . These are not COPAS. I f you t u r n t o page --

21 COPAS w i l l be a separate l i n e item, and you f i n d COPAS 

22 on --

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So these are d i r e c t 

24 costs and the COPAS are overhead cos ts ; r i g h t ? 

25 THE WITNESS: That ' s c o r r e c t . Yes, s i r . 
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1 Q. (By Mr. Ha l l ) Are these costs broken out by 

2 category f o r the p e r i o d th a t Energen operated the w e l l ? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. This shows costs on 100 percent basis? 

5 A. I'm not sure. Yes, i t ' s 100 percent basis. 

6 Q. Mr. Rote, are the h i s t o r i c and current monthly 

7 leaise operating expenses and the overhead rates being 

8 cheirged by Energen reasonable? 

9 A. We believe so. 

10 Q. I n f a c t , Energen i s now bearing 100 percent of 

11 operating expenses and overhead; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

12 A. Yes, we are. 

13 Q. There's no reason f o r Energen t o charge i t s e l f 

14 unreasonable expenses? 

15 A. No, there i s not. 

16 Q. I t doesn't make sense. Mr. Rote, l e t me 

17 f i n i s h up w i t h you. Were E x h i b i t s 1 and 3 through 24 and 

18 26 compiled by you from materials maintained i n the f i l e s 

19 of Energen i n the ord i n a r y course of business or were 

2 0 they otherwise compiled by you at your d i r e c t i o n and 

21 control? 

22 A. Yes, they were. 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , would you 

24 give us t h a t l i s t again? 

2 5 MR. HALL: E x h i b i t s 1, 3 through 24 and 
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1 26. I would ask t h e Commission t o take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

2 n o t i c e o f E x h i b i t 2, which i s a copy of Order Number 

3 R-1960-A, and E x h i b i t Number 25, which i s Rule 414 and 

4 Order Number R-8361, which l e d t o t h e a d o p t i o n o f Rule 

5 414 by t h e Commission i n 1996. E x h i b i t s 27 and 28 are 

6 our n o t i c e a f f i d a v i t s and A f f i d a v i t o f P u b l i c a t i o n . We 

7 move t h e admission o f a l l o f those e x h i b i t s and t h a t 

8 concludes our d i r e c t o f t h i s w i t n e s s . 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: What d i d you say 

10 E x h i b i t 22 was? You asked us t o take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

11 n o t i c e . 

12 MR. HALL: No. Two and 25. 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Two and 25. I s t h e r e 

14 any o b j e c t i o n t o t h e admission o f 1, 3 t h r o u g h 24, 26, 27 

15 and 28, o r f o r t h e Commission t o take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

16 n o t i c e o f 2 and 25? 

17 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . . 

18". CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Those e x h i b i t s 

19 E x h i b i t s 1 and 3 t h r o u g h 24 and 26, 27 and 28 w i l l be 

20 a d m i t t e d , and t h e Commission w i l l t a k e a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

21 n o t i c e o f E x h i b i t s 2 and 25. I s t h a t the c o n c l u s i o n o f 

22 y o u r d i r e c t o f Mr. Rote? 

23 ( E x h i b i t s 1, 3 t h r o u g h 24, 26, 27 and 28 were a d m i t t e d . ) 

24 MR. HALL:, Yes, s i r . 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't we take a 
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1 15-minute break and reconvene at 10:40 back here. 

2 (A recess was taken.) 

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We're back on the 

4 record i n Case Number 13957, a c o n t i n u a t i o n . The record 

5 should r e f l e c t t h a t a l l three Commissioners are present . 

6 There i s , t h e r e f o r e , a quorum present, t h a t we were about 

7 t o begin Mr. Bruce 1s cross-examination of Mr. Rote. 

8 Before you begin t h a t , I want the record to 

9 r e f l e c t that I was wearing a t i e when we s t a r t e d . I t ' s 

10 gotten warm. And anybody t h a t f e e l s l i k e t a k i n g a t i e or 

11 jacket o f f , f e e l f r e e . Mr. Bruce? 

12 MR. BRUCE: Can I go out and put my shorts 

13 on? 

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's not go th a t f a r . 

15 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

16 BY MR. BRUCE: 

17 Q. Mr. Rote, you t e s t i f i e d at the o r i g i n a l 

18 hearing i n t h i s matter, d i d you not? 

19 A. Yes, I d i d . 

20 Q. And I'm going t o t r y t o minimize the 

21 questions, kind of group them i n t o two categories, the 

22 over-production from -- the under- and over-production 

23 from the w e l l and the overhead ra t e s . F i r s t o f f , w i t h 

24 respect to the overhead r a t e s , d i d you check t o see what 

25 the Ernst and Young overhead rates are f o r wells of t h i s 
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1 depth i n Rio A r r i b a County? 

2 A. Yes, we d i d . 

3 Q. What Were they? 

4 A. This i s t h e i r annual p u b l i c a t i o n put out by 

5 Ernst and Young. I t covers a f i x e d rate overhead survey 

6 f o r the years 2 008 and 9. For those t h a t may not be 

7 f a m i l i a r w i t h i t , i t ' s broken out by sta t e and by w e l l 

8 depth i n New Mexico. Depending upon the w e l l depth, you 

9 would have a minimum, an average, a median and a maximum 

10 COPAS overhead r a t e per the Ernst and Young survey. 

11 For t h i s p a r t i c u l a r type of w e l l , I ' l l give 

12 you the median ra t e or whichever one you p r e f e r t o hear. 

13 For a w e l l depth of 5,000 to 10,000 fee t -- f o r the 

14 record, I'm not sure of the w e l l depth f o r t h i s w e l l , but 

15 I believe i t would f a l l w i t h i n 5 t o 10,000 f e e t . The 

16. median COPAS overhead rate would be $550. 

17 Q. Thank you. And I asked you t h i s the l a s t 

18 time. This i s a gas w e l l ; correct? 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

20 Q. I s i t producing any water? 

21 A. I don't believe so. 

22 Q. And I t h i n k you i n d i c a t e d t h i s w e l l has never 

23 been shut i n . I t ' s continuously produced? 

24 A. According t o the State production records, i t 

25 appears t o have not been shut i n . I t appears to have 
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1 been continuously produced. 

2 Q. When you t e s t i f i e d , oh, about a year and a 

3 h a l f ago and I believe the Examiner's order, the 

4 D i v i s i o n order, incorporated what you requested as to 

5 overhead rates, and i t was $3 50 a month or something l i k e 

6 t h a t -- I won't hold you t o t h a t number -- from 19 83 o r 

7 '84. I t escalated under the documents t h a t you presented 

8 at hearing today. And you t e s t i f i e d t h a t a t tha t p o i n t , 

9 the overhead rates should be $748 per month; i s that 

10 correct? 

11 A. I believe t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. Why now a year and a h a l f l a t e r would i t be 

13 $866? That's a 16 percent increase i n l i t t l e over a 

14 year. 

15 A. Without having a c a l c u l a t o r , what we, as a 

16 company, d i d , was t o apply the rates as per t h a t COPAS 

17 E x h i b i t Number 21. I t h i n k i f we were t o do math, Mr. 

18 Bruce, you'd f i n d t h a t $74 6 r a t e a year and a h a l f or so 

19 ago, applying t h i s m a t r i x t o i t , would r a i s e i t up t o the 

2 0 current 866. 

21 Q. I f you t u r n t o your E x h i b i t 20, Mr. Rote, Mr. 

22 H a l l had you go through t h i s , and i f my language i s 

23 objectionable to Mr. H a l l , he can obje c t , because I'm 

24 going t o do the same t h i n g he d i d . You used -- on page 

25 19 of t h i s l i s t , you chose the very bottom w e l l on tha t 
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1 l i s t , a Pictured C l i f f s w e l l operated by ConocoPhillips 

2 t o show an overhead r a t e of some $1,800 per month; 

3 correct? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. And i f I can use the phrase, t h a t ' s cherry 

6 p i c k i n g . And l e t me do the same. What i s the r a t e f o r 

7 the w e l l immediately above that? 

8 A. $382. 

9 Q. I f you go back t o page 12, which Mr. H a l l a l s o 

10 had you look a t , you used the w e l l operated by Dugan a t 

11 the bottom f o r $852 a month. What are the rates f o r the 

12 Pictured C l i f f s w e l l immediately above that? 

13 A. $514. 

14 Q. I f you t u r n back t o page 1 of t h i s l i s t and go 

15 through the f i r s t few pages, aren't the operating costs 

16 f o r PC wel l s c o n s i s t e n t l y i n the except i n one or two 

17 instances. I picked out about a dozen of them here where 

18 the operating rates are generally 4 t o 500 bucks a month. 

19 A. Yes. That's what you see. I f I may add, 

20 there's a mul t i t u d e of reasons as t o why those rates may 

21 diverge t o the extent t h a t t h a t report shows. As a f o r 

22 instance, you may have had a recent JOA signed, say, l a s t 

23 year, and the p a r t i e s negotiated a monthly COPAS overhead 

24 r a t e at t h a t p o i n t i n time of $350. Using the matrix, on 

2 5 the COPAS matrix, t h a t would have rai s e d t h a t t o 400 and 
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1 some-odd d o l l a r s , perhaps. So a l o t of these rates are a 

2 f u n c t i o n of the vintage and the age of the J o i n t 

3 Operating Agreements. 

4 Q. And w i t h respect t o the monthly charges 

5 assessed against Sommer or any other person i n h i s place 

6 or s i t u a t i o n , there are a couple of elements. One i s 

7 t h i s monthly overhead r a t e , and you're asking, whatever 

8 i t i s , 800 and some d o l l a r s a month; correct? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. And the other charges are the monthly lease 

11 operating expenses? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. Now, i n the l a s t hearing there was also 

14 testimony t h a t you were charging - - Energen was charging 

15 a $73 a month management fee. I s Energen s t i l l charging 

16 that? 

17 MR. HALL: I ' l l object t o t h a t . I t ' s 

18 beyond the scope of h i s testimony i n t h i s case.;. Unless 

19 you want t o show him t r a n s c r i p t testimony t h a t shows 

20 t h a t , I t h i n k t h a t ' s improper. 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce was a l l e g i n g 

22 i t was p r i o r testimony. I s n ' t he able t o go i n t o t h i s 

23 witness's p r i o r testimony on t h i s subject? 

24 MR. HALL: I n the D i v i s i o n hearing. But 

25 we'd l i k e t o see the t r a n s c r i p t to see i f that's what was 
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1 said. We don't know tha t t h a t ' s what was said. 

2 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Maybe Mr. Bruce should 

3 rephrase h i s question. I ' l l o v e r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n , b u t 

4 you can change the form of the question. 

5 Q. Was there testimony at the p r i o r hearing t h a t 

6 a -- and i f I'm wrong on the amount but I believe i t 

7 was - -

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, are you 

9 t a l k i n g about t h i s witness's p r i o r testimony? 

10 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

11 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Phrase the question 

12 t h a t way. 

13 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Rote, d i d you t e s t i f y or 

14 agree t h a t there was a $73 per month management fee being 

15 assessed against the Sommer i n t e r e s t ? 

16 A. Mr. Bruce, I have a b s o l u t e l y no r e c o l l e c t i o n 

17 of having t e s t i f i e d t o t h a t . .1 have no knowledge of 

18 management fees being assessed t o Mr. Sommer. 

19 Q. Thank you, Mr. Rote. Let's f i r s t go t o your 

20 E x h i b i t 3, Mr. Rote. Looking a t t h i s d i v i s i o n of 

21 i n t e r e s t , before I ask a few more questions on some other 

22 e x h i b i t s , i n the f i r s t t a b l e , the top pa r t of the page, 

23 which i n t e r e s t owners are not being paid on production? 

24 A. Currently, Amadito Valdez i s not being paid 

25 because he i s not marketing h i s share of gas. Josie 
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1 Gallegos, she i s being c r e d i t e d i n t o a suspense account. 

2 She i s deceased. So the only people, person, party, t h a t 

3 i s not being paid would be JAS and Amadito Valdez. 

4 Q. Now, Mr. Valdez -- now when I look at t h i s , 

5 your testimony was t h a t the s i x t h person up from the 

6 bottom, JAS O i l and Gas Company, i t s r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t 

7 t h a t i s being paid? 

8 A. Yes, i t i s . 

9 Q. Has i t always been paid? 

10 A. No, i t was not always paid. When we acquired 

11 the w e l l from B u r l i n g t o n , i t was not being paid. We made 

12 amends t o t h a t and paid back amounts t h a t were due along 

13 w i t h s t a t u t o r y i n t e r e s t , which Mr. Sommer had received, 

14 and has been i n pay status subsequently t o t h a t . 

15 Q. Looking at the Amadito Valdez i n t e r e s t , what 

16 does the "RI" stand for? 

17 A. "RI" stands f o r a revenue i n t e r e s t . 

18 Q. Okay. And I'm kind of unclear, because the 

19 f i n a l column, the unleased mineral i n t e r e s t s , you have 

2 0 the unleased mineral i n t e r e s t at eight and a t h i r d 

21 percent f o r JAS? 

2 2 A. Correct. 

23 Q. But out of t h a t comes the r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , so 

24 i t s working i n t e r e s t i s not eight and a t h i r d percent? 

25 A. I t s working i n t e r e s t i s eight and a t h i r d 
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1 percent. I t s net revenue i n t e r e s t i s t h a t amount minus 

• 2 i t s r o y a l t y . 

3 Q. I f you could t u r n t o page 24, I want t o 

™ 4 understand, you have four p a r t i e s w i t h under-production,-

B 5 correct? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

| 7 Q. And i s under-production being made up f o r any 

m 8 of those p a r t i e s ? 

9 A. Yes, I believe t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . Let me j u s t 

• 10 check t h i s again. Yes. Amadito Valdez i s -- h i s amount 

1
11 i s being -- I'm sorry. I r e t r a c t what I j u s t said. I t ' s 

12 Luis Martinez, Estate of Luis Martinez, who i s e n t i t l e d 

£| 13 t o , i n t h i s case, 9 MCF f o r t h a t production month. His 

14 gas was being sold. The sales column there shows 9 MCF I 

I 
• 15 and, t h e r e f o r e , there i s no b u i l d up t o th a t imbalance. 

| 16 The estate of Luis Martinez had signed a marketing 

17 agreement w i t h us and we are marketing his gas on h i s 

| 18 behalf. 

1 19 Q. Is there a signed JOA by Luis Martinez or h i s 

20 estate f o r t h i s well? 

M 21 A. Luis Martinez signed the JOA. 

22 Q. Is there a D i v i s i o n order signed by Joseph I 

• 23 Sommer or any of h i s successors, an Energen D i v i s i o n j 

B 24 order? > 

25 A. No, s i r . 
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Q. But you're s t i l l paying the r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t 

2 regardless? 

3 A. Yes, we are, i n accordance w i t h the Compulsory 

4 Pooling Order. 

5 Q. The other operators got a signed D i v i s i o n 

6 order. Why didn' t you? 

7 A. Would you repeat t h a t , please? 

8 Q. I said Southern Union and Meridian obtained 

9 D i v i s i o n orders. Why d i d n ' t Energen? 

10 A. I t ' s my understanding Mr. Sommer d i d not want 

11 us to s e l l h i s gas. The purpose of a D i v i s i o n order i s 

12 t o l a y out what the agreed i n t e r e s t s , sales i n t e r e s t s , 

13 w i l l be. We o f f e r e d Mr. Sommer t o s e l l h i s gas or 

14 o f f e r e d t o have him s e l l i t on his own. There's no need 

15 t o sign a D i v i s i o n order. 

16 Q. He's e n t i t l e d t o a one-eighth r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t 

17 and the other p a r t y -- the other operators had him sign 

18 as t o h i s one-eighth r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , d i d n ' t they? 

19 "A. I'm sorry. There was a question there? 

20 Q. Didn't the other operators have him sign as t o 

21 h i s one-eighth r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t ? 

22 A. I f the e x h i b i t s show that they signed as t o 

23 the e n t i r e t y of h i s i n t e r e s t , which included h i s working 

24 and h i s r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t . 

25 Q. I s n ' t i t also Energen's company p o l i c y t o have i 
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owners sign D i v i s i o n orders? 

2 A. Yes, i t i s . 

3 Q. Now, you t e s t i f i e d t h a t when Energen or 

4 Taurus -- i t ' s b a s i c a l l y the same e n t i t y ; correct? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. -- took over, there was Sommer -- the Sommer 

7 account was assessed i n over-production? 

8 A. That's what the gas balance statement t h a t we 

9 acquired from B u r l i n g t o n showed, yes. 

10 Q. And you have used Sommer's working i n t e r e s t t o 

11 make up t h a t over-production, have you not? 

12 A. Yes. We used h i s working i n t e r e s t , yes. 

13 Q. What d i d you say the over-production was, 

14 approximately? 

15 A. Back then I believe i t was on the order of 

16 1,031. I have tha t f i g u r e i f you'd l i k e me t o f i n d i t 

17 for you • 

18 Q. I'm j u s t asking general .numbers. 

19 A. Okay. 

20 Q. When you bought the w e l l from Meridian --

21 A. Bu r l i n g t o n . 

22 Q. Bu r l i n g t o n , t h a t ' s r i g h t . Excuse me. I 

23 should know the chain of t i t l e there -- from B u r l i n g t o n , 

24 i f and when Energen would s e l l t h i s w e l l , who would be 

25 l i a b l e f o r the Sommer under-production? 
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1 MR. HALL: I'm going t o obj e c t . I t h i n k 

2 t h a t c a l l s f o r speculation. We didn' t ask t h a t on 

3 d i r e c t . I t h i n k i t ' s beyond the scope. 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t c a l l s f o r a l e g a l 

5 conclusion. I t h i n k I ' l l s u stain the o b j e c t i o n . 

6 Q. But Energen c e r t a i n l y used the Bu r l i n g t o n 

7 Meridian over-production --

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. - - t o minimize i t s l i a b i l i t y towards Sommer? 

10 MR. HALL: I'm going t o o b j e c t . I t h i n k 

11 i t c a l l s f o r a l e g a l conclusion at t h i s p o i n t . 

12 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you rephrase 

13 t h a t question, Mr. Bruce? 

14 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Put i t t h i s way, Mr. Rote. 

15 When you acquired -- and I should say when Taurus/Energen 

16 acquired the w e l l from B u r l i n g t o n -- there was, l i k e you 

17 say, something of -- over 1,000 MCF of over-production 

18 which Sommer owed to the other working i n t e r e s t owners? 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. And you d i d not -- they owed you money; 

21 correct? 

22 A. B u r l i n g t o n owed me money. 

2 3 Q. Not B u r l i n g t o n . Sommer. 

24 MR. HALL: I'm going t o o b j e c t . I t h i n k 

25 the question i s confusing. Are we t a l k i n g about the 
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1 j o i n t i n t e r e s t b i l l i n g s , o u t s t a n d i n g expenses? 

2 MR. HALL: I'm t a l k i n g about t he 

3 o v e r - p r o d u c t i o n . 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I ' l l o v e r r u l e t h e 

5 o b j e c t i o n . 

6 A. Would you l i k e t o rephrase, and I ' l l --

7 Q. Sure. I'm t r y i n g t o t h i n k o f how t o say t h i s 

8 more c o n c i s e l y . Sommer was over-produced and Sommer 

9 a c t u a l l y owed you money? 

10 A. From an a c c o u n t i n g s t a n d p o i n t , t h a t would be 

11 t he r e s u l t , yes. 

12 Q. And so you took t h e i r gas so t h a t they d i d n ' t 

13 owe you any money anymore --

14 MR. HALL: I'm g o i n g t o o b j e c t . 

15 Q. -- and s o l d gas? 

16 MR. HALL: I'm s o r r y . Why don't you 

17 rephrase t h a t ? I ' l l w i thdraw t he o b j e c t i o n . 

18 Q. Energen s o l d 100 p e r c e n t o f t h e gas and used 

19 the revenues a t t r i b u t a b l e t o t h e Sommer i n t e r e s t t o make 

20 up t h a t o v e r - p r o d u c t i o n ? 

21 MR. HALL: I ' l l o b j e c t . I t h i n k t h a t i s 

22 beyond the scope o f d i r e c t . He d i d n ' t t e s t i f y and t h e r e 

23 was no t e s t i m o n y o r evidence o f f e r e d t h a t Energen 

24 u t i l i z e d proceeds a t t r i b u t a b l e t o an i n t e r e s t owner who 

25 d i d not market h i s gas. 
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , I t h i n k i t ' s 

2 a v a l i d question here. I'm going t o overrule the 

3 o b j e c t i o n . Do you want t o t r y again? 

4 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Well, then, Mr. Rote, how d i d 

5 Energen account f o r the imbalance? What d i d they do w i t h 

6 the over-production? 

7 A. Mr. Bruce, I am not here to t e s t i f y as a 

8 revenue accountant. I'm not an expert i n t h a t f i e l d . 

9 Q. I understand. 

10 A. I w i l l make an attempt t o answer your 

11 question. This occurred back i n the 1998 time frame. I t 

12 seems t o me i f you had a p o s i t i v e number versus a 

13 negative number, p o s i t i v e meaning an over-produced 

14 p o s i t i o n versus an under-produced p o s i t i o n , Mr. Sommer, 

15 according t o Burlington's records, was over-produced by 

16 approximately 1,000 MCF. 

17 We took over the operations of the w e l l , s o l d 

18 the gas. And what would happen i s because he was not 

19 s e l l i n g h i s gas, we would b u i l d -- tha t thousand MCF 

20 would reduce each month u n t i l i t h i t zero. He continues 

21 t o not s e l l h i s gas, t h a t account now becomes a minus 

22 f i g u r e , which continues t o b u i l d up t o the current 

23 under-produced amount of 8,000 MCFs. 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Did the JAS i n t e r e s t 

25 a c t u a l l y make up t h a t over-production a f t e r you a l l 
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1 acquired the well? 

2 A. I t would have balanced out. I t would have 

3 worked o f f from th a t p o s i t i v e thousand down t o zero and 

4 continued down --

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So they went from an 

6 over-produced t o the current 8,000 some-odd MCF 

7 under-production? 

8 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

9 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) And so, i n essence, Energen 

10 was s e l l i n g Sommer's gas t o make up the over-production? 

11 A. Yes, s i r . 

12 Q. And I guess my question i s , why can't Energen 

13 s e l l the gas t o make up the under-production? 

14 A. We can s e l l the gas t o make up the 

15 under-production. I f -- but not i n a lump sum. I t needs 

16 t o be worked o f f i n accordance w i t h i n d u s t r y standard 

17 mechanisms which would be found under normalized gas 

18 balancing type agreements, whereby the p a r t y would work 

19 t h a t o f f through s e l l i n g t h e i r gas, e i t h e r through the 

20 operator or on t h e i r own, plus an a d d i t i o n a l , as we 

21 t e s t i f i e d p r e v i o u s l y , 25 t o 40 percent a d d i t i o n a l 

22 i n t e r e s t over t h e i r actual working i n t e r e s t . 

23 Q. And during the pe r i o d of time i t would have 

24 taken to s e l l t h a t gas t o make up Sommer's 

25 over-production, they were being charged monthly 
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1 overhead, monthly lease operating expenses? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. And I t h i n k -- l e t me be c l e a r here today --

4 you t e s t i f i e d t h a t Energen -- you i n d i c a t e d you're 

5 w i l l i n g t o increase the Sommer en t i t l e m e n t by 

6 approximately how many percent? 

7 A. Forty percent. 

8 Q. To make up the under-production, at t h a t r a t e 

9 have you ca l c u l a t e d how long i t would take to make up t h e 

10 Sommer under-production? 

11 A. Yes, we have. 

12 Q. What i s that time period? 

13 A. I t ' s i n excess of 49 years. 

14 Q. Does t h a t w e l l have 49 years of l i f e l e f t i n 

15 i t ? 

16 A. Yes, i t does. According t o our engineering 

17 evailuation, i t has a remaining l i f e of 49.5 years. 

18 Q. And gas i s - a fu n g i b l e commodity, i s i t not, 

19 n a t u r a l gas, Mr. Rote? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. I mean, you could s e l l the gas now and make i t 

2 2 up a t any t ime , could you not? 

23 A. I ' m not c l ea r on what you ' r e ask ing . 

24 Q. W e l l , you could - - t h e r e ' s no th ing p r even t ing 

2 5 you f rom making up the over -p roduc t ion at a g rea te r 
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under-production at a greater rate? 

2 A. The w e l l produces what i t produces. I'm not 

3 sure i f you 're asking i f I can increase the flow of the 

4 we l l --

5 MR. BRUCE: I'm not asking t h a t , no. Mr. 

6 Chairman, I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have at t h i s p o i n t . 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

8 EXAMINATION 

9 BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

10 Q. Through a l l the paperwork I hear no requests 

11 and no o f f e r f o r an independent o i l and gas aud i t o r to 

12 review the Sommer's JAS account. Has th a t not come up? 

13 A. Not t o my knowledge, ma'am. 

14 Q. Okay. Under gas balancing, you say t h a t 

15 h i s t o r i c a l p r i c e s are paid at the time of production --

16 A. No, ma'am. 

17 Q. -- or balancing out the gas volumes. So the 

18 f i g u r e s we see are volumes and not d o l l a r s ; r i g h t ? 

19 A. I'm sorry? 

20 Q. And you use h i s t o r i c a l d o l l a r values f o r 

21 s e t t l i n g out the account. I s there any way f o r one of 

22 the working i n t e r e s t s t o understand on what basis t h a t 

23 h i s t o r i c a l value i s based so that they can see what k i n d 

24 of deductions the operator i s making f o r payout? 

25 A. In t r y i n g t o answer your question, ma'am, at 
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1 the p o i n t i n time t h a t the gas imbalance would be 

2 s e t t l e d , t y p i c a l l y at d e p l e t i o n of the w e l l -- i t can be 

3 done before, i t could be done today -- what we would do 

4 i s go back i n our accounting records t o show month by 

5 month by month how much we received, what p r i c e we 

6 received f o r the volumes t h a t were sold. That would be 

7 the same amount t h a t w i l l be paid t o the under-produced 

8 pa r t y . 

9 Q. Without deductions? 

10 A. No. And you would also have t o deduct from 

11 t h a t t h e i r share of the unpaid JIB b i l l s , lease operating 

12 expenses. So what you get i s a net number which i s based 

13 on h i s t o r i c a l p r i c e s we received less t h a t party's share 

14 of the expenses t h a t would have been paid had they not 

15 marketed t h e i r gas. 

16 Q. Then l e t ' s look at E x h i b i t 19, the very l a s t 

17 page, you're charging i n t e r e s t owners f o r groceries and 

18 food? I s that a l e g i t i m a t e --

19 A. Well, ma'am, I can't p a r t i c u l a r l y answer t h a t . 

20 I v/ould p o i n t out t h a t t h a t shows i n February of 2000, 91 

21 cents gross was charged somehow t o a food account. I 

22 don't believe i t t o be common, c e r t a i n l y . Though -- and 

23 I'm speculating here but i f we have people out on the 

24 w e l l , l i v i n g there f o r a workover, food expenses would 

25 c e r t a i n l y be appropriate f o r people t h a t are working on a 
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1 24-hour basis. I can't be s p e c i f i c about that p a r t i c u l a r 

2 91-cent charge. 

3 Q. I j u s t question how a working i n t e r e s t can 

4 a c t u a l l y understand a l l of the charges against t h e i r 

5 account and which charges are allowed under the gas 

6 balancing agreements. 

7 A. This E x h i b i t 19 shows what i s a t y p i c a l -- any 

8 operator w i l l have a breakdown of the lease operating 

9 expenses on a monthly basis. That's what these are. 

10 They include e l e c t r i c a l , chemicals, vehicles, 

11 supervision, et cetera --

12 Q. And Twinkies? 

13 A. 91 cents. The nonoperator, the working 

14 i n t e r e s t p a r t i e s , w i l l get a JIB statement each month 

15 which we showed on another e x h i b i t here which broke out 

16 those p a r t i c u l a r charges what they are being b i l l e d f o r , 

17 f o r t h a t p a r t i c u l a r month. 

18 THE WITNESS: What was tha t e x h i b i t , 

19 Scott? 

20 Q. Let me ask about the a l l o c a t i o n s t h a t are 

21 shown under E x h i b i t 3. Do you use the top chart of the 

22 100 percent w e l l gross net i n t e r e s t s or do you show the 

23 bottom, or a l l o c a t e according t o the bottom part of t h a t 

24 page, revenue DOI i n t e r e s t i n f l a t e d ? 

25 A. The answer t o tha t would be -- and, again, 
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1 we're t a l k i n g about co-owners, working i n t e r e s t 

2 co-owners, not the r o y a l t y owners. They're not charged 

3 any of these expenses. So the working i n t e r e s t owners 

4 would be charged in accordance with that top chart, which 

5 i s the hundred percent d i v i s i o n of i n t e r e s t . That i s t h e 

6 tru e gross working i n t e r e s t t h a t the nonoperated working 

7 interest owner would have. That i s the basis upon which 

8 they would be b i l l e d . 

9 For c l a r i f i c a t i o n , t h a t bottom h a l f of the 

10 page was what we c a l l e d an i n f l a t e d debt. That was t o 

11 allow f o r proper payments to be made i n those cases where 

12 the operator i s not s e l l i n g 100 percent of the gas flo w 

13 from the w e l l . vTo summarize the answer t o your question, 

14 the working i n t e r e s t owners would be charged t h e i r gross 

15 working i n t e r e s t percentage i n accordance w i t h t h a t top 

16 chart. 

17 Q. So the w e l l which could have, according t o 

18 Ernst and Young, costs, overhead costs, of $550? 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. JAS would be responsible f o r 8.3 3 percent --

21 A. Of t h a t amount. 

22 Q. -- of t h a t 550? 

23 A. Tha t ' s c o r r e c t , yes. 

24 Q. Could you look on your brochure and g ive me 

25 the Ernst and Young overhead r a t e f o r w e l l s t h a t are not 
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1 as deep as you gave us the r a t i n g f o r? 

2 A. That are not what? 

3 Q. That are not as deep as the r a t i n g you gave 

4 us. 

5 A. From 0 t o 5,000 f e e t , the median i s $436 and 

6 maximum i s $912. For wells 5,000 t o 10,000 feet, the 

7 median i s 550, the maximum i s 750. For wells between 

8 10,000 and 15,000 f e e t , the median $796, the maximum i s 

9 $1,102. 

10 Q. Are there many wells t h a t produce from the 

11 Pictured C l i f f s t h a t are 5,000 f e e t , Pictured C l i f f s 

12 production? 

13 A. Ma'am, I'm not a ge o l o g i s t . I would be 

14 guessing t o answer t h a t . I'm not sure of the answer. I 

15 don't know. 

16 Q. So the basis f o r much of t h i s case has t o do 

17 w i t h charges f o r overhead and supervision? 

18 A. I would agree that t h a t i s a large part t o 

19 t h i s . Also, i f I may, i t also has t o do w i t h marketing a 

20 co-owner's gas. Throughout these years we have not been 

21 able t o get permission to market t h i s gas on t h e i r 

22 behalf, nor have we -- nor have they taken on the a b i l i t y 

23 t o market on t h e i r own account. That's the problem. 

24 The problem i s we can't market t h e i r gas. 

25 They w i l l not allow us.to market the gas, and tha t ' s what 
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1 creates t h i s imbalance s i t u a t i o n . I n my mind there's two 

2 main issues. One i s the a b i l i t y t o s e l l t h i s gas. We 

3 w i l l do i t . We're w i l l i n g t o do i t . They have the 

4 a b i l i t y t o s e l l t h e i r own share of t h a t gas i f they found 

5 t h e i r own market. The second issue i s whether or not the 

6 costs were t o be deemed reasonable, and we believe t h a t 

7 they are. 

8 Q. What recourse would a small working i n t e r e s t 

9 owner have i f they don't agree w i t h being charged 91 

10 cents f o r Twinkies? 

11 A . I guess they could c a l l me and we can do what 

12 we need t o do to make everyone happy, I suppose. We can 

13 accommodate requests, and i f t h a t was a reasonable 

14 charge, we would c e r t a i n l y look i n t o i t and determine the 

15 f a c t s of the s i t u a t i o n and adjust i f we needed t o . I f i t 

16 wasn't a l e g i t i m a t e charge, c e r t a i n l y we would knock i t 

17 o f f of the b i l l . We respond to many questions about 

18 charges, about issues l i k e t h a t , and I be l i e v e our 

19 company does a f i n e job of accommodating those questions 

20 and re s o l v i n g those issues t o the s a t i s f a c t i o n of both 

21 our working i n t e r e s t p a r t i e s and our r o y a l t y owners. 

22 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l . 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson, do 

24 you have any questions? 

25 COMMISSIONER OLSON: No questions. 
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1 EXAMINATION 

2 BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

3 Q. Mr. Rote, can we look at E x h i b i t 15 r e a l quick 

4 on page 4? 

5 MR. HALL: I'm sorry? 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: F i f t e e n on page 4. 

7 Q. You made a statement during your testimony 

8 t h a t I d i d n ' t q u i t e f o l l o w . You said something about you 

9 couldn't estimate the operating expenses and s e l l only 

10 t h a t amount. Could you c l a r i f y what you meant by that? 

11 A. I ' l l t r y . I get mindlock on this-whole 

12 concept because I don't believe i t ' s even possible t o do. 

13 As I understand what t h i s concept i s , i s t h a t out of the 

14 flow of gas, I can segregate out, i n t h i s case 8.33 

15 percent of those molecules, minus the share -- tha t share 

16 of the JIB costs, two molecules of gas. So I have t o 

17 account f o r two molecules of gas i n the next upcoming 

18 b i l l i n g cycle, and I'm guessing what -- whether i t ' s two 

19 molecules or i s i t four molecules or i s i t three and a 

20 h a l f molecules. 

21 And the accounting f o r t h a t i s j u s t -- as I 

22 said, I cannot t e s t i f y as an o i l and gas revenue 

23 accountant. Maybe somebody more w e l l versed i n those can 

24 grasp t h i s concept. I personally am having a hard time 

25 understanding how th a t could be implemented using our 
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1 current systems and -- not only for our company, but for \ 

2 others. Now, I admit i t ' s not a very good answer. I'm j 

3 sorry. That's the best I can do. \ 

4 Q. By the time you're required t o make payments, j 

5 you know what the actual operating expenses are, don't j 

6 you? Why would you have t o estimate them? i 

7 A. Perhaps you're c o r r e c t . Perhaps i t could be f 

8 done. I don't know how t o do i t . I would need some | 

9 guidance and some expertise and discussions with people \ 

10 t h a t know how t o set up the accounting systems t o know j 

11 whether or not i t s even possible. j 
12 Q. Okay. E x h i b i t 18, now, t h a t wasn't executed 

13 on -- what i s the r e l a t i o n s h i p of t h i s McCroden C #1 t o 

14 t h i s Martinez #1? Are they d i f f e r e n t horizons on the 

15 same lease? 

16 A. Yes, th a t ' s e x a c t l y r i g h t . McCroden i s a 

17 d i f f e r e n t formation than the Martinez, and t h a t the --

18 Mr. Sommer owned an i n t e r e s t i n the section t h a t both o f 

19 these wells are s i t u a t e d i n . 

20 Q. I f I understand c o r r e c t l y , the Sommer i n t e r e s t 

21 executed t h i s Model Form Operating Agreement on McCroden? 

22 A. That's c o r r e c t . Yes, s i r . 

23 Q. Why would they have executed t h a t and not a 

24 s i m i l a r agreement on the Martinez well? 

25 A. This was executed i n 2006. I cannot answer 
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1 your question. I t h i n k you need t o ask t h a t of Mr. 

2 Sommer, himself. 

3 Q. Okay. The conditions i n t h i s Model Form 

4 Operating Agreement are e s s e n t i a l l y what you requested on 

5 the Martinez well? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. Let's t a l k about t h a t 4 0 percent, the makeup 

8 f a c t o r . What i s t h i s w e l l producing now? 

9 A. I t c u r r e n t l y produces approximately 24 M's a 

10 day. 

11 Q. Twenty-four MCF a day? And t h a t ' s got a 

12 49-year l i f e ? 

13 A. Last week I had our engineering manager look 

14 at the w e l l and determine t h a t the EUR, estimated 

15 u l t i m a t e recovery, was 166,000 MCF, estimated t h a t at a 

16 three and a h a l f percent decline r a t e , t h a t the remaining 

17 l i f e of the w e l l i s 49 and a h a l f years. I w i l l also 

18; add, perhaps, t o my detriment, t h a t when we had o f f e r e d 

19 the 40 percent gas increase over h i s current i n t e r e s t , 

20 what would happen i s i t would -- the w e l l may l i k e l y 

21 deplete before t h a t gas balance got back down to zero. 

22 So I asked the question, what percent would i t take t o 

23 have t h a t not happen. The answer t o t h a t i s 60 percent. 

24 So~ i n order f o r tha t gas and balance t o be 

25 b u i l t o f f , we would have t o give Mr. Sommer hi s current 
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1 8.33 percent plus the a d d i t i o n a l 60 percent f o r 

2 Q. S i x t y percent of the 8.33 percent less the 

3 revenue share? 

4 A. That's e x a c t l y r i g h t . 

5 Q. And you'd have t o give i t t o them at tha t 60 

6 percent -- I guess I'm not understanding. Forty percent 

7 j u s t e x a c t l y equals the l i f e of the well? 

8 A. A c t u a l l y , the 40 percent probably extended 

9 past the 49 and a h a l f years, okay? And, r e a l l y , i t 

10 depends on what decline curve you use. I f you use a 

11 three and a h a l f percent r a t e of decline or a 4 percent 

12 rate of decline and two and a h a l f percent of t h a t , t h a t 

13 a l l got very v a r i a b l e out toward the end of t h i s curve. 

14 Q. I f we would grant t h i s , and assuming your 

15 assumptions are c o r r e c t , we would e s s e n t i a l l y be t a k i n g 

16 the JAS i n t e r e s t out of the w e l l ; i s t h a t correct? 

17 A. Taking the i n t e r e s t out of the well? 

18 Q. They would get -- a l l they would do i s make up" 

19 the -- out of the over-production now? 

2 0 A. No. They would continue t o get t h e i r 8 

21 percent. That 40 percent would be -- the imbalance would 

22 be b u i l t o f f , but they would continue t o get t h e i r 8 

23 percent. And that 40 percent a d d i t i o n a l or 60 percent 

24 a d d i t i o n a l would b u i l d o f f t h a t imbalance. 

25 Q. I t h i n k I s l i p p e d a cog here. Can you e x p l a i n 
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1 t h a t t o me again? 

2 A. I ' l l t r y . Let's use the 40 percent. That 

3 a d d i t i o n a l 40 percent volume would -- th a t 40 percent 

4 volume works o f f t h a t gas imbalance, okay? The 8 percent 

5 they would continue t o receive through the l i f e of the 

6 w e l l . 

7 Q. And they're 8,200 MCF under-produced; i s t h a t 

8 correct? 

9 A. Yes. We have a gas imbalance t h a t ' s gotten 

10 q u i t e large f o r the volume and the l i f e of t h i s w e l l . 

11 That's a f a c t . We don't debate t h a t . I n my mind, the 

12 best s o l u t i o n at t h i s p o i n t i n time i s t o s e t t l e out t h a t 

13 gas imbalance today, h i s t o r i c a l p r i c e s , move forward and 

14 market -- have them market t h e i r gas, or we w i l l market 

15 f o r them, t h e i r 8 percent share, f o r the remaining l i f e 

16 of the w e l l less JIBs, expenses, which include lease 

17 operating costs, which i s i n c l u s i v e of COPAS overhead 

18 r a t e s . That's the s o l u t i o n to t h i s whole problem. 

19 Q. At 24 MCF a day, up there they're making about 

20 $2.50 t o $3 an MCF. So we're looking at 60-plus d o l l a r s 

21 a day from t h a t w e l l . You take the r o y a l t y out of t h a t , 

22 you're looking a t , oh -- I'm assuming the r o y a l t i e s are 

2 3 a l l near the same at the eight? 

24 A. Yes. 

2 5 Q. So you're looking somewhere around $52 per day 
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1 and the costs at 550 per day are j u s t under $20, so 

2 you're looking at $40 a day, which i s about $1,200 a 

3 month. But i t concerns me th a t you're c a l c u l a t i n g a 

4 49-year l i f e at -- what was the decline rate? 

5 A. Three and a h a l f percent. 

6 Q. That seems a w f u l l y o p t i m i s t i c f o r the l i f e . 

7 A. Perhaps i t i s . Obviously, t h i s i s a marginal 

8 w e l l . I t may not l a s t t h a t long, p a r t i c u l a r l y i f i t 

9 becomes uneconomic as the pr i c e s decline. At th a t p o i n t 

10 you reach what we c a l l the d e p l e t i o n p o i n t . Again, I go 

11 back t o the normalized i n d u s t r y standard. At th a t 

12 d e p l e t i o n p o i n t , you s e t t l e out t h i s cash imbalance at 

13 h i s t o r i c a l p r i c i n g , less t h a t co-owner's share of the 

14 lease operating expenses t h a t were necessary t o produce 

15 the w e l l . I t ' s a marginal w e l l . You're e x a c t l y c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. And you t a l k e d a l i t t l e b i t about the Ernst 

17 and Young overhead r a t e s . How are they r e l a t e d t o the 

18 COPAS rates? I guess I d i d n ' t f o l l o w what was going on 

19 there. 

2 0 A. I can speculate. I don't know the correct 

21 answer f o r sure. I t h i n k what they do i s j u s t an 

22 i n d u s t r y survey. They survey operators t o come up w i t h 

23 those numbers, as opposed t o COPAS, which uses some 

24 f a c t o r i n g f o r an i n f l a t i o n r a t e . They look at the a c t u a l 

25 w e l l costs, they accelerate i t over the past year, the 
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1 wage p r i c e index type data to come up w i t h t h e i r d e t a i l . 

2 This i s j u s t a survey of operators, saying, "What are you 

3 charging?" I t h i n k t h a t would be the d i s t i n c t i o n between 

4 the two. 

5 Q. I n an i d e a l world, the COPAS ra t e would be the 

6 r a t e t h a t Ernst and Young comes up i n t h e i r survey. But 

7 i n r e a l i t y , there are d i f f e r e n c e s ; r i g h t ? 

8 A. There would appear t o be, yes 

9 Q. So the COPAS amount i s the act u a l amount 

10 negotiated i n t h a t year, escalated -- I'm assuming i t ' s 

11 always escalated -- by some percentage t h a t i s c a l c u l a t e d 

12 by COPAS? 

13 A. Yes, but i t has not always been escalated. 

14 There have been years where i t declined 

15 Q. Yeah> there have been. I apologize f o r t h a t . 

16 So when you t e s t i f i e d t o the Ernst and Young overhead 

17 rat e s , we so r t of switched horses. We've gone from 

18 t a l k i n g about the COPAS rate which i s ca l c u l a t e d -- which 

19 was the 1984 negotiated rate times the 240 some-odd 

2 0 percent? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . 

22 Q. But t h a t w a s n ' t the n e g o t i a t e d r a t e t h a t t h e 

23 JAS i n t e r e s t s n e g o t i a t e d , because t h e y w e r e n ' t p a r t y t o 

24 t h a t agreement t h a t you were t a l k i n g a b o u t ; r i g h t ? 

25 A. T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 
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Do you happen t o know -- on t h e o t h e r w e l l , 

2 t h e model o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t was s i g n e d i n 2006, do 

3 you happen t o know what the o p e r a t i n g overhead a l l o w a b l e 

4 i n t h a t agreement was? We d i d n ' t get a l l o f the 

5 agreement. 

6 MR. HALL: Mr. Chairman, we ask t h a t we be 

7 a l l o w e d t o supplement t h e r e c o r d w i t h t h e e n t i r e t y of 

8 t h a t J o i n t O p e r a t i n g Agreement so the r e c o r d i s complete. 

9 We ' l l g e t t h a t t o you. 

10 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Do the Commissioners 

11 have any o b j e c t i o n ? Mr. H a l l , I'm not sure i f we can g e t 

12 t h e i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t we're t a l k i n g about. I'm not sure 

13 t h a t ' s p r o p e r . 

14 THE WITNESS: Without h a v i n g i t i n f r o n t 

15 o f me, I w i l l say t h a t i t l i k e l y was somewhere between 

16 350 t o $500 . 

17 Q. (By Chairman Fesmire) What was t h a t t h a t 

18 was i n 2006? 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

20 Q. Do you know t h e depth o f t h a t McCroden w e l l ? 

21 A. Th i s was a Mesaverde w e l l , and t h a t ' s deeper 

22 t h a n t h e P i c t u r e d C l i f f . 

23 Q. And the overhead t h e r e was between 350 and 

24 $550? 

25 A. Yes, t o s t a r t , under t h a t J o i n t O p e r a t i n g 
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Agreement. That's t y p i c a l l y a negotiated number entered 

2 i n t o at the time t h a t these agreements are contemplated 

3 between working i n t e r e s t p a r t i e s . 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And what was the COPAS 

5 e x h i b i t , Mr. Hall? 

6 MR. HALL: The i n f l a t i o n index was 21. 

7 Q. (By Chairman Fesmire) I f we take 350 t o 550 

8 s t a r t i n g i n 2006 --

9 A. Yes. You would go t o the second page of t h a t 

10 e x h i b i t and the top l i n e , go a l l the way over t o 2006, 

11 and you would drop down t o 2009, and so t h a t r a t e 

12 Q. What would t h a t f a c t o r be? 

13 A. B a s i c a l l y , 123.19 percent. 

14 Q. I f we apply 123 percent t o the 350 t o - - what 

15 was the maximum, 550? 

16 A. Yes, I would guess so. I don't have t h a t w i t h 

17 me. 

18 Q. So we're t a l k i n g about, at a maximum, $650 f o r 

19 a deeper well? 

20 A. Yes. That's r i g h t . 

21 Q. Why would the Martinez Well r e q u i r e -- what 

22 was i t you're asking -- 800? 

23 A. 860 some-odd -- yes. I t was because the 

24 a p p l i c a t i o n of the COPAS i n f l a t i o n f a c t o r s caused th a t t o 

25 occur. I t doesn't become a judgment c a l l at some point 
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1 down the road. I t ' s j u s t a very automatically imposed 

2 i n f l a t i o n f a c t o r using industry-accepted procedures and 

3 standards devised by COPAS. 

4 Q. You see the p o i n t I'm t r y i n g t o make? You've 

5 got a deeper w e l l , and i f you take an agreement t h a t t he 

6 JAS i n t e r e s t s were a p a r t y t o and i n f l a t e the maximum t o 

7 t h a t , you're s t i l l , you know, by a f a c t o r of 25, 30 

8 percent, under what you a l l are asking f o r the Martinez 

9 We11. 

10 A. Yes, th a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

11 Q. Turning t o E x h i b i t 3, I've got a whole slew of 

12 questions there. You i n d i c a t e d that Amadito Valdez i s 

13 not p a r t i c i p a t i n g , e i t h e r , t h a t h is and the JAS i n t e r e s t s 

14 were the only ones? 

15 A. Yes. Mr. Valdez had signed the J o i n t 

16 Operating Agreement and i s not marketing h i s share, so --

17 Q. Why aren't you seeking t o , i n essence, make 

18 him a p a r t of the pooling agreement, also? 

19 A. I don't know how t o answer t h a t . We have 

20 attempted t o contact Mr. Amadito. We've sent him l e t t e r s 

21 t o ask him t o accommodate h i s s i t u a t i o n , and he's never 

22 responded. We j u s t can't seem t o work w i t h the man. 

23 Q. But I guess the p o i n t I'm t r y i n g t o make, i f 

24 you're going to t h i s expense and t h i s e f f o r t t o modify 

25 the p o o l i n g agreement f o r the JAS i n t e r e s t , why aren't we 
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1 t a l k i n g about Valdez i n t e r e s t , too? 

2 A. I would assume t h a t the m o d i f i c a t i o n t o the 

3 pooling order would accommodate h i s i n t e r e s t , as w e l l , 

4 perhaps. 

5 Q. Okay. Talking about, again, on Ex h i b i t 3, the 

6 type of i n t e r e s t , "OR," I'm assuming i s override? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. "RY" i s r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t ? 

9 A. "RY" i s r o y a l t y . 

10 Q. And "URI" i s unsigned revenue i n t e r e s t ? 

11 A. Unleased r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t . 

12 Q. Royalty or revenue? 

13 A. Royalty. 

14 Q. Unleased r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t . And "UMI" i s 

15 unleased mineral i n t e r e s t ? 

16 A. Yes, s i e r . 

17 Q. How does an unleased mineral i n t e r e s t d i f f e r 

18 from an unleased r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t ? 

19 A. I t h i n k what we attempted t o do there was 

20 d i f f e r e n t i a t e -- break out the JAS working i n t e r e s t from 

21 t h e i r one-eighth r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t . I t was an 

22 accommodation t o be able t o account f o r t h a t one-eighth 

23 i n t e r e s t . 

24 Q. Now, t o make sure I understand what 's going on 

2 5 i n the next deck, the revenue DOI deck, what you've done 
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1 i s you've taken t h e i r revenue or r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t -- and 

2 I have a tendency t o group them together, and I know 

3 they're not, so i f I misstate t h a t , I apologize -- but 

4 you've taken t h a t and d i v i d e d i t by the 9.027, which i s 

5 the JAS i n t e r e s t and the -- how do you get from 8.3 3 

6 percent times t h e i r seven-eighths t o the 10 percent or 

7 near the 10 percent th a t ' s the reduction here? 

8 A. Well, again, I don't have those c a l c u l a t i o n s 

9 i n f r o n t of me, but I believe i t was done by t a k i n g the 

10 8.33 plus a couple of those other numbers t o get --

11 Q. The Martinez and the --

12 A. Whatever would add up t o 90 percent. 

13 Q. To get t h i s number, you d i v i d e t h e i r revenue 

14 i n t e r e s t by t h i s percentage, and t h a t ' s t o d i s t r i b u t e t he 

15 revenue stream from current production to those owners 

16 who have --

17 A. ~- who share i n that stream. Again, I do not 

18 t e s t i f y t o be an expert here at a l l , but I w i l l t r y --

19 and you've already determined how bad my math can be. As 

20 I understand how the i n f l a t i o n f a c t o r s work, and, again, 

21 t h i s i s common t o the in d u s t r y , l e t ' s assume t h a t we 

22 have -- Energen has a 50 percent working i n t e r e s t i n a 

23 w e l l , Exxon has a 50 percent working i n t e r e s t , same w e l l . 

24 We both have a r o y a l t y owner f o r one-eighth r o y a l t y . But 

2 5 f o r me and f o r Exxon I would now have 5 0 percent gross 
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1 working i n t e r e s t and a 3 7 and a h a l f percent net revenue 

2 i n t e r e s t . Now, 37 and a h a l f plus the 12 and a h a l f 

3 percent, so - - okay. So we both have those decks. 

4 I'm s e l l i n g my gas, Exxon i s s e l l i n g t h e i r 

5 gas, s p l i t stream. I get a check f o r my gas f o r $100. 

6 When t h a t check comes i n the door, i f I apply th a t t o 100 

7 percent deck, $50 i s going over t o Exxon and i t shouldn't 

8 because t h a t ' s my money, so I've i n f l a t e d my deck. I n 

9 t h i s case I've taken my net d i v i d e d by my gross, my 37.5 

10 d i v i d e d by 45, which gives me .75. So t h a t check comes 

11 i n . I t h i t s . $75 i s mine and $25 goes t o my r o y a l t y 

12 owners and zero goes t o the Exxon deck. 

13 That's about the best I can do t o t r y t o 

14 exp l a i n how tha t works. The theory i s so t h a t when I'm 

15 s e l l i n g my gas, I have -- another p a r t y i s s e l l i n g t h e i r 

16 gas. When my check comes i n , i t doesn't get booked t o 

17 the 100 percent deck, which would cause a p o r t i o n of my 

18 money t o go to Exxon. 

19 Q. And you're s e l l i n g -- I t h i n k you're s e l l i n g 

20 100 percent of the gas from t h i s w e l l ; correct? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. But a p o r t i o n , about 10 percent of th a t 

23 production i s -- and I don't mean t h i s a c c u s a t o r i l y --

24 but almost 10 percent of t h a t gas i s n ' t yours t o s e l l . 

25 A. Right. 
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1 Q. So what t h i s does i s adjust those r o y a l t y 

2 i n t e r e s t s f o r t h a t gas th a t every one of these people i s , 

3 i n essence, b u i l d i n g up a debt, a gas debt, l e t ' s c a l l 

4 i t , t o the JAS i n t e r e s t and the other unsigned i n t e r e s t s ? 

5 I s t h a t --

6 A. I would say th a t t h a t ' s p r e t t y accurate. 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l the 

8 questions I have. Mr. H a l l , do you have any r e d i r e c t ? 

9 MR. HALL: B r i e f l y , Mr. Chairman. 

10 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

11 BY MR. HALL: 

12 Q. Let's make sure the record i s cl e a r and our 

13 understanding i s cle a r on the various i n t e r e s t s here. I f 

14 we r e f e r back to E x h i b i t 3, the revenue decks, i s i t 

15 c o r r e c t t h a t the i n t e r e s t of Josie Gallegos, Amadito 

16 Valdez and the Estate of Luis Martinez are a l l 

17 p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n the w e l l pursuant to a J o i n t Operating 

18 Agreement? 

19 A. Yes, th a t ' s c o r r e c t . They a l l signed a J o i n t 

2 0 Operating Agreement. 

21 Q. And i n the case of Luis Martinez, when he 

22 p a r t i c i p a t e s as a mineral i n t e r e s t owner, d i d he 

23 p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h 100 percent of h i s i n t e r e s t ? 

24 A. I t h i n k -- yes, he d i d . 

2 5 Q. T h a t ' s why t h e r e ' s no s epa ra t e r o y a l t y co lumn 
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1 r e f l e c t e d f o r L u i s M a r t i n e z ' s i n t e r e s t ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

2 A. R i g h t . 

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Can I ask a q u e s t i o n 

4 here? Yet he's c a r r i e d on t h e r e c o r d s as an unleased 

5 m i n e r a l i n t e r e s t ? 

6 MR. HALL: Not r o y a l t y . 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Not r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t . 

8 Okay. I'm s o r r y . 

9 MR. HALL: Clear on the concept? 

10 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I ' l l f i g u r e i t out 

11 e v e n t u a l l y . 

12 Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) I s n ' t i t c o r r e c t t o say t h a t 

13 t h e r e l a t i o n s h i p between t h e L u i s M a r t i n e z e s t a t e 

14 i n t e r e s t and Energen i s pursuant t o t h a t c o n t r a c t , t h a t 

15 J o i n t O p e r a t i n g Agreement, and n o t under t h e Compulsory 

16 P o o l i n g Order? 

17 A. Yes. And t h e y a l s o s i g n e d a m a r k e t i n g 

18 agreement w i t h us t o a l l o w us t o market t h e i r gas. 

19 Q. Okay. Refer b r i e f l y t o our E x h i b i t 24. L e t ' s 

20 make sure t h e r e c o r d i s c o r r e c t on t h i s . We show on 

21 t h e r e an under-produced p o s i t i o n f o r JAS o f 8,378 MCF; 

22 c o r r e c t ? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. But t h a t i s n ot net o f t h e r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t --

25 r o y a l t y revenues t h a t have been p a i d t o JAS; c o r r e c t ? 
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1 A. That i s t h e i r gross number. 

2 Q. So t o derive the current under-produced 

3 p o s i t i o n a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the pooled seven-eighths working 

4 i n t e r e s t owner, i t ' s factored by 12 and a h a l f percent, 

5 one-eighth; correct? 

6 A. Right. 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , can I ask a 

8 couple of questions? I'm r e a l l y not f o l l o w i n g t h a t , as 

9 you can t e l l by my questions. The under-produced 

10 f i g u r e s -- I'm going to c a l l i t the 8,400 MCF -- the 

11 under-produced -- does JAS hold two i n t e r e s t s , a mineral 

12 i n t e r e s t and a r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t ? 

13 MR. HALL: No, s i r . 

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So the d i v i s i o n i s t o , 

15 b a s i c a l l y , s a t i s f y the way th a t the OCD orders are 

16 w r i t t e n . They have to pay the r o y a l t y independent of 

17 the -- on the unleased i n t e r e s t independent of the 

18 working i n t e r e s t ? 

19 MR. HALL: Exactly. 

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So t h i s 8,400 MCF, i s 

21 tha t seven-eighths? 

22 MR. HALL: That's the under-produced 

23 p o s i t i o n a t t r i b u t a b l e to the eight-eighths mineral 

24 i n t e r e s t s . 

2 5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So what's 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
3256bb0c-40f2-4fff-b828-128df298d48b 



Page 93 

1 a c t u a l l y owed t o them i s seven-eighths of t h i s ? 

2 MR. HALL: Correct. Since you're a l l o w i n g 

3 me to t e s t i f y , Mr. Chairman, f a c t o r t h a t by 12 and a h a l f 

4 percent, t h a t reduces t h a t by 1,047 MCF. The actual 

5 under-produced p o s i t i o n i s 7,331. 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

7 Q. (By Mr. Hall) Energen has operated the 

8 Martinez #1 Well since 1997? 

9 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

10 Q. I t ' s taken us 12 years t o get t o the p o s i t i o n 

11 we are now w i t h respect t o the production imbalances; i s 

12 t h a t r i g h t ? 

13 A. Yes. That's r i g h t . 

14 Q. Even though Energen acquired the w e l l w i t h JAS 

15 i n t e r e s t i n over-produced status, t h a t p o s i t i o n was 

16 worked down over the years by v i r t u e of the r e f u s a l and 

17 f a i l u r e of Sommer JAS t o allow f o r the marketing of t h e i r 

18 i n t e r e s t ; i s tha t r i g h t ? 

19 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

2 0 Q. There were a couple of questions from Mr. 

21 Bruce w i t h respect t o why there's no current D i v i s i o n 

2 2 order, Energen D i v i s i o n order, covering the Sommer JAS 

23 i n t e r e s t . Let's e s t a b l i s h the ownership of JAS i s not i n 
24 dispute at a l l ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

25 A.. No, not at a l l . 
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1 MR. HALL: That's a l l I have, Mr. 

2 Chairman. 

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, anything on 
4 that? 

5 MR. BRUCE: Just a couple. 

6 RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

7 BY MR. BRUCE: 

8 Q. And you might not know answer t o t h i s one, Mr. 

9 Rote, but i t goes back to a question or questions t h a t 

10 the Commissioners asked you. Your engineer's p r e d i c t i o n 

11 of a 49-and-a-half-year l i f e , what gas p r i c e do they use 

12 i n making t h a t p r e d i c t i o n , t h a t c a l c u l a t i o n ? 

13 A. I don't believe p r i c e was a f u n c t i o n of t h a t 

14 equation. I t h i n k i t was s t r i c t l y a volume versus time 

15 versus decline r a t e equation t h a t they used. 

16 Q. So, i n a d d i t i o n , t h a t 49.5 years would not 

17 take i n t o account any requested COPAS adjustment of the 

18 operating costs, e i t h e r ? 

19 A. As I said, I believe a l l they d i d was a simple 

20 equation of time and decline r a t e without economics b u i l t 

21 i n t o i t . 

22 MR. BRUCE: T h a t ' s a l l I have, M r . 

2 3 Chai rman. 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A n y t h i n g f u r t h e r f r o m 

25 t h e Commissioners? 
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COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

MR. SMITH: Do you mind i f I ask a 

q u e s t i o n ? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Sure. 

MR. SMITH: Mr. Rote, you r e c a l l when you 

were answering q u e s t i o n s o f Chairman Fesmire, you were 

t a l k i n g about t he McCroden w e l l , and I t h i n k you 

e s t i m a t e d t h a t the s t a r t i n g p o i n t t h e r e was 350 t o 500? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

MR. SMITH: Okay. That was b e g i n n i n g i n , 

I t h i n k , 2006; r i g h t ? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. SMITH: I s t h e d i f f e r e n c e between t h e 

f i g u r e t h a t you have, whatever i t i s , 900 o r something, 

and t h e 1.23 times t h e 500 f o r t h e McCroden w e l l , i s t h a t 

l a r g e l y a f u n c t i o n o f t h e date and time t h a t you s t a r t ? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r , I b e l i e v e t h a t t o 

be t h e case. I f I have an o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t was 

s i g n e d i n 1960, t h a t ' s 50 years ago and t h e y had a $200 

r a t e i n 1950, e s c a l a t e d over t i m e , as i n f l a t i o n w i l l have 

i t , i s a v e r y , v e r y l a r g e number today. The new JOA t h a t 

was s i g n e d l a s t year, add $1,000, you know, agreed t o 

overhead r a t e i s p r o b a b l y g o i n g t o be $1,100 today, b u t 

t h e 19 6 0 agreement may be 1,500. 

tt 
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1 MR. SMITH: Why d i d you p i c k 1984? I 

2 t h i n k t h a t ' s what you t e s t i f i e d 

3 THE WITNESS: That was the J o i n t O p e r a t i n g 

4 Agreement t h a t was signed f o r t h e M a r t i n e z W e l l by t h e 

5 o p e r a t o r and t h e co-owners a t t h a t p o i n t i n t i m e , and as 

6 the Commissioner p o i n t e d o u t , w i t h t h e e x c e p t i o n o f Mr. 

7 Sommer. 

8 MR. SMITH: Okay. Thank you. 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You're welcome. Mr. 

10 H a l l , a n y t h i n g f u r t h e r ? 

11 MR. HALL: That concludes our case on 

12 d i r e c t . 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, we've g o t 10 

14 minutes t o l u n c h . Do you want t o c a l l your f i r s t w i t n e s s 

15 or would you l i k e t o break f o r l u n c h and come back? 

16 MR. BRUCE: Why don't we j u s t break f o r 

17 lunch and come back? 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Wit h t h a t w e ' l l 

19 a d j o u r n f o r l u n c h and reconvene a t 1:00. 

20 (A l u n c h recess was taken.) 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We're back on t h e 

22 r e c o r d i n t h e c o n t i n u a t i o n o f Cause Number 13957. The 

23 r e c o r d s h o u l d r e f l e c t i t ' s 1:00 on Wednesday, May 2 7 t h . 

24 A l l t h r e e Commissioners are p r e s e n t . We, t h e r e f o r e , have 

25 a quorum. Mr. Bruce, I b e l i e v e you were g e t t i n g ready t o 
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1 c a l l your f i r s t witness. 

2 KURT A. SOMMER 

3 Having been f i r s t duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as fo l l o w s : 

4 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. BRUCE: 

6 Q. Would you please state your name f o r the 

7 record? 

8 A. Kurt A. Sommer. 

9 Q. And where do you reside? 

10 A. 756 Calle Altamira, Santa Fe, New Mexico. 

11 Q. What i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p t o JAS O i l and Gas 

12 . Company? 

13 A. I'm the t r u s t e e of the Joseph A. Sommer 

14 Revocable Trust, which i s 100 percent owner of JAS O i l 

15 and Gas, LLC. 

16 Q. And JAS O i l and Gas does own the 8.33 percent 

17 mineral i n t e r e s t i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l u n i t ? 

18 A. ' Yes, i t does. 

19 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the matters involved 

20 w i t h the t r u s t , w i t h JAS and i t s mineral i n t e r e s t 

21 involved i n t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

22 A. I am. 

23 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman I'm not 

24 q u a l i f y i n g Mr. Sommer as an expert witness. 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Not yet. 

\ 
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1 MR. BRUCE: Not yet. I could as an 

2 attorney, but --

3 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Just t o s t a r t o f f w i t h , Mr. 

4 Sommer, i f you could be b r i e f , what i s JAS's p o s i t i o n i n 

5 t h i s case? 

6 A. I t s p o s i t i o n i s p r e t t y simple. I t objects t o 

7 some of the overhead charges t h a t we're being charged and 

8 have been charged by Energen on the Martinez Well, and i t 

9 objects t o the f a c t t h a t 100 percent of the minerals are 

10 being s o l d and i t i s not being c r e d i t e d back i t s 

11 proportionate share of the sales. I n f a c t , i t i s being 

12 shown as a gas imbalance or due-to type of c r e d i t . I t 

13 objects because Energen i s using the money from the w e l l 

14 and not even paying i n t e r e s t on i t s -- on the money being 

15 received from the sales, and i t simultaneously i s 

16 charging back costs of operating the w e l l . 

17 Q. So i t ' s JAS's p o s i t i o n t h a t the gas balance 

18 and c r e d i t s should not be -- are not proper? 

19 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

2 0 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, we have t o 

21 take a short side t r i p here. The attorney f o r the 

22 Commission has a disclosure t h a t he f e e l s t h a t he 

23 e t h i c a l l y has to make before we continue. 

24 MR. SMITH: I don't believe that i s i n the 

25 nature of a c o n f l i c t , but Mr. Sommer does work f o r Mining 
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1 and Minerals D i v i s i o n , and Mining and Minerals D i v i s i o n 

2 i s one of the d i v i s i o n s f o r whom I work as ass i s t a n t 

3 general counsel. They're one of my primary charges. I 

4 believe you've done some r e a l estate work f o r MMD; i s 

5 t h a t r i g h t ? 

6 THE WITNESS: ' I f I could e x p l a i n the 

7 nature of the representation, I t h i n k y o u ' l l --

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't we l e t him 

9 f i n i s h ? 

10 THE WITNESS: Okay. 

11 MR. SMITH: No. I j u s t wanted t o b r i n g 

12 t h a t up. I f you'd l i k e t o explain the nature of the 

13 representation. I don't t h i n k I'm d i s q u a l i f i e d from 

14 representing the Commission i n t h i s matter, but I don't 

15 want any k i n d of t r o u b l e t o come up l a t e r on, so I 

16 thought I'd b r i n g i t up. And i f you a l l don't mind, 

17 maybe Mr. Sommer could discuss h i s representation of MMD. 

18 CHIARMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Sommer? 

19 THE WITNESS: Our f i r m was re t a i n e d t o 

2 0 review t i t l e r e ports and t i t l e issues and appraisals f o r 

21 MMD on property t h a t was being put up f o r s e c u r i t y by, a t 

22 the time, Phelps Dodge and now i t s successor. We 

2 3 performed t h a t work some time ago, and Phelps Dodge put 

24 up i t s c o l l a t e r a l and we reviewed the mortgages f o r the 

2 5 State of New Mexico or NMMMD. We've had a continuing 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
3256bb0c-40f2-4fff-b828-128df298d48b 



Page 100 

1 r o l e i n the sense tha t every f i v e years there's new 

2 mater i a l t o be produced and we review the ma t e r i a l f o r 

3 them. I t has nothing t o do w i t h any of the p r o p e r t i e s 

4 i n question w i t h t h i s . 

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Smith, you don't 

6 see any problem w i t h your c o n t i n u i n g i n t h i s case? 

7 MR. SMITH: No, I don't. I j u s t wanted t o 

8 make sure t h a t everyone else knew about t h i s so i f they 

9 thought there was a problem, they could raise i t now. 

10 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , do you have 

11 any concerns? 

12 MR. HALL: I don't believe so. There's no 

13 i n d i c a t i o n t h a t Mr. Smith has represented the agency on 

14 any matter r e l a t i n g t o t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n at a l l , as I 

15 understand what you're saying, so I don't t h i n k the r u l e s 

16 would p r o h i b i t him. 

17 MR. SMITH: MMD i s a completely d i f f e r e n t 

18 d i v i s i o n . I t ' s a mining d i v i s i o n , and the -- I mean, the 

19 properties t h a t are involved i n Mr. Sommer's work are 

20 pro p e r t i e s owned by other companies elsewhere and they're 

21 used as c o l l a t e r a l f o r f i n a n c i a l assurance. They don't 

22 have anything t o do w i t h t h i s property. 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , i f at any 

24 p o i n t i t gets t o where you do have concerns, would you 

25 please r a i s e those concers at t h a t time? 
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1 MR. HALL: I w i l l . 

2 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, I don't know 

3 t h a t you'd have a s t a n d i n g t o o b j e c t . I s t h e r e any 

4 problem f o r you? 

5 MR.. BRUCE: Nonetheless, I have no 

6 o b j e c t i o n . 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you go ahead 

8 and c o n t i n u e and re-ask t h e l a s t q u e s t i o n . 

9 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) So as a r e s u l t , i t ' s JAS's 

10 p o s i t i o n t h a t gas c r e d i t s , whether i t ' s o v e r - p r o d u c t i o n 

11 o r u n d e r - p r o d u c t i o n , are i n a p p r o p r i a t e w i t h r e s p e c t t o a 

12 f o r c e - p o o l e d w e l l u n i t ? 

13 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

14 Q. L e t ' s go t o your e x h i b i t s and l e t ' s s t a r t w i t h 

15 E x h i b i t 4. E x p l a i n what t h i s i s . 

16 A. T h i s i s a l e t t e r t o S c o t t H a l l i n September o f 

17 2 005, and the request was -- t o d e a l w i t h the imbalance 

18 was e i t h e r t o d e l i v e r the a c t u a l gas t h a t was due as a 

19 c r e d i t o r shown as a c r e d i t a t the t i m e o r t o pay f o r t h e 

20 gas as a way o f d e a l i n g w i t h t h e imbalance. So i t was a 

21 demand upon Energen thr o u g h Mr. H a l l , who was 

22 r e p r e s e n t i n g them a t the ti m e , t o d e a l w i t h t h i s 

23 imbalance. 

24 Q. What was t h e i r response? 

25 A. We had no response. They wouldn't d e l i v e r t h e 
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1 gas and they wouldn't pay f o r what they were showing as a 

2 c r e d i t . 

3 Q. So you were here l i s t e n i n g t o Mr. Rote today, 

4 were you not? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. And Energen stated t h a t Sommer has made no 

7 attempt t o take i t s gas. Does t h i s l e t t e r r e f u t e that? 

8 A. This l e t t e r r e f u t e s i t . I n conversations w i t h 

9 Energen subsequent t o t h i s l e t t e r over the l a s t several 

10 years, t h e i r idea of g i v i n g us c r e d i t f o r the gas was t o 

11 take i t out of the w e l l only, even though they've sold 

12 a l l the gas. 

13 Q. Let's skip over again j u s t t o keep on the same 

14 theme, the over/under-production. What i s E x h i b i t 5? 

15 A. E x h i b i t 5 i s a statement of gas imbalance as 

16 of February 2 0 07, which showed what the gas imbalance 

17 tha t Energen believed was due t o JAS, Josie Gallegos, the 

18 Luis Martinez Estate, Amadito Valdez and the 

19 over-production t h a t was taken out of the w e l l by 

20 Energen. 

21 Q. Now, I've handed you also what was marked as I 

22 t h i n k Energen E x h i b i t 24? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And t h a t ' s a more up- to-da te I be l i eve 

25 t h a t ' s a more up- to-date gas ba lanc ing statement? 
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A. Yes. I a c t u a l l y received a statement I 

2 believe through A p r i l , which shows a l i t t l e over 8,500 i n 

3 terms of gas imbalance. 

4 Q. I f you take Energen's -- I t h i n k Mr. Rote al s o 

5 t e s t i f i e d t h a t , other than JAS, a l l of these other people 

6 were under a JOA or some type of w r i t t e n agreement w i t h 

7 Energen? 

8 A. That's my understanding, yes. 

9 Q. I f you compare E x h i b i t 5, which i s from 

10 February '07 t o the more recent statement over two years 

11 l a t e r , the under-production keeps increasing f o r a l l 

12 these people, does i t not? 

13 A. I t has increased -- i t appears i t has only 

14 increased as to the Estate of Luis Martinez s l i g h t l y , and 

15 i t appears i t ' s increased, as w e l l , t o -- a c t u a l l y , i t 

16 appears t h a t i t ' s increased as t o a l l of them. 

17 Q. I f t h a t ' s the case, what does signing a JOA 

18 get you? 

19 A. I t won't get me anything because i t won't deal 

20 w i t h t h i s imbalance and the money th a t ' s been used and 

21 taken f o r the sales. 

22 Q. Let's move on to your E x h i b i t 8 at t h i s p o i n t . 

23 I t h i n k t h i s might have been i n Energen's e x h i b i t 

24 booklet, also. But could you i d e n t i f y t h a t and s t a t e t o 

25 the Commission what your p o s i t i o n i s w i t h respect t o t h i s 
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1 l e t t e r ? 

2 A. This i s a l e t t e r t h a t was w r i t t e n by Joseph 

3 Sommer, my f a t h e r , on October 15, 2002, t o Mr. Rote 

4 t r y i n g t o e x p l a i n to Mr. Rote t h a t the JOA was never 

5 signed by him and to assume t h a t he should be operating 

6 under the terms and conditions of t h a t JOA as the basis 

7 on which the costs and operation and supervision under 

8 the pooling agreement was in a p p r o p r i a t e , because there 

9 was never a signed JOA. He was also t r y i n g t o explain 

10 t h a t the imbalances at the r a t e of 40 percent, which was 

11 o f f e r e d , would never pay out. And a consequence of t h a t , 

12 he was t r y i n g t o exp l a i n t o Mr. Rote t h a t i t was 

13 inappropriate t o s e t t l e on the basis t h a t was being 

14 proposed. 

15 Q. Let's move back t o your E x h i b i t 7. What i s 

16 t h a t l e t t e r ? 

17 A. I t ' s a l e t t e r from me dated December 21st, 

18 2006, t o Energen dealing w i t h a payment of money due f o r 

19 pro r a t a share of a work-over on the McCroden Well which y 

20 I agreed t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n f o r t h a t work-over of t h a t 

21 w e l l . And so what I was doing i s t r a n s m i t t i n g the 

22 $12,949.56 t o Energen t o make sure t h a t we were c r e d i t e d 

23 w i t h our cost of the work-over. 

24 Q. And t h i s i s the deeper Mesaverde t e s t t h a t i s 

25 i n the west h a l f of Section 2? 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
3256bb0c-40f2-4fff-b828-128df298d48b 



Page 105 
1 A. I believe so, yes. 

2 Q. And I notice i n the second paragraph you say, 

3 " I expect t h a t we w i l l be paid our pro r a t a share of a l l 

4 gas sales on a monthly basis." Have you been? 

5 A. No, I have not. I n f a c t , t h i s month I wrote a 

6 l e t t e r and explained that they had no basis on which t o 

7 do a gas imbalance on the McCroden w e l l p a r t i c u l a r l y 

8 because we had signed an agreement w i t h them. I t wasn't 

9 s i g n i f i c a n t at t h i s p o i n t , but i t was about 200 MCF. 

10 Q. Would you agree t h a t the best way t o resolve 

11 t h i s issue i s f o r a lump sum t o be pa i d t o JAS and then 

12 move forward on an ongoing basis w i t h respect to gas 

13 sales? 

14 A. I believe the best way t o resolve t h i s i s f o r 

15 JAS t o be paid i t s pro r a t a shares of h i s t o r i c a l sales of 

16 t h i s w e l l t h a t has been c o l l e c t e d by Energen, i n c l u d i n g 

17 the imbalance t h a t i t claims as a c r e d i t which I t h i n k 

18 they got as an o f f s e t f o r the cost of the w e l l t h a t they 

19 took c r e d i t f o r i n t h i s imbalance t h a t they're showing, 

20 together w i t h i n t e r e s t at the s t a t u t o r y r a t e from the 3 0 

21 days from the date of payment, together w i t h the a t t o r n e y 

22 fees and costs t h a t we've incurred i n having t o enforce 

23 t h i s p a r t i c u l a r matter. 

24 Q. Let's discuss the overhead rates a l i t t l e b i t . 

25 And, f i r s t of a l l , I t h i n k t h i s goes back to a question 
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1 t h a t was asked of Mr. Rote. What i s E x h i b i t 12, Sommer 

2 E x h i b i t 12? 

3 A. E x h i b i t 12 i s a Model Form Operating Agreement 

4 t h a t appears t o have been tendered v i s - a - v i s or w i t h 

5 respect t o the Martinez Well #1. 

6 Q. And down at the bottom i t shows that t h i s was 

7 Energen E x h i b i t 20 i n the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n case? 

8 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. And d i d Joseph A. Sommer, your predecessor 

10 i n t e r e s t , sign t h i s agreement? 

11 A. No. He refused to because they wouldn't make 

12 any changes i n i t t o r e f l e c t what he thought was f a i r and 

13 proper, and i t also d i d not deal w i t h the imbalance, so 

14 he refused t o sign an operating agreement. 

15 Q. And t h i s p o r t i o n of the operating agreement 

16 two or tr e e pages back also includes the overhead rates? 

17 A. I t does. I believe i t does. I f you look on 

18 page 3 of t h i s E x h i b i t C, there's an overhead rate of 

19 $350 a w e l l . I don't f i n d t h a t amount objectionable. I t 

20 was t h a t i t d i d n ' t deal w i t h the f a c t t h a t the p r i o r 

21 chairges were based on higher amounts. 

22 Q. And w i t h respect t o overhead rates, l e t ' s move 

23 on to your E x h i b i t 6. What i s that? 

24 A. This appears t o be a statement from Energen t o 

25 JAS O i l and Gas f o r 9/30/07 showing what they believe t o 
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1 be the charges t h a t were due at t h a t p a r t i c u l a r time f o r 

2 t h i s w e l l . 

3 Q. And i f y o u ' l l t u r n t o page 2. Look at i t s 

4 f i x e d producing overhead. What i s t h a t amount? 

5 A. Fixed producing overhead was $748.12. 

6 Q. That's the amount they requested at the 

7 hearing when we went t o hearing i n November of 2 0 07? 

8 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. They were already charging you t h a t amount? 

10 A. That's what they were charging. That's what 

11 the charges have been based upon. That's c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. So even though there was no agreement as t o 

13 the overhead ra t e s , they were already charging you t h a t 

14 amount? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. Move on t o E x h i b i t 9. B r i e f l y , what i s t h a t , 

17 Mr. Sommer? 

18 A. This i s a l e t t e r t h a t was w r i t t e n by Thomas F. 

19 McKenna, who was law partner of my f a t h e r at the time, i n 

20 A p r i l 1961, dealing w i t h the pooling arrangement that was 

21 entered by the Commission at th a t p a r t i c u l a r time. So 

22 i t ' s - - t h i s l e t t e r deals w i t h the pool i n g order that was 

23 entered t h a t i s the subject of t h i s hearing. 

24 Q. And what does the t h i r d paragraph state? 

25 A. "Our p o s i t i o n i s tha t the applicant should be 
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1 l i m i t e d t o the lowest a c t u a l expenditures plus a 

2 reasonable charge f o r supervision a f t e r the w e l l i s 

3 completed and put on production i f such i s the case." 

4 Q. I s t h a t s t i l l JAS's p o s i t i o n ? 

5 A. I t continues t o be JAS's and i t s predecessor's 

6 p o s i t i o n . 

7 Q. I asked Mr. Rote a question and he di d n ' t know 

8 about i t , but I referenced a management fee t h a t had been 

9 charged by Energen against the Sommer i n t e r e s t . Do you 

10 know about that? 

11 A. There was a management fee imposed at one 

12 p o i n t as p a r t of t h e i r b i l l i n g s . I don't see a copy of 

13 i t i n the e x h i b i t s we have here. I t h i n k t h a t ' s what 

14 you're probably r e f e r r i n g t o . 

15 Q. Was t h a t a f i x e d fee t h a t was charged on a 

16 monthly basis? 

17 A. I t was at the time. I don't believe t h a t i t ' s 

18 imposed now. I t h i n k i f you look at the e x h i b i t we were 

19 j u s t l o o king a t , t h a t i t ' s shown as overhead now. 

2 0 Q. Were there ever discussions w i t h them 

21 regarding the reason f o r charging t h i s management fee? 

22 A. There's numerous l e t t e r s . I f you look at the 

23 p e t i t i o n , there's an e x h i b i t book back and f o r t h about 

24 the reasonableness of the overhead charges t h a t Mr. 

2 5 Sommer was contesting. 
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1 Q. F i n a l l y , w i t h respect t o the e x h i b i t s , I ' l l 

2 ask you about E x h i b i t 14, Sommer E x h i b i t 14. Mr. Sommer, 

3 I believe t h a t t h a t ' s already been submitted as Energen 

4 E x h i b i t 2 0 today. Have you reviewed t h i s e x h i b i t which 

5 was prepared by Energen w i t h respect t o the Pictured 

6 C l i f f s overhead rates? 

7 A. I d i d review i t , and what i t t o l d me i s t h a t 

8 there were lower charges going on f o r s i m i l a r l y - s i t u a t e d 

9 wells than what was being charged by Energen as the basis 

10 of i t s JIB costs being b i l l e d t o JAS O i l and Gas. 

11 Q. And JAS does not object t o reasonable charges, 

12 does i t ? 

13 A. No. JAS's p o s i t i o n i s t h a t we were w i l l i n g t o 

14 pay a reasonable charge and Mr. Sommer's o b j e c t i o n was 

15 t h a t the charges were not reasonable and, th e r e f o r e , he 

16 wasn't going t o pay them, p a r t i c u l a r l y i n l i g h t of the 

17 f a c t t h a t they were c o l l e c t i n g the revenue on the sales 

18 and not paying i t . 

19 Q. You agree t h a t JAS d i d sign a JOA f o r the 

2 0 McCroden Well? 

21 A. Yes, we signed the -- I signed the JIB and the 

22 model operating agreement a f t e r having marked i t up and 

23 being t o l d that they would not accept any changes to the 

24 operating agreement. Take i t or leave i t was, b a s i c a l l y , 

25 the bottom l i n e . And i f we were going t o invest i n the 
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1 w e l l , I f e l t t h a t the only prospect of g e t t i n g our 

2 payment was t o sign the operating agreement as presented. 

3 Q. And the operating agreements f o r the deeper 

4 w e l l are s u b s t a n t i a l l y less than the $806 tha t they're 

5 asking today? 

6 A. I'm not sure what t h e i r c u r r e n t charges are 

7 but they began at $350 per month. 

8 Q. Mr. Sommer, do you have anything else t h a t 

9 you'd l i k e t o s t a t e w i t h respect t o t h i s matter? 

10 MR. HALL: I'm going t o ob j e c t . That's a 

11 big question. 

12 Q. Do you have any f u r t h e r comments wi t h respect 

13 to the over-production/under-production and making t h a t 

14 up and s e l l i n g Sommer's share of gas? 

15 A. The only comment I have t o make i s t h a t the 

16 statements have been shown f o r E x h i b i t 24, which was i n 

17 Energen's packet. I t h i n k i t would be u n f a i r to use t h a t 

18 as the basis of determining whether or not t h a t i s , i n 

19 f a c t , the amount owed. Because i f an o f f s e t was shown i n 

20 the purchase of t h i s w e l l f o r t h a t overpayment, 

21 e s s e n t i a l l y what i s cre d i t e d , and then they c o l l e c t e d i t 

22 again from Joseph Sommer, as the owner at the time, I 

23 think they're getting paid twice. So I think that there \ 

24 ought t o be a s u b s t a n t i a t i o n as t o the amount of the | 

25 imbalance. 
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1 Q. Mr. Sommer, were E x h i b i t s 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 

2 prepared by you o r t a k e n from JAS's business record? 

3 A. They were ta k e n from our business r e c o r d s . 

4 MR. BRUCE: And, Mr. Examiner, o b v i o u s l y 

5 t h e r e ' s some d u p l i c a t i o n -- Mr. Chairman, t h e r e ' s 

6 o b v i o u s l y some d u p l i c a t i o n o f e x h i b i t s . Sommer E x h i b i t 1 

7 i s t h e o r i g i n a l p o o l i n g o r d e r . Sommer E x h i b i t 2 i s t h e 

8 amended o r d e r R-19-16-A. 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Rather t h a n t r y t o s o r t 

10 them o u t here, why don't we j u s t , as l o n g as t h e r e ' s no 

11 o b j e c t i o n , go ahead --

12 MR. BRUCE: They're e i t h e r d u p l i c a t e s o f 

13 e x h i b i t s o r some D i v i s i o n o r d e r s , and I would ask t h a t 

14 E x h i b i t s 1 t h r o u g h 14 be a d m i t t e d i n t o t h e r e c o r d . 

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A d m i t t i n g t h a t t h e r e ' s 

16 some d u p l i c a t e s , Mr. H a l l , do you have any o b j e c t i o n ? 

17 MR. HALL: Only w i t h r e s p e c t t o one 

18 e x h i b i t , 14, i t ' s i n d i c a t e d t h a t t h a t ' s a copy of our 

19. E x h i b i t 20, which shows a p p l i c a b l e overhead charges as o f 

20 2009. The JAS e x h i b i t i s from 2007. Those --

21 MR. BRUCE: I would withdraw t h a t one, Mr. 

22 Chairman, and j u s t go w i t h Energen's E x h i b i t 20. 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: One t h r o u g h 13? 

24 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

2 5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: N o t i n g no o b j e c t i o n t o 
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1 E x h i b i t s 1 t h r o u g h 13, th e y w i l l be a d m i t t e d t o the 

2 r e c o r d . E x h i b i t 14 w i l l be s t r i c k e n and not a d m i t t e d t o 

3 t h e r e c o r d . 

4 ( E x h i b i t s 1 t h r o u g h 13 were a d m i t t e d . ) 

5 ( E x h i b i t 14 was s t r i c k e n . ) 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A n y t h i n g f u r t h e r , Mr. 

7 Bruce? 

8 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . I pass t h e w i t n e s s . 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l ? 

10 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

11 BY MR. HALL: 

12 Q. F i r s t , Mr. Sommer, can we s t i p u l a t e b e f o r e t h e 

13 Commissioners, we're f r i e n d s ? We've known each o t h e r --

14 A. -- f o r a l o n g t i m e . 

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E v e r y t h i n g i s coming 

16 o u t today. 

17 Q. Let me ask you a couple o f t h i n g s about y o u r 

18 t e s t i m o n y . You r e f e r r e d t o your E x h i b i t Number 4. L e t ' s 

19 l o o k a t t h a t . I t ' s t h e September 27, 2005 l e t t e r f rom 

2 0 y o u r f a t h e r . I s i t a c c u r a t e t o say he was demanding 

21 $15.50 MCF f o r gas? 

22 A. I f he was g o i n g t o be p a i d d i r e c t l y by 

2 3 Energen, he was demanding t h a t t h a t was the MCF charge 

24 t h a t was on t h e New York Stock Exchange t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

2 5 day, or i f t h e y d i d n ' t want t o pay t h a t , he was a s k i n g 
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1 t h a t they d e l i v e r the gas i t s e l f t o a place where he 

2 could s e l l i t . 

3 Q. By d e l i v e r i n g the gas, what do you mean? 

4 A. T e l l us where you w i l l d e l i v e r whatever the 

5 imbalance i s and we w i l l f i n d a buyer f o r i t . Gas being 

6 the fu n g i b l e commodity, Energen being i n the business o f 

7 production of gas, i t has t h a t commodity. Anywhere i t 

8 could do an exchange agreement, we would do the exchange 

9 agreement i f they would t e l l him where they'd d e l i v e r i t . 

10 That's what he was asking. 

11 Q. You were asking f o r approximately 7,000 MCF t o 

12 be de l i v e r e d t o you FOB some warehouse? 

13 A. Some tr a n s p o r t place. 

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t ' s i n the back of the 

15 t r u c k . 

16 MR. HALL: I t ' s i n the back of the t r u c k , 

17 Mr. Chairman. 

18 Q. Do you have any evidence t o present t o the 

19- Commission t h a t anyone i n the San Juan Basin ever 

20 received $15.50 f o r gas? 

21 A. I have no evidence th a t anyone i n the San Juan 

22 Basin received t h a t amount. 

23 Q. I thought I understood you t o say that there 

24 was no response received from e i t h e r myself or Energen? 

25 A. I received no w r i t t e n response t o t h i s l e t t e r . 
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1 Q. You're not representing t o the Commission t h a t 

2 no response was made at any time? 

3 A. No. I j u s t r e c a l l not r e c e i v i n g a w r i t t e n 

4 response w i t h i n the times required by t h i s l e t t e r . 

5 Q. Y o u ' l l acknowledge the r e c e i p t of subsequent 

6 l e t t e r s from --

7 A. There were subsequent l e t t e r s from you and 

8 there were discussions w i t h various people w i t h i n Energen 

9 regarding the d e l i v e r y of the gas. 

10 Q. So y o u ' l l have t o agree t h a t Energen was 

11 responsive, not t o your s a t i s f a c t i o n , but they were 

12 responsive? 

13 A. Energen responded by not d e l i v e r i n g the gas 

14 and by not tendering any money. That's c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. But they responded i n w r i t i n g and i n 

16 conversation? I s tha t accurate? 

17 A. They d i d . 

18 Q. Show us t h i s management fee you're o b j e c t i n g 

19 t o . 

20 A. I don't have a copy of i t i n f r o n t of me. 

21 Whsit Joe was o b j e c t i n g t o p r i m a r i l y was the overhead 

22 chairges that were being imposed upon him through the JIB 

23 b i l l i n g that he received. I don't have a p a r t i c u l a r -- I 

24 get one every month. I d i d not b r i n g one. 

25 Q. So when we say, "management fees," are we also 
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1 speaking of the overhead and supervision fees as the same 

2 thing? 

3 A. I believe t h a t i t ' s probably one i n the same 

4 when you break i t out. 

5 Q. Let's s t i p u l a t e t h a t the JAS i n t e r e s t d i d 

6 p a r t i c i p a t e i n the d r i l l i n g of the McCroden C 1 Well. 

7 A. I t a b s o l u t e l y d i d p a r t i c i p a t e . 

8 Q. JAS signed the operating agreement along w i t h 

9 a l l of i t s e x h i b i t s ; correct? 

10 A. A f t e r I was t o l d my objections t o the 

11 operating agreement would not be accepted, I signed the 

12 operating agreement. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. When you signed the operating agreement f o r 

14 the McCroden Well, d i d you take the opp o r t u n i t y to review 

15 the gas balancing agreement? 

16 A. I d i d . 

17 Q. And d i d you f i n d i t t o be objectionable? 

18 A. There were p a r t s of i t I found t o be 

19 objectionable. I marked i t up. I sent i t back t o 

20 Energen. Energen said t h a t i f I didn' t l i k e i t , don't do 

21 i t . 

2 2 Q. So you have agreed t o the terms; i s t h a t 

23 correct? 

24 A. I have now agreed t o the terms. 

25 Q. Do you have any evidence t o present to the 
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Commissioners which would e s t a b l i s h t h a t the lease 

2 operating expenses t h a t have been charged are 

3 unreasonable? 

4 A. The evidence t h a t we have -- best evidence 

5 t h a t I could f i n d are two th i n g s . One, the model 

6 operating agreement t h a t was presented t o me on the 

7 McCroden Well f o r 2006, was $350. The E x h i b i t 20 that 

8 you presented shows t h a t there's a wide range of p r i c e s 

9 being charged out there f o r wells of t h i s type, 

10 s i g n i f i c a n t l y less than the 800 and some d o l l a r s t h a t 

11 Energen i s now wanting t o impose upon JAS. 

12 Q. I've confused you w i t h my question. Let's 

13 leave aside overhead and supervision charges and t a l k 

14 only about lease operating expenses. 

15 A. S t r a i g h t lease operating expenses, JAS and i t s 

16 predecessors do not object t o . 

17 Q. You're o f f e r i n g no evidence t o the Commission 

18 t o e s t a b l i s h t h a t the charges to JAS have otherwise been 

19 unreasonable; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

20 A. I'm not making an o b j e c t i o n t o those 

21 p a r t i c u l a r charges. 

22 Q. Can you o f f e r the Commission any evidence at 

23 a l l t h a t would tend t o e s t a b l i s h t h a t the current 

24 balancing statement i s i n any way i n c o r r e c t ? 

25 A. Short of a c t u a l l y going t o the w e l l logs and 
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1 looking also at the purchase agreement f o r t h i s w e l l t h a t 

2 Energen d i d w i t h Meridian over Energen's successor, and 

3 how they t r e a t e d the l i a b i l i t y , whether they got a c r e d i t 

4 f o r i t , I can't t e l l you t h a t i t ' s correct or i n c o r r e c t . 

5 That purchase agreement has not been produced t o me. I 

6 have t o take i t on good f a i t h that the number less t h a t 

7 o f f s e t t h a t they took f o r 1,030 MCF would be then 

8 c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. And we're not i n disagreement, JAS i s 

10 r e c e i v i n g r o y a l t y proceeds today; correct? 

11 A. I t i s today a f t e r an ob j e c t i o n and a l e t t e r 

12 and a demand f o r payment w i t h i n t e r e s t . 

13 Q. JAS never went t o the OCD and asked the 

14 D i v i s i o n t o address w e l l costs or overhead charges f o r 

15 the Martinez #1 Well, d i d they? 

16 A. Neither JAS nor Energen d i d u n t i l I brought a 

17 lawsuit i n Rio A r r i b a County. 

18 Q. I n f a c t , the a p p l i c a t i o n Energen brought 

19 preceded your l a w s u i t ; i s n ' t t h a t accurate? 

20 A. I don't believe t h a t i s accurate. I believe 

21 t h a t I sent you a copy of the lawsuit and i t was f i l e d 

22 and your subsequent submission to t h i s D i v i s i o n came. I f 

23 y o u ' l l look at the date --

24 Q. The record w i l l speak f o r i t s e l f . But the 

25 f a c t remains, you have never asked -- JAS has never asked 
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1 the D i v i s i o n t o review w e l l costs? 

2 A. No. We asked Energen t o review the w e l l c osts 

3 and were, t o l d t h a t was the charge. I t ' s very expensive 

4 t o b r i n g a process --

5 MR. HALL: No more questions, Mr. 

6 Chairman. 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

8 EXAMINATION 

9 BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

10 Q. The p o i n t was made t h a t Energen has not 

11 produced an order f o r the Martinez Well. I s that a 

12 requirement? 

13 A. I t would be a requirement i n order to put i t 

14 i n pay sta t u s , I be l i e v e , Commissioner. 

15 Q. Can you explain what you're saying? 

16 A. To put the pro r a t a share of payment t o JAS's 

17 pay status, i . e . , t h a t Energen would pay, they would ask 

18 f o r a D i v i s i o n order t o be executed. No D i v i s i o n order 

19 has been presented t o me t o put i t i n t o pay status. 

20 Q. Is there no recourse f o r working i n t e r e s t 

21 owners when a company presents an operating agreement? 

22 A. I know of no recourse other than t o say, 

23 "Don't s e l l my gas." 

24 Q. Then we have a s i t u a t i o n we have today? 

25 A. That's c o r r e c t . I t ' s a take i t or leave i t 
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1 circumstance w i t h respect to t h e i r c o n t r a c t . 

2 Q. Do you have a copy of the Energen e x h i b i t s ? I 

3 have a question on one of t h e i r e x h i b i t s t o see why you 

4 have no o b j e c t i o n to a charge there. 

5 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, can I approach 

6 the witness? 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

8 Q. (By Commissioner Bailey) E x h i b i t 19, page 12. 

9 Do you see where i t says, "632 GL Account $800.0 9 LOE 

10 plug & abandonment"? 

11 A. I do see t h a t . 

12 Q. The amount charged t o JAS i s $142.4 0 --

13 A. I see t h a t . 

14 Q. -- f o r plugging and abandonment? 

15 A. I do see t h a t . 

16 Q. This w e l l i s not PA? 

17 A. I t ' s not plugged or abandoned. We have j u s t 

18 been i g n o r i n g these charges a l l along. We're not paying 

19 them u n t i l we get some s o r t of r e s o l u t i o n . And because 

2 0 there's a pending lawsuit, I haven't spent any time 

21 reviewing each of these accounts. This presentation 

22 would have been done i n 1988 t o Joe Sommer, and I don't 

23 know -- he objected. I f you look at some of h i s l e t t e r s 

24 back i n '98, th a t they said t h i s t h i n g was plugged, 

25 there's a whole l o t of correspondence between Mr. Sommer 
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1 and Energen about the plugging and continued charges, so 

2 he d i d object. 

3 Q. But you j u s t t e s t i f i e d t h a t you're not 

4 o b j e c t i n g to any of t h i s type of charge, only t o the 

5 overhead charges. 

6 A. I said -- I believe my testimony was th a t I 

7 was not o b j e c t i n g t o the operating costs of the w e l l , and 

8 I don't object t o paying a pro r a t a share of the a c t u a l 

9 operating costs of the w e l l . I t h i n k t h a t ' s f a i r i n the 

10 production of the w e l l . What was being objected t o were 

11 u n f a i r charges t h a t were being appended t o the operating 

12 JIB costs t h a t were being submitted without any 

13 discussion. 

14 Q. Is i t normal f o r an operator t o send copies of 

15 invoices f o r work-over? 

16 A. I t ' s normal i f they're requested. They have 

17 an o b l i g a t i o n t o submit those costs, Commissioner. 

18 Q. Do they do t h a t f o r you on a regular basis? 

19 A. No. A l l we get i s a l i n e item statement such 

20 as what was presented i n -- t h i s would be E x h i b i t 5 --

21 I'mi sorry. I t , would have been E x h i b i t 9, i s a l l I get on 

22 a monthly basis. 

23 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l I have. 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

25 COMMISSIONER OLSON: I have no questions. 
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1 EXAMINATION 

2 BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

3 Q. Mr. Sommer, how deep i s the M a r t i n e z Well? Do 

4 you know? 

5 A. I am not c e r t a i n o f i t s depth, b u t I 

6 u n d e r s t a n d t h a t i t ' s i n t h e range of 5,000 f e e t . 

7 Q. Now, a t one p o i n t you were t a l k i n g about t h e 

8 1984 J o i n t O p e r a t i n g Agreement t h a t wasn't signed? 

9 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

10 Q. And you i n d i c a t e d t h a t t he $350 per w e l l was 

11 not o b j e c t i o n a b l e ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

12 A. I b e l i e v e t h a t t h e 350 charge, from what I 

13 u n d e r s t a n d o f w e l l s of t h i s n a t u r e and my own e x p e r i e n c e , 

14 i s a reasonable charge from a monthly b a s i s . 

15 Q. I n 1984? 

16 A. Not i n 1984, i n 2006, when I s i g n e d f o r t h e 

17 McCroden W e l l . 

18 Q. That may be t h e problem. What i s t h a t c o s t i n 

19 the 1984 agreement? 

20 A. I'm not sure what i t was i n the 1984 

21 agreement. I don't b e l i e v e I've ever seen t h e 1984 

22 agreement. 

23 Q. So when you s a i d t h a t $350 per w e l l was not 

24 o b j e c t i o n a b l e , you were t a l k i n g about a c u r r e n t time? 

25 A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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1 Q. Have you made arrangements t o s e l l the gas? 

2 A. I f I would have been d e l i v e r e d the gas i n 

3 October, w i t h i n t h a t time period, or t o l d where I could 

4 have had i t picked up, I would have made arrangements t o 

5 s e l l i t and I d i d have a buyer. 

6 Q. You d i d have a buyer? 

7 A. I had a buyer i n San Juan who was w i l l i n g t o 

8 do the deal w i t h us. Because t h i s was i n the San Juan 

9 Basin, I was assuming i t could be d e l i v e r e d physical 

10 q u a n t i t i e s someplace w i t h i n t h a t basin. 

11 Q. So you said the $350 per w e l l would be a 

12 reasonable cost. I s t h a t a 1. -- or i s t h a t part of a 

13 range or -- what do you t h i n k would be a reasonable cost 

14 t o operate t h i s 5,000-foot well? 

15 A. Today? 

16 Q. Yes. 

17 A. Probably i n the neighborhood of $400 i s what I 

18 believe t h a t they would be t r a d i n g at today per w e l l , an 

19 operating agreement. 

20 Q. You made an i n t e r e s t i n g statement th a t I 

21 did n ' t f o l l o w . You were comparing the cost and you s a i d 

22 t h a t means tha t they're g e t t i n g paid twice f o r t h i s . Do 

2 3 you remember which e x h i b i t t h a t was? 

24 A. I t wasn't an e x h i b i t . I was r e f e r r i n g t o the 

25 f a c t t h a t at the time t h a t Energen purchased t h i s w e l l 
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1 from Meridian, there was an overpayment due both t o 

2 Meridian's -- or Energen's status as they acquired i t and 

3 t o Sommer, i s what they were saying, t h a t we'd been over 

4 paid. I n any normal t r a n s a c t i o n those would have been 

5 o f f s e t from the p r i c e of the w e l l . So i f they took i t as 

6 an o f f s e t f o r money tha t would have t o be paid, I b e l i e v e 

7 t h a t c o l l e c t i n g i t again from us would be c o l l e c t i n g i t 

8 twice. 

9 Q. So they took i t as an o f f s e t i n the sale. Did 

10 they take your p o r t i o n as an o f f s e t i n the sale? 

11 A. I'm not sure how they dealt w i t h our p o r t i o n 

12 i n t h a t purchase agreement. 

13 Q. That would make a d i g d i f f e r e n c e i n your 

14 statement. 

15 A. I t would. And I said subject t o reviewing and 

16 a u d i t i n g t h a t statement would be the appropriate way t o 

17 deal w i t h t h a t imbalance, whether i t was accurate. That 

18 was what I said. 

19 Q. Now, t u r n i n g t o your E x h i b i t 4, now, you 

20 i n d i c a t e d t h a t you had a buyer. Were you t a l k i n g about 

21 t h a t you had a buyer i n September of 2005? 

22 A. Yes, tha t ' s correct 

23 Q. Without g e t t i n g i n t o the s p e c i f i c s of who i t 

24 was, can you t e l l me how t h a t would have worked? 

25 A. Because gas f u n g i b l e , i f Energen had at the 
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1 time i s 6 or 7,000 MCF i n the San Juan Basin, a l l I had 

2 t o do was f i n d a buyer and say, "Take t h a t from them and 

3 pay us." They'd take an o f f s e t of t h e i r c r e d i t or from 

4 t h e i r reserves or t h e i r storage. 

5 Q. And you i n d i c a t e d t h a t you were presented w i t h 

6 a copy of the Model Form Operating Agreement f o r the 

7 McCroden Well? 

8 A. That's c o r r e c t 

9 Q. And tha t you made some changes and that they 

10 weren't acceptable t o Energen. What changes -- what were 

11 the major changes you wanted t o make i n the operating 

12 agreement? 

13 A. Some of the major changes were t o s t r i k e or 

14 add words such as "reasonableness," s t r i k e 

15 i n d e m n i f i c a t i o n language or, i f there i s i n d e m n i f i c a t i o n 

16 language, t o make i t mutual. And there was 

17 i n d e m n i f i c a t i o n language i n there. Changes of that 

18 nature. I wasn't changing the f i n a n c i a l terms that were 

19 being presented. I was changing terms and conditions 

20 t h a t were set f o r t h i n t h a t document. I marked i t up, 

21 sent i t o f f t o them. I was t o l d t h a t not a single change 

22 was acceptable. 

23 Q. And you r e a l i z e t h a t these AAPL forms have 

24 been t r i e d and test e d f o r a long time and they've been 

25 modified occasionally. And I'm not saying t h i s to be 
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1 snotty, but i t ' s going t o come across th a t way. What 

2 made you t h i n k t h a t you had a b e t t e r idea than a l l these 

3 other people t h a t have been doing t h i s f o r a long time? 

4 A. I t ' s not th a t I had a b e t t e r idea. Being a 

5 lawyer and looking at documents t h a t r e q u i r e t h a t I 

6 indemnify somebody f o r something makes me cringe. There 

7 are p r o v i s i o n s i n th a t document t h a t I d i d n ' t f i n d 

8 reasonable. I t was up t o me t o ask. The worst they're 

9 going t o t e l l me i s , "No, we can't do i t , " or, "No, we 

10 won't do i t . " 

11 Q. So i t didn't bother you t o be making changes 

12 t o what had been a p r e t t y t e s t e d form? 

13 A. Well, Mr. Chairman, w i t h a l l due respect, i t ' s 

14 a t e s t e d form t h a t ' s been presented -- prepared by the 

15 majors t o impose upon the l i t t l e people. I t . d i d n ' t 

16 bother me t o ask f o r the changes because I'm used t o 

17 doing i t every single day i n my l i n e of work. 

18 ' Q. Okay. I'm not going t o argue w i t h you on t h a t 

19 one. Why was JAS not being paid on the McCroden Well? 

20 You know, you i n d i c a t e d t h a t you had t o discuss a 

21 l a w s u i t . And why were you not being paid on another 

22 well? Was i t the same lease, same deal? 

23 A. The recent payment discrepancy or imbalance 

24 t h a t i s shown on the McCroden Well, I wrote a l e t t e r and. 

25 asked t h a t I get paid. 
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1 Q. So you were being p a r t i a l l y paid? 

2 A. I was being paid u n t i l about three months ago, 

3 and I don't know what happened. They s t a r t e d accruing an 

4 imbalance and I didn't understand i t . So I was g e t t i n g 

5 the b i l l s , obviously, f o r the operation, so I wrote and 

6 said, "I'm w i l l i n g t o pay t h i s , but I also want t o get 

7 paid f o r what you sold. You don't have a r i g h t t o do an 

8 imbalance on me," i s what I was t e l l i n g them. 

9 Q. You d i d have a gas balancing agreement w i t h 

10 them on that? 

11 A. Yes, I did . 

12 Q. Surely they gave you some reason f o r 

13 implementing the gas balancing agreement, d i d n ' t they? 

14 A. No. I had no reason f o r the gas balance. We 

15 had an agreement they'd s e l l i t and I'd get paid. The 

16 gas imbalance, I don't know why i t s t a r t e d a l l of a 

17 sudden. 

18 Q. Do you have a l a r g e r i n t e r e s t i n the McCroden 

19 Well than -- how do you say that? 

2 0 A. McCroden. 

21 Q. Do you have a l a r g e r i n t e r e s t than the 

2 2 Martinez Well? 

23 A. No. I t ' s the same i n t e r e s t . 

24 Q. Is i t the same lease? 

25 A. I t ' s a d i f f e r e n t lease, as I r e c a l l . 
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Q. So you don't know why they ceased paying you 

2 on that? 

3 A. No. I've w r i t t e n a l e t t e r f a i r l y r e c e n t l y . I 

4 don't a n t i c i p a t e a response u n t i l a week or two. 

5 Q. Do you have any reason t o believe i t was p a r t 

6 of t h i s dispute or part of the lawsuit? 

7 

8 

A. No. I t h i n k there's some g l i t c h some place. 

I j u s t -- I'm not sure. I've been paid f a i r l y r e g u l a r l y 

9 since we signed the model operating agreement, and we've 

10 been pa i d our pro r a t a share of the cost of the w e l l . 

11 Q. A l l of the problems then r e l a t e to the 

12 Martinez Well? 

13 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

14 Q. Now, the D i v i s i o n order -- I believe 

15 Commissioner Bailey asked you about the D i v i s i o n order --

16 i t ' s not a l e g a l requirement, i s i t ? 

17 A. I t i s not a l e g a l requirement. Payors l i k e t o 

18 get them so t h a t they're assured i f somebody gets p a i d , 

19 erroneously, they're going t o get t h e i r money back. 

20 That's why people ask f o r i t . 

21 Q. But here are transactions t h a t occur without a 

22 D i v i s i o n order? 

23 A. Absolutely, as i s the case here. We're pa i d 

24 on our r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t without a D i v i s i o n order. 

25 Q. You heard t h i s morning t h a t the Martinez Well 
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1 i s making about 2 4 MCF per day? 

2 A. I d i d hear t h a t . 

3 Q. I s t h a t s i m i l a r -- have you ever looked at t h e 

4 engineering or the reserves on t h i s month? 

5 A. I have not. I've been t o l d what the engineers 

6 were when I was discussing a settlement at one po i n t w i t h 

7 Energen, but I d i d not a c t u a l l y see the engineering 

8 r e p o r t s . I t wouldn't surprise me t h a t the 24 i s an 

9 accurate number. 

10 Q. And do you have any idea what the reserves o r 

11 the l i f e of t h i s w e l l would be? 

12 A. I have no idea what the reserves of the l i f e 

13 of the w e l l are, but I have concerns th a t i t won't out 

14 l i v e the imbalance t h a t ' s there. 

15, Q. I need t o ask you, you r e a l i z e t h a t gas 

16 balancing takes place i n the o i l f i e l d r e a l r e g u l a r l y , 

17 r e a l often? 

18 A. I understand. 

19 Q. I s i t your p o s i t i o n t h a t i t shouldn't be 

2 0 occurring here because there i s no gas balancing 

21 agreement? 

22 A. I t ' s my p o s i t i o n t h a t i t ought not t o be 

23 occurring here because the pooling order i n 1961 d i d not 

24 provide f o r i t . The terms of which they want t o impose 

2 5 on the gas balancing are terms i n a contract that have 

1 
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1 not been agreed t o by JAS. So I don't believe t h a t a gas 

2 balancing i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r circumstance i s appropriate 

3 where the s e l l e r of the gas keeps 100 percent of the 

4 proceeds and charges you f o r your pro r a t a share of the 

5 operation and pays you none of the money received. 

6 Q. But th a t ' s the way i t ' s done under gas 

7 balancing agreements o f t e n . 

8 A. I f there's an agreement, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. And your p o s i t i o n i s t h a t you've never agreed 

10 t o t h a t , t h a t the State has never ordered i t , you never 

11 agreed t o i t , t h a t , t h e r e f o r e , i t shouldn't be --

12 A. I t shouldn't be imposed upon us by the 

13 operator of the w e l l . That's my p o s i t i o n . Because the 

14 State hasn't ordered i t and there i s no agreement t o the 

15 contrary. 

16 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no f u r t h e r 

17 questions. Mr. Bruce, do you have any r e d i r e c t of t h i s 

18 witness? 

19 MR. BRUCE: No, I don't. 

2 0 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , I assume 

21 since there's no r e d i r e c t , your recross i s going t o be 

22 extremely short. 

23 MR. HALL: No more questions f o r Mr. 

24 Sommer. Can I take a minute -- i s there other witnesses 

25 t o be presented? 
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1 MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

2 MR. HALL: May I t a k e a moment t o c o n f e r 

3 w i t h my c l i e n t ? We may pr e s e n t some r e b u t t a l evidence. 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Why don't we 

5 t a k e about a 10-minute break? 

6 (A recess was taken.) 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The r e c o r d s h o u l d 

8 r e f l e c t t h a t t h i s i s t h e c o n t i n u a t i o n o f Case Number 

9 13957, t h a t Mr. H a l l has asked t o r e c a l l Mr. Rote. 

10 Mr. Rote, you understand t h a t you've been 

11 p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case and t h a t you're s t i l l sworn 

12 f o r t h e e n t i r e t e s t i m o n y g i v e n i n t h i s case? 

13 MR. ROTE: Yes, s i r . 

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l ? 

15 MR. HALL: For t h e r e c o r d , Mr. Chairman, I 

16 a p o l o g i z e f o r t h e d e l a y . I a p p r e c i a t e t h e Commission's 

17 i n d u l g e n c e . 

18 PAUL ROTE 

19 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

20 BY MR. HALL: 

21 Q. Mr. Rote, you were p r e s e n t f o r t h e e x a m i n a t i o n 

22 o f Sommer j u s t now, were you not? 

23 A. Yes, s i r . 

24 Q. One q u e s t i o n came up w i t h r e s p e c t t o o p e r a t i n g 

25 expenses f o r t h e w e l l i n our E x h i b i t 19. Commissioner 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
3256bb0c-40f2-4fff-b828-128df298d48b 



Page 131 

1 Bailey pointed out t h a t there was a charge f o r plugging 

2 and abandonment i n 1998. Do you r e c a l l that? 

3 A. Yes, I do. 

4 Q. T e l l us again when Energen acquired the w e l l . 

5 A. L a t t e r part of 1997, e a r l y part of 1998. 

6 Q. Was the w e l l plugged and abandoned? 

7 A. No. I t was producing at the time. 

8 Q. Why would there have been an $800 charge shown 

9 on E x h i b i t 19 on page 12? 

10 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , I t h i n k 

11 that's an account number. I t h i n k the amount i s 142.40. 

12 A. Yeah. We believe t h a t t h a t would have been t o 

13 post a plugging bond w i t h the State as required, and t h a t 

14 was a gross charge, not net, t o the Sommer i n t e r e s t . A l l 

15 these charges are gross, not net i n t e r e s t s . I also p o i n t 

16 out i f you look f u r t h e r down t h a t e x h i b i t page under, 

17 "Environmental compliance," you can see that some charge 

18 was attempted t o be made f o r t h a t charge under the 

19 environmental compliance category i t was booked t o the r e . 

2 0 Apparently, i t was netted out and moved back up t o plug 

21 and abandonment category, and I can assume tha t t h a t 

2 2 would be f o r a plugging bond. 

23 Q. We also heard Mr. Sommer t e s t i f y w i t h respect 

24 t o payments f o r the JAS p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the McCroden 

25 Well. I don't want t o get the two wells confused. But 
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1 d i d you understand Mr. Sommer t o say t h a t he's not 

2 r e c e i v i n g payment f o r production from the McCroden Well? 

3 A. That's my understanding. That's what he s a i d , 

4 yes. 

5 Q. Did your s t a f f i n Birmingham receive a l e t t e r 

6 r e c e n t l y from Mr. Sommer making t h a t assertion? 

7 A. We received t h a t l e t t e r yesterday, Tuesday, 

8 sometime during the day. I t was forwarded -- emailed t o 

9 Mr. H a l l and myself yesterday afternoon. 

10 Q. Did you have your s t a f f confirm whether or n o t 

11 payment was being made by Energen t o the JAS O i l and Gas 

12 Company f o r production from the McCroden Well? 

13 A. Yes, we d i d . 

14 Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t Number 29. Can you 

15 i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r us, please? 

16 A. This i s a check payable t o JAS O i l and Gas 

17 dated May 25th of t h i s year, '09, f o r $87.26 representing 

18 h i s net proceeds from sale of gas f o r the months of 

19 February and March. 

20 Q. Let's clear up one more issue w i t h respect t o 

21 p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the Martinez Well and the McCroden Well. 

22 I n e i t h e r case the JAS i n t e r e s t s are not under lease; i s 

23 t h a t r i g h t ? 

24 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

25 Q. For p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the McCroden Well, d i d 
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1 JAS p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h 100 p e r c e n t o f i t s w o r k i n g 

2 i n t e r e s t s ? 

3 A. Yes, i t d i d . 

4 Q. I t s unleased m i n e r a l i n t e r e s t s ? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. And i s t h e Mesaverde Formation spaced on 320 

7 acres? Do you know? 

8 A. Yes. I b e l i e v e i t i s . 

9 Q. Would t h a t r e s u l t i n a s m a l l e r p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

10 f a c t o r f o r JAS i n t h e McCroden Well t h a n i n the M a r t i n e z 

11 Well? 

12 A. Yes. You'd have a l e s s e r gross i n t e r e s t . 

13 Q. I s E x h i b i t 2 9 a t r u e and exact copy o f t h e 

14 revenue checks i s s u e d by Energen t o i t s i n t e r e s t owners 

15. i n w e l l s , i n t h i s case JAS O i l and Gas Company? 

16 A. Yes, i t i s . 

17 MR. HALL: That concludes my r e d i r e c t o f 

18 t h i s w i t n e s s . I ' l l move t h e admiss i o n o f E x h i b i t 29. 

19 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any o b j e c t i o n ? 

20- MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t 2 9 w i l l be 

22 a d m i t t e d . 

23 Mr. Bruce, do you have a c r o s s - e x a m i n a t i o n o f 

24 the witness? 

25 ( E x h i b i t 29 was a d m i t t e d . ) 
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1 MR. BRUCE: I don't t h i n k so, Mr. 

2 Chairman. 

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioners? 

4 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Rote, thank you 

6 very much. Mr. H a l l , do you have a close? 

7 MR. HALL: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, I 

8 t h i n k the presentation of evidence t o you today, the 

9 whole panoply of correspondence back and f o r t h between 

10 w e l l operator and i n t e r e s t owner JAS makes c l e a r t o you 

11 the s i t u a t i o n t h a t the operator has been placed i n over 

12 the years and the e f f o r t s t h a t the operator has made t o 

13 t r y to cor r e c t t h a t s i t u a t i o n . 

14 Let's review the h i s t o r y of the Sommer JAS 

15 p o s i t i o n throughout as evidenced by the e x h i b i t s . F i r s t 

16 of a l l , there were broad objections t o the overhead 

17 ra t e s . There were broad, unspecified o b j e c t i o n s t o lease 

18 operating expenses, but nowhere today d i d JAS present t o 

19 you any evidence t o rebut the reasonableness of e i t h e r 

20 the overhead rates or the operating expenses. 

21 The evidence presented t o you i s what i t i s , 

22 and th a t ' s what you must base your decision on. That i s 

23 p a r t of the f u n c t i o n of the D i v i s i o n and the Commission. 

24 I f there i s an issue w i t h respect t o operating expenses 

25 under a Compulsory Pooling Order, then recourse may be 
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1 had to the agency t o address t h a t . Sommer JAS never d i d 

2 t h a t . We d i d . 

3 We're asking th a t the 1961 vintage pooling 

4 order be updated t o e s t a b l i s h t h a t past operating 

5 expenses, current operating expenses, past h i s t o r i c 

6 overhead and current overhead are reasonable and 

7 appropriate. We ask t h a t those pr o v i s i o n s be included i n 

8 a new order t o be issued by the Commission. 

9 Let's look at the other issue t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n 

10 presents you. Over the years there was a market f o r gas. 

11 That market went away i n the 1990s. The market changed. 

12 The nonoperator was d i r e c t e d t o make arrangements f o r 

13 marketing i t s share of gas and advise the operator of i t s 

14 plans or i t would be placed i n t o an under-produced 

15 imbalancing s i t u a t i o n . 

16 JAS Sommer never addressed t h a t . Instead, 

17 what JAS d i d , JAS took the p o s i t i o n t h a t the operator 

18 cannot market i t s share f o r i t . And at the same time, 

19 you cannot -- the operator could not market i t s own share 

20 of gas unless 100 percent of the i n t e r e s t owners were 

21 being marketed, then none of the i n t e r e s t owners could be 

22 marketed. The p r a c t i c a l e f f e c t of t h a t p o s i t i o n i s t o 

23 require a s h u t - i n of the w e l l . That's an i m p r a c t i c a l 

24 p o s i t i o n t o take, because i t ' s w i t h i n practices of the 

25 i n d u s t r y . 
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1 JAS Sommer took at times d i f f e r e n t p o s i t i o n s . 

2 U l t i m a t e l y they took a p o s i t i o n t h a t you can't market my 

3 working i n t e r e s t share. You have t o pay me f o r my 

4 r o y a l t y . You can only market so much of my working 

5 i n t e r e s t share, my force-pooled seven-eighths share, as 

6 necessary t o cover monthly operating expenses. The 

7 testimony establishes today t h a t t h a t i s simply not 

8 possible. That would require an operator t o know i n 

9 advance what i t s expenses may be and does not account f o r 

10 u n a n t i c i p a t e d expenditures t h a t might a r i s e . 

11 I t i s not possible f o r an operator t o schedule 

12 gas sales i n advance t o cover f u t u r e upcoming expenses. 

13 I t ' s j u s t not p r a c t i c a b l e . Sommer o f f e r e d no testimony 

14 or evidence e s t a b l i s h i n g t h a t i t would be possible t o do 

15 t h a t . 

16 F i n a l l y , a f t e r a l l of t h i s back and f o r t h of 

17 correspondence between the p a r t i e s f o r years and years, 

18 t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n , a previous examiner hearing, JAS 

19 Sommer presents us w i t h a new p o s i t i o n , and I t h i n k t h a t 

2 0 new p o s i t i o n o f f e r s us a way out here. I f you look at 

21 the Sommer prehearing statement, on page 5, Sommer has 

22 taken f o r the f i r s t time t h i s p o s i t i o n . JAS Sommer now 

23 says Energen must s e l l Sommer's share of gas, deduct 

24 overhead costs, account to Sommer and pay Sommer i t s 

25 share of proceeds. That i s ex a c t l y what we were asking 
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1 to do. 

2 Now, p r a c t i c a b l y how does the Commission 

3 fashion an order t o accomplish that? I t seems t o me 

4 there are two ways t o go about i t . The order could 

5 provide, as Energen has of f e r e d , t o allow Energen, the 

6 operator, t o market the JAS share of gas f o r i t at an 

7 i n f l a t e d e n t i t l e m e n t of 40 percent t o allow i t t o make up 

8 under-production t h a t has accrued f o r 12 years, make t h a t 

9 under-production up sooner than i t would be able t o 

10 otherwise. 

11 This under-produced p o s i t i o n d i d not accrue • 

12 overnight. I t took a number of years f o r i t to grow t o 

13 t h i s s i t u a t i o n , but I th i n k the evidence shows you t h a t 

14 Sommer simply would not allow the operator to deal w i t h 

15 i t . There's no way out f o r the operator. What the 

16 operator can do under the Commission's own r u l e , Rule 14, 

17 i s ask you t o fashion r e l i e f t o get i t out of t h a t 

18 s i t u a t i o n . I t can allow f o r the i n f l a t i o n of the 

19 i n t e r e s t , allow the operator"to market the nonmarketing 

20 party's share or, a l t e r n a t i v e l y , as the evidence shows 

21 you i n the correspondence, the order can provide t h a t the 

22 operator can buy out the under-produced p o s i t i o n of JAS 

23 i n accordance w i t h the custom and p r a c t i c e of the 

24 industry. 

25 And t h a t custom and p r a c t i c e was established 
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1 by our E x h i b i t 18, the E x h i b i t A t o the J o i n t Operating 

2 Agreement, t h a t i s the gas balancing agreement, t h a t i s 

3 the template, I believe, f o r the Commission t o fashion 

4 r e l i e f here, and take any one or a l l of the remedies t h a t 

5 are set f o r t h i n the gas balancing agreement and apply 

6 them t o t h i s dispute. 

7 The gas balancing agreement allows f o r 

8 i n f l a t e d e n t i t l e m e n t t o make up an imbalance of actual 

9 production or i t authorizes a buy-out. 

10 I f y o u ' l l look at page 3 of the gas balancing 

11 agreement, paragraph 7 ( b ) , t h a t i s the buy-out p r o v i s i o n . 

12 I t says on d e p l e t i o n -- i f there i s concern about the 

13 w e l l being able t o make up the past imbalance on 

14 dep l e t i o n , then the operator s h a l l account t o and pay the 

15 nonmarketing p a r t y based on h i s t o r i c p r i c e s received f o r 

16 production. That i s cash balancing. And you w i l l also 

17 see tha t i t ' s the custom and p r a c t i c e i n the in d u s t r y 

18 t h a t those buy-outs not accrue i n t e r e s t . 

19 I t ' s j u s t inconceivably i n c o r r e c t t h a t gas 

20 t h a t ' s l e f t i n the ground should accrue i n t e r e s t on i t 

21 when t h a t nonmarketing p a r t y has not made the e f f o r t t o 

22 market i t s own share. That's what the balancing 

23 agreement provides f o r . I t h i n k e i t h e r of those two 

24 remedies o f f e r appropriate r e l i e f t h a t the Commission can 

25 look to and a f f o r d the w e l l operator i n t h i s case. Thank 
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1 you, Mr. Chairman. 

2 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, close? 

3 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, once again 

4 there's a couple of issues. The f i r s t one i s the 

5 overhead r a t e s . I t h i n k my co-counsel, Ms. Lee, d u r i n g 

6 the break t o l d me what I t h i n k i s the proper view of 

7 t h i s . 

8 Energen i s punishing Sommer f o r not signing a 

9 JOA. They signed one on the deeper w e l l two, three years 

10 ago, and the overhead rates are $350 a month, and here 

11 today they want- $866 f o r a shallower w e l l where there i s 

12 no JOA. I j u s t t h i n k t h a t ' s unconscionable. 

13 Their E x h i b i t 2 0 on the overhead rates shows 

14 t h a t most people are charging 4 or 450 bucks a month 

15 charge. To charge 866 bucks a month at t h i s time i s j u s t 

16 improper and, apparently, they have been charging t h a t 

17 amount or lesser amounts escalated ever since they've 

18 taken over, or I should say at t h a t p o i n t , de-escalated 

19 ever since they've taken over the w e l l . 

20 I f you look at one of the Sommer's e x h i b i t s , 

21 i t shows t h a t i n October of 2007, before the hearing was 

22 held before the Examiner i n t h i s matter, they were 

23 charging $748 a month, so they had been t a k i n g advantage 

24 of . t h i s . And, obviously, anything you have t o look a t , I 

2 5 t h i n k you'd have t o go back f o r those seven years -- or 
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1 excuse me -- 12 years now since Energen took over, and 

2 reduce the amounts. I f you set whatever the rat e i s 

3 today, I t h i n k t h a t r a t e has to be decreased going back 

4 over 12 years t o set a f a i r amount, because Energen has 

5 not shown what i t has charged every month since i t took 

6 over. 

7 Obviously, I t h i n k i t has been t a k i n g those 

8 rates, the $350 a month, from 1984 and escalated i t , and 

9 I t h i n k those are improper rates. They're too high. 

10 When i t comes t o the over- and under-production, you 

11 know, f o r b e t t e r or worse, we're not dealing w i t h 

12 v o l u n t a r y agreements here today. We're dealing w i t h a 

13 forced pooling order. There i s no JOA i n place. And 

14 what you get t o i s t h i s : There's a force pooling order 

15 i n place, but Energen i s using i t s nonpayment of Sommer 

16 t o force Sommer t o sign a JOA and/or a gas balancing 

17 agreement and/or a gas marketing agreement. 

18 Now, I've always t o l d my c l i e n t s t h a t force 

19 pooling orders, as bare bones as they are, operate as 

2 0 JOAs, f o r b e t t e r or f o r worse. But when an operator 

21 seeks and obtains r e l i e f under the State's force p o o l i n g 

22 j u r i s d i c t i o n , then t h a t ' s what they have t o go under. So 

23 what you have t o look at i s the force pooling statutes 

24 and the force pooling order. 

25 And, of course, the more I do t h i s work, the 
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1 more t h a t ' s unclear t o me. But I t h i n k you take a look 

2 at the p r a c t i c a l i t i e s of the s i t u a t i o n . And I had -- the 

3 reason I had enclosed my E x h i b i t 3 -- and, u n f o r t u n a t e l y , 

4 I don't see the l a s t page i n here -- E x h i b i t 3 of my 

5 packet i s Order Number R-13000. I chose t h i s one since 

6 i t was a f a i r l y recent pooling order and since i t doesn't 

7 involve Energen or my c l i e n t or any of my c l i e n t s . 

8 But under a modern force pooling order, they 

9 a l l provide t h a t t h e i r unlocateable mineral i n t e r e s t 

10 owners, the operator, whether or not i t ' s before or a f t e r 

11 payout or anytime, has to s e l l t h a t person's share of gas 

12 and place i t i n a bank account i n the county i n which the 

13 w e l l i s located. And my c l i e n t s do t h a t whether or not 

14 i t ' s before or a f t e r pay-out. My p o i n t i s why t r e a t an 

15 unlocateable i n t e r e s t owner b e t t e r than a person you can 

16 locate? I see no reason. 

17 I t h i n k t h a t any time there i s a force pooled 

18 i n t e r e s t owner and^whether or not they go nonconsent i n 

19 the w e l l , the operator ought t o be s e l l i n g that gas and 

20 accounting t o and paying to t h a t i n t e r e s t owner as a 

21 matter of course, because t h a t ' s the only f a i r way t o do 

22 i t . And the reason I say i t ' s only f a i r t o do i t , i s 

23 because, more and more these days -- now, Mr. Sommer has 

24 at l e a s t some experience i n the O i l and Gas business. 

25 But how many small, nonconsenting mineral i n t e r e s t owners 
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1 are there out there who I am force p o o l i n g on a weekly 

2 basis f o r my c l i e n t s who know very l i t t l e about the 

3 business? 

4 They're expected t o keep t r a c k of a l l t h i s 

5 s t u f f and t o go out and market gas. I t ' s j u s t not going 

6 t o happen. So f o r a p r a c t i c a l matter, f o r them to 

7 receive any revenue at a l l , the operator has t o go out 

8 and s e l l the gas. 

9 Another f a c t o r i s operators of a w e l l o f t e n 

10 change. They might even go out of business. What 

11 happens t o the over- and under-production at t h i s p o int? 

12 Fortunately, i n t h i s case we are de a l i n g w i t h two 

13 reputable operators, Energen and B u r l i n g t o n Resources, 

14 and they kept balances. That's not always going to 

15 happen. 

16 Furthermore, i f you look at under-production, 

17 i f i t was made up today -- I t h i n k Mr. Rote said t h a t , 

18 but I always understood under-production should be made 

19 up at cash balancing. I f i t was cash balancing, l i k e Mr. 

20 H a l l said, i t would be at the pr i c e s received at the date 

21 the gas was sold. Now, who's going t o have tha t data? 

22 I t ' s going t o be the o l d operator. I f there's a change 

23 of operator over the next 4 9 years, what's going to 

24 happen t o t h a t information? Another i m p r a c t i c a l i t y 

25 you're imposing upon small i n t e r e s t owners. 
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1 Furthermore, i f Energen must s e l l gas to pay 

2 Sommer's one-eighth r o y a l t y share, and under the r e v i s e d 

3 order, to s e l l enough gas of Sommer's t o cover o p e r a t i n g 

4 costs, how much more d i f f i c u l t i s i t t o j u s t -- since 

5 they have a complete d i v i s i o n of i n t e r e s t , j u s t t o have 

6 the machine issue the check and sent i t to Sommer? I 

7 j u s t see i t as a p r a c t i c a l matter. As a p r a c t i c a l 

8 matter, Energen must s e l l Sommer's share of gas, as we 

9 stated i n the prehearing statement, deduct the overhead 

10 costs and account and pay. 

11 But i n t h i s instance, there's also another 

12 problem, which i s you have to pay the past due amounts. 

13 I mean, from what I heard here today, t h i s w e l l i s n ' t 

14 going to produce 49 years. I f i t d i d , I'd be stunned. 

15 But i t i s -- assuming i t does, j u s t t o pay out over 4 9 

16 years, as Mr. Sommer said, at no i n t e r e s t , who's g e t t i n g 

17 the b e n e f i t of that? I t ' s the operator. I t h i n k the 

18 operator, i f they want t o operate, they should s e l l the 

19 gas under a forced pooling order and pay Sommer the 

2 0 amount due. 

21 And i n s o f a r as anything t h a t I r a i s e d i n the 

2 2 past as to past due amounts, there's an issue of the 

23 D i v i s i o n i s s u i n g r e t r o a c t i v e r e l i e f . We don't t h i n k any 

24 r e t r o a c t i v e r e l i e f should be granted i n t h i s case so f a r 

25 as operating costs go, so we can leave that t o the 
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1 p a r t i e s and t h e i r pending l a w s u i t , I t h i n k . 

2 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, what e x a c t l y 

3 does tha t lawsuit cover? 

4 MR. BRUCE: Boy, i t ' s been a while 

5 since -- i t ' s been dormant. 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

7 MR. HALL: I t purports t o be -- I t h i n k i t 

8 purports to e s t a b l i s h a class a c t i o n f o r other i n t e r e s t 

9 owners s i m i l a r l y s i t u a t e d . I t purports t o sta t e t o r t 

10 claim under a conversion theory. I t h i n k i t also asks 

11 f o r an accounting i n payment. 

12 MR. BRUCE: I t asks f o r accounting i n 

13 payment under the O i l and Gas Proceeds Payment Act. 

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So t h a t s o r t of renders 

15 moot any discussion i n t h i s forum of past due amounts o r 

16 past due expenses, doesn't i t ? 

17 MR. HALL: I would disagree. I th i n k 

18 t h a t ' s a matter of primary j u r i s d i c t i o n f o r the D i v i s i o n , 

19 and we've f i l e d motions t o stay the D i s t r i c t Court 

20 l i t i g a t i o n pending t h i s agency a c t i o n . There's a p a r t i a l 

21 order of stay now. We don't have a judge at the moment. 

2 2. But we have argued and continued t o argue t h a t the 

23 D i v i s i o n has cont i n u i n g j u r i s d i c t i o n over i t s pooling 

24 orders, p a r t i c u l a r l y w i t h respect t o operating costs, 

25 overhead issues, s t a t u t e mandates, t h a t the Commission 
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1 assumes j u r i s d i c t i o n over those i s s u e s . I t ' s where 

2 p a r t i e s go f o r r e d r e s s on these i s s u e s . 

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I agree w i t h you on 

4 t h a t r e s p e c t , b u t i f i t ' s a c l a s s a c t i o n s u i t --

5 MR. HALL: I t has not been c e r t i f i e d f o r a 

6 c l a s s a c t i o n s u i t , and I don't b e l i e v e i t can be. 

7 MR. BRUCE: As t o -- Mr. Chairman, 

8 c e r t a i n l y i f t h e D i v i s i o n came o u t and s a i d l e t ' s j u s t 

9 take Energen's p o s i t i o n , t h a t t h e overhead r a t e s s h o u l d 

10 be $866 per month, does t h a t mean t h e y ' r e r a t i f y i n g a l l 

11 past overhead r a t e s charged by Energen g o i n g back t o 19 97 

12 o r so? I f -- o r i f you took our p o s i t i o n and c u t t h a t i n 

13 h a l f and say, w e l l , what are t h e r a t e s g o i n g t o be i n 

14 '97, '98, '99, e t cetera? 

15 MR. HALL: I ' l l address t h a t p o i n t t h a t 

16 t h e s t a t u t e has no l i m i t a t i o n on i t . I t says the 

17 D i v i s i o n i s t o address any d i s p u t e over c o s t s . I t may do 

18 i t r e t r o a c t i v e l y , and I t h i n k we can p r o v i d e you w i t h 

19 o r d e r s where t h e agency has accorded r e t r o a c t i v e r e l i e f . 

20 Santa Fe E x p l o r a t i o n / S t e v e n s o p e r a t i n g case t h a t went 

21 t h r o u g h t h e Supreme Court comes t o mind where t he agency 

22 r e t r o a c t i v e l y e s t a b l i s h e d an a l l o w a b l e w i t h a p o o l w i t h 

23 t h r e e p r o d u c i n g o i l w e l l s which r e s u l t e d i n some p a r t i e s 

24 b e i n g under-produced, o t h e r s b e i n g over-produced and 

25 p r o v i d e d a remedy f o r t h a t g o i n g f o r w a r d . T h i s doesn't 
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1 seem to be too f a r a departure from t h a t type of r e l i e f . 

2 And I t h i n k t h a t ' s also the very reason t h a t t h i s 

3 Commission saw f i t t o adopt Rule 414, i s t o provide 

4 operators and nonoperators w i t h recourse t o address t h i s 

5 very s i t u a t i o n . 

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You don't happen to 

7 know the renumbered Rule 414, do you? 

8 MR. HALL: I do. I t ' s our E x h i b i t 25. 

9 I t ' s 19.15.24.8, and the order i s R-8361. I t ' s i n the 

10 book, as w e l l . 

11 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, one of the 

12 things t h a t your c l i e n t has asked f o r i s i n t e r e s t and --

13 MR. BRUCE: Yes, co r r e c t , Mr. Chairman. I 

14 don't t h i n k you have the j u r i s d i c t i o n to award t h a t . 

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: That was going to be my 

16 question, because we had t h i s argument before. 

17 MR. BRUCE: Argument? Discussion. 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey, 

19 anything else? 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: No? Mr. Olson? 

2 2 COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: This i s an i n c r e d i b l y 

24 i n t e r e s t i n g l e g a l case. Thank you a l l f o r b r i n g i n g i t t o 

25 us, e s p e c i a l l y on a day when we have a long afternoon. I 
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1 appreciate the presentations from both attorneys and 

2 thank you. I f there's nothing else i n t h i s case, we w i l l 

3 recess and convene i n executive session. What we're 

4 going to do when we do t h a t , i s normally and from t h i s 

5 p o i n t forward -- Mr. H a l l , I didn ' t get a chance t o t e l l 

6 you -- we're going t o be asking f o r recommended 

7 conclusions and f i n d i n g s , even i n the one-day cases and 

8 anything l i k e t h a t . 

9 But since I didn' t give you a l l a chance to 

10 t a l k about t h a t today, what we're going t o do i s go ahead 

11 and d e l i b e r a t e and f i g u r e out how we want t o s t r u c t u r e 

12 the decision and transmit t h a t to the attorneys and ask 

13 them t o d r a f t proposed f i n d i n g s and conclusions of the 

14 proposed order. 

15 MR. HALL: One housekeeping matter. Did 

16 we get E x h i b i t 29 i n t o the record? 

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I thought we d i d . 

18 MR. BRUCE: We d i d . I d i d not object to 

19 i t . 

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the record r e f l e c t 

21 t h a t Energen E x h i b i t 29 has been admitted i n t o the record 

22 and w i l l be made part of the o f f i c i a l record. Anything 

23 else i n Cause Number 13957? 

24 MR. HALL: No, s i r . 
25 MR. BRUCE: No. 
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you v e r y much. 

2 At t h i s t i m e w e ' l l t a k e a q u i c k break and go i n t o 

3 e x e c u t i v e s e s s i o n . 

4 (The Commission went i n t o e x e c u t i v e session.) 

5 * * * 
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